

ARIAS SOCIETY

Assam Rural Infrastructure and Agricultural Services Society (An Autonomous Body of the Govt. of Assam) Project Management Unit (PMU) of the World Bank financed Assam Citizen-Centric Service Delivery Project (ACCSDP) Agriculture Complex, Khanapara, G.S. Road, Guwahati-781022 (Assam, India) Tel: +91 361-2332125, email: spd@arias.in, website: www.arias.in

Project: Assam Citizen Centric Service Delivery Project (ACCSDP) [Project ID: P150308, IBRD Loan No. 8754-IN]

BIDDING DOCUMENT

INTERNATIONAL COMPETITIVE BIDDING

For procurement of Service Provider Agency (SPA) for providing Non-Consulting Services for Settingup and Management of the Public Facilitation Centers (PFCs) in the districts of Assam *(excluding the seven districts under the Sixth-Schedule Autonomous Councils)* for providing services under the ARTPS Act, 2012

IFB No: ARIASS/ACCSDP/155/2019/10 Dated: 6th March, 2019

Bidding Document Issued from: 18th March, 2019

Government of Assam World Bank financed Assam Citizen-Centric Service Delivery Project (ACCSDP) Assam Rural Infrastructure and Agricultural Services Society

(An Autonomous Body of the Govt. of Assam)

Agriculture Complex, Khanapara, G.S. Road, Guwahati-781022 (Assam, India), email: spd@arias.in, website: www.arias.in

INVITATION FOR BIDS (IFB) INTERNATIONAL COMPETITIVE BIDDING (ICB) Country: INDIA

Short IFB No. ARIASS/ACCSDP/155/2019/8 Dated, Guwahati the 6th March, 2019

IBRD Loan No.: 8754-IN;

Contract Title: Setting-up and Management of the Public Facilitation Centers (PFCs) in the districts of Assam *(excluding the seven districts under the Sixth-Schedule Autonomous Councils)* for providing services under the ARTPS Act, 2012.

Reference Nos. (As per Procurement Plan): IN-ARIAS-94322-NC-RFB; IN-ARIAS-94325-NC-RFB; IN-ARIAS-94333-NC-RFB; IN-ARIAS-94335-NC-RFB and IN-ARIAS-94337-NC-RFB

The Government of Assam, through the Government of India, has received a loan from the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development (IBRD) towards the cost of 'ACCSDP'. The State Project Director, ARIAS Society, invites Bids from reputed agencies for the six (6) packages covering the aforementioned **non-consulting contractual assignment** under the project. Hard copy of the Bidding document may be purchased in the manner specified in the website of ARIAS Society or the Bidding document may be freely downloaded (without any cost) from the website of ARIAS Society viz. <u>www.arias.in</u> from **18th March 2019** to **6th May 2019.** Detailed IFB Notice may be seen in the website of ARIAS Society.

- 1. Last date and time of submission of Bid **7th May,2019 (14.00 hrs-IST)**
- 2. Date and time of opening of Bid 7^h May,2019 (14.15 hrs-IST)

State Project Director, ARIAS Society & Secretary to the Govt. of Assam Email: <u>spd@arias.in</u> World Bank financed Assam Citizen-Centric Service Delivery Project (ACCSDP) Assam Rural Infrastructure and Agricultural Services (ARIAS) Society (An Autonomous Body of the Govt. of Assam) Agriculture Complex, Khanapara, G.S. Road, Guwahati-781022 (Assam, India) Tel: +91 361-2332125, email: spd@arias.in, website: www.arias.in

INTERNATIONAL COMPETITIVE BIDDING (ICB)

For procurement of Service Provider Agency (SPA) for providing Non-Consulting Services for Setting-up and Management of the Public Facilitation Centers (PFCs) in the districts of Assam *(excluding the seven districts under the Sixth-Schedule Autonomous Councils)* for providing services under the ARTPS Act, 2012

INVITATION FOR BID (IFB)

IFB No: ARIASS/ACCSDP/155/2019/10

Dated Guwahati the 6th March , 2019

- 1. This Invitation for Bids follows the General Procurement Notice for this Project that appeared in the UNDB, issue of 29th February, 2016. The Government of Assam, through the Government of India, has received a loan from the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development (IBRD) towards the cost of 'Assam Citizen-Centric Service Delivery Project (ACCSDP)' and it intends to apply part of the proceeds toward payments under the contract for procurement of Service Provider Agency (SPA) for providing non-consulting Services for Setting-up and Management of the Public Facilitation Centers (PFCs) in the districts of Assam (excluding the seven districts under the Sixth-Schedule Autonomous Councils) for providing services under the ARTPS Act, 2012.
- 2. The State Project Director (SPD), ARIAS Society now invites separate sealed bids for the packages mentioned below from eligible bidders for providing the aforementioned non-consulting services, which *inter alia* include provisioning of two Computer & Peripherals, Internet connectivity (of minimum 4 Mbps for Download and minimum 1 Mbps for upload) and two manpower for each of the PFCs and Maintenance & management of the same:

Package	Approximate Nos. of PFCs	Districts
Package-1	63	Dhubri, South Salmara, Bongaigaon, Goalpara, Barpeta (5 Dists)
Package-2	60	Nalbari, Kamrup Rural, Kamrup Metro, Darrang, Morigaon (5 Dists)
Package-3	56	Sonitpur, Biswanath, Lakhimpur Dhemaji (4 Dists)
Package-4	40	Charaideo, Dibrugarh, Sibsagar, Tinsukia (4 Dists)
Package-5	62	Nagaon, Golaghat, Majuli, Hojai, Jorhat (5 Dists)
Package-6	47	Cachar, Karimganj, Hailakandi (3 Dists)
Total	328	

- 3. Bidding will be conducted through the International Competitive Bidding procedures as specified in the **World Bank's Guidelines**: Procurement of Goods, Works, and Non-Consulting Services under IBRD Loans and IDA Credits & Grants By World Bank Borrowers (January 2011, Revised **July 2014**) ("Procurement Guidelines"), and is open to all eligible bidders as defined in the Procurement Guidelines.
- 4. Interested eligible bidders may obtain further information from **SPD**, **ARIAS Society**, and inspect the bidding document at the address given below from **10.30** am to **5.00 pm** (IST) on all working days.
- 5. Bidder's qualifications requirements include the following. Additional details are provided in the Bidding Documents for the respective bidding documents:

Package	Access to assets of		-	Achieved in <u>three</u> years (2 & 2015-16) a turnove	2017- n ann	18; 2016-17 wal average	similar contract in th 18; 2016-17; 2015	on of a minimum of one (1) ne past <u>seven</u> years (2017- 5-16, 2014-15, 2013-14, 1-12) with a value of:-		
	Indian Rupees in Crore	or	US Dollar equivalent	Indian Rupees in Crore	or	US Dollar equivalent	Indian Rupees or US Dollar in Crore equivalent			
Package-1	4.00	or	5,70,000	4.00	or	5,70,000	8.00	or	11,43,000	
Package-2	4.00	or	5,70,000	4.00	or	5,70,000	8.00	or	11,43,000	
Package-3	4.00	or	5,70,000	4.00	or	5,70,000	7.00	or	10,00,000	
Package-4	2.60	or	3,70,000	2.60	or	3,70,000	5.00	or	7,15,000	
Package-5	4.00	or	5,70,000	4.00	or	5,70,000	8.00	or	11,43,000	
Package-6	3.00	or	4,29,000	3.00	or	4,29,000	6.00	or	8,57,000	

- 6. Bidders have the option to Bid for any one or more packages. Bids will be evaluated package-wise, taking into account discounts offered, if any, for combined packages. The contract(s) will be awarded to the Bidder or Bidders offering the lowest evaluated cost to the Employer for combined packages, subject to the selected Bidder(s) meeting the required qualification criteria for combination of packages as the case may be.
- 7. A complete set of Bidding Documents for each package in English language may be purchased by interested eligible bidders on the submission of a written Application to the address below and upon payment of a non-refundable fee of Indian Rupees three thousand five hundred only (Rs.3500) or US Dollar Fifty (US\$ 50) between the period 18th March, 2019 to 6th May, 2019. The method of payment will be in the form of a Demand Draft drawn in favour of State Project Director (SPD), ARIAS Society, Guwahati from a nationalized/scheduled bank located in India or by a reputable banking institution selected by the bidder and located abroad, in any eligible country.

- 8. The Bidding Documents for each package may also be collected in person or requested to be sent by courier for local delivery or by Air Mail for Overseas delivery. For sending the bidding document by courier for local delivery- Rs.1400 or US\$20 per package is to be paid additionally (along with the fee cited above) and for sending document by air mail for overseas delivery- Rs. 2800 or US \$40 per package are to be paid additionally. The Bid Document is also available on the website www.arias.in and can be freely downloaded by interested bidders. The bidders, who have downloaded the bid documents, shall be solely responsible for checking the website for any addendum/amendment issued subsequently to the bid document and take into consideration the same while preparing and submitting the bids.
- 9. A **pre-bid meeting** will be held on 2nd **April**, 2019 at 11.00 AM (IST) at the office of State Project Director (SPD), ARIAS Society, at the address given below, to clarify the issues and to answer questions on any matter that may be raised at that stage as stated in Clause 10.1 of 'Instruction to bidders' of the bidding document. Non-attendance at the pre-bid meeting will not be a cause for disqualification of a bidder.
- 10. Bids must be delivered to the address below on or before 7th May, 2019 at 14.00 Hrs (IST). Electronic bidding will not be permitted. Late bids will be rejected. Bids will be publicly opened in the presence of the bidders' designated representatives and anyone who choose to attend at the address below 7th May, 2019 at 14.15 Hrs (IST).
- 11. All bids must be accompanied by a **"Bid Security"** in the form of either a **Demand Draft** or a **Bank Guarantee** for **Indian for each package separately in Indian Rupees** or an equivalent amount in a freely convertible currency equivalent of US Dollar from a nationalized/scheduled bank located in India or by a reputable banking institution selected by the bidder and located abroad in any eligible country (as per provision of the bidding document).

Package	Bid Security Amount in Indian Rupees	OR Equivalent Amount in US Dollar
Package-1	42,00,000	60,000
Package-2	40,00,000	57,000
Package-3	38,00,000	54,000
Package-4	27,00,000	39,000
Package-5	42,00,000	60,000
Package-6	31,00,000	44,000

"The Demand Draft or a Bank Guarantee shall be in favour of '**State Project Director (SPD), ARIAS Society, Guwahati**'; **Name of the bank** -Bank of Baroda; **Name of the branch** – Sixmile; **Account no**. 56720200000013; **IFSC** - BARBOSIXMIX

12. The address referred to above is: **State Project Director, ARIAS Society, Agriculture Complex, Khanapara, G.S. Road, Guwahati-781022 (Assam, India), email:** spd@arias.in ; website <u>www.arias.in</u> .

Sd/-State Project Director, ARIAS Society & Secretary to the Govt. of Assam

Table of Contents

PART 1 – Bidding Procedures	
Section I. Instructions to Bidders	
Section II. Bidding Data Sheet (BDS)	20
Section III. Bidding Forms	26
Section IV. Eligible Countries	41
Section V. Bank Policy – Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices	42
PART 2 – Activity Schedule	44
Section VI - Activity Schedule	
PART 3 - Contract	64
Section VII. General Conditions of Contract	
Section VIII. Special Conditions of Contract	75
Section-IX: Performance Specifications and Drawings	83
Section X. Contract Forms	84

PART 1 – Bidding Procedures

Section I. Instructions to Bidders

<u>Table of Clauses</u>

A. General	
1. Scope of Bid	7
2. Source of Funds	7
3. Corrupt or Fraudulent Practices	7-8
4. Eligible Bidders	8
5. Qualification of the Bidder	8-10
6. One Bid per Bidder	10
7. Cost of Bidding	10
8. Site Visit	10
B. Bidding Document	
6. Contents of Bidding Documents	10
10. Clarification of Bidding Documents	10-11
11. Amendment of Bidding Document	11
C. Preparation of Bids	
12. Language of Bid	11
13. Documents Comprising the Bid	11
14. Bid Prices	11
15. Currencies of Bid and Payment	11-12
16. Bid Validity	12
17. Bid Security	12
18. Alternative Proposals by Bidders	13
19. Format and Signing of Bid	13
D. Submission of Bids	
20. Sealing and Marking of Bids	13-14
21. Deadline for Submission of Bids	14
22. Late Bids	14
23. Modification and Withdrawal of Bids	14
E. Bid Opening and Evaluation	
24. Bid Opening	14
25. Process to Be Confidential	14-15
26. Clarification of Bids	15
27. Examination of Bids and Determination of Responsiveness	15
28. Correction of Errors	15
29. Currency for Bid Evaluation	15-16
30. Evaluation and Comparison of Bids	16
31. Preference for Domestic Bidders	16
F. Award of Contract	
32. Award Criteria	16
33. Employer's Right to Accept any Bid and to Reject any or all Bids	16
34. Notification of Award and Signing of Agreement	16-17
35. Performance Security	18
36. Advance Payment and Security	18
37. Adjudicator	18

A. General

- **1. Scope of Bid** 1.1 The Employer, as defined in the **Bidding Data Sheet (BDS)**, invites bids for the Services, as described in the Appendix A to the Contract. The name and identification number of the Contract is **provided in the BDS**.
 - 1.2 The successful Bidder will be expected to complete the performance of the Services by the Intended Completion Date **provided in the BDS**
- 2. Source of Funds
 2.1 The Borrower, as defined in the BDS, intends to apply part of the funds of a loan from the World Bank, as defined in the BDS, towards the cost of the Project, as defined in the BDS, to cover eligible payments under the Contract for the Services. Payments by the World Bank will be made only at the request of the Borrower and upon approval by the World Bank in accordance with the Loan Agreement, and will be subject in all respects to the terms and conditions of that Agreement. Except as the World Bank may specifically otherwise agree, no party other than the Borrower shall derive any rights from the Loan Agreement or have any rights to the loan proceeds.
- 3. Corrupt or Fraudulent
 Practices
 3.1 It is the Bank's policy to require that Borrowers (including beneficiaries of Bank loans), as well as bidders, suppliers, and contractors and their subcontractors under Bank-financed contracts, observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement and execution of such contracts. ¹ In pursuance of this policy, the Bank.
 - (a) defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows:
 - "corrupt practice"² is the offering, giving, receiving or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence improperly the actions of another party;
 - (ii) "fraudulent practice"³ is any act or omission, including a misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to ³obtain a financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;
 - (iii) "collusive practice"⁴ is an arrangement between two or more parties designed to achieve an improper purpose, including to influence improperly the actions of another party;
 - (iv) "coercive practice"⁵ is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence improperly the actions of a party; (v) "obstructive practice" is
 - (aa) deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering or concealing of evidence material to the investigation or making false statements to investigators in order to materially impede a Bank investigation into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive or collusive practice; and/or threatening, harassing or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to the investigation or from pursuing the investigation, or
 - (bb) acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the

¹ In this context, any action taken by a bidder, supplier, contractor, or a sub-contractor to influence the procurement process or contract execution for undue advantage is improper.

² For the purpose of these SBDs, "another party" refers to a public official acting in relation to the procurement process or contract execution]. In this context, "public official" includes World Bank staff and employees of other organizations taking or reviewing procurement decisions.

³ For the purpose of these SBDs, "party" refers to a public official; the terms "benefit" and "obligation" relate to the procurement process or contract execution; and the "act or omission" is intended to influence the procurement process or contract execution.

⁴ For the purpose of these SBDs, "parties" refers to participants in the procurement process (including public officials) attempting to establish bid prices at artificial, non competitive levels.

⁵ For the purpose of these SBDs, "party" refers to a participant in the procurement process or contract execution.

Bank's inspection and audit rights provided for under para. 1.14 (e) of the Bank's Procurement Guidelines.

- (b) will reject a proposal for award if it determines that the Bidder recommended for award has, directly or through an agent, engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive or obstructive practices in competing for the contract in question;
- (c) will cancel the portion of the loan allocated to a contract if it determines at any time that representatives of the Borrower or of a beneficiary of the loan engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive or obstructive practices during the procurement or the execution of that contract, without the Borrower having taken timely and appropriate action satisfactory to the Bank to remedy the situation;
- (d) will sanction a firm or individual, including declaring them ineligible, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time, to be awarded a Bank-financed contract if it at any time determines that they have, directly or through an agent, engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive or obstructive practices in competing for, or in executing, a Bank-financed contract; and
- (e) will have the right to require that a provision be included in bidding documents and in contracts financed by a Bank Loan, requiring bidders, suppliers, contractors and consultants to permit the Bank to inspect their accounts and records and other documents relating to the Bid submission and contract performance and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the Bank.

3.2 Furthermore, Bidders shall be aware of the provision stated in Sub-Clauses 1.7 and 2.6.1 of the General Conditions of Contract.

- 4. Eligible Bidders4.1This Invitation for Bids is open to all bidders from eligible countries as defined in the
Procurement Guidelines. Any materials, equipment, and Services to be used in the
performance of the Contract shall have their origin in eligible source countries.
 - 4.2 All bidders shall provide in Section III, Bidding Forms, a statement that the Bidder (including all members of a joint venture and subcontractors) is not associated, nor has been associated in the past, directly or indirectly, with the consultant or any other entity that has prepared the design, specifications, and other documents for the Project or being proposed as Project Manager for the Contract. A firm that has been engaged by the Borrower to provide Consultant Services for the preparation or supervision of the Services, and any of its affiliates, shall not be eligible to bid.
 - 4.3 Government-owned enterprises in the Employer's country may only participate if they are legally and financially autonomous, operate under commercial law, and are not a dependent agency of the Employer.
 - 4.4 The loan agreement prohibits a withdrawal from the loan account for the purpose of any payment to persons or entities, or for any import of goods, if such payment or import, to the knowledge of the Bank, is prohibited by a decision of the United Nations Security Council, taken under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations.
 - 4.5 Bidders shall not be under a declaration of ineligibility for corrupt and fraudulent practices issued by the Bank in accordance with ITB Sub-Clause 3.1.
 - 5.1 All bidders shall provide in Section III, Bidding Forms, a preliminary description of the proposed work method and schedule, including drawings and charts, as necessary.
 - 5.2 In the event that prequalification of potential bidders has been undertaken **as stated in the BDS**, only bids from prequalified bidders shall be considered for award of Contract, in which case the provisions of sub-clauses 5.3 to 5.6 hereafter shall not apply. These qualified bidders should submit with their bids any information updating their original prequalification applications or, alternatively, confirm in their bids that the originally submitted prequalification information remains essentially correct as of the date of bid submission. The update or confirmation should be provided in Section IV.
 - 5.3 If the Employer has not undertaken prequalification of potential bidders, all bidders shall include the following information and documents with their bids in Section IV, unless otherwise **stated in the BDS**:

5. Qualification of the Bidder

- (a) copies of original documents defining the constitution or legal status, place of registration, and principal place of business; written power of attorney of the signatory of the Bid to commit the Bidder;
- (b) total monetary value of Services performed for each of the last five years;
- (c) experience in Services of a similar nature and size for each of the last five years, and details of Services under way or contractually committed; and names and address of clients who may be contacted for further information on those contracts;
- (d) list of major items of equipment proposed to carry out the Contract;
- (e) qualifications and experience of key site management and technical personnel proposed for the Contract;
- (f) reports on the financial standing of the Bidder, such as
- (g) profit and loss statements and auditor's reports for the past five years;
- (h) evidence of adequacy of working capital for this Contract (access to line(s) of credit and availability of other financial resources);
- (i) authority to the Employer to seek references from the Bidder's bankers;
- (j) information regarding any litigation, current or during the last five years, in which the Bidder is involved, the parties concerned, and disputed amount; and
- (k) proposals for subcontracting components of the Services amounting to more than 10 percent of the Contract Price.

5.4 **Bids submitted by a joint venture of two or more firms as partners shall comply with the following requirements**, unless otherwise stated in the **BDS**:

- (a) the Bid shall include all the information listed in ITB SubClause 5.3 above for each joint venture partner;
- (b) the Bid shall be signed so as to be legally binding on all partners;
- (c) the Bid shall include a copy of the agreement entered into by the joint venture partners defining the division of assignments to each partner and establishing that all partners shall be jointly and severally liable for the execution of the Contract in accordance with the Contract terms; alternatively, a Letter of Intent to execute a joint venture agreement in the event of a successful bid shall be signed by all partners and submitted with the bid, together with a copy of the proposed agreement;
- (d) one of the partners shall be nominated as being in charge, authorized to incur liabilities, and receive instructions for and on behalf of any and all partners of the joint venture; and
- (e) the execution of the entire Contract, including payment, shall be done exclusively with the partner in charge.
- 5.5 To qualify for award of the Contract, bidders shall meet the following minimum qualifying criteria:
 - (a) annual volume of Services of at least the amount specified in the BDS;
 - (b) experience as prime contractor in the provision of at least two service contracts of a nature and complexity equivalent to the Services over the last 5 years (to comply with this requirement, Services contracts cited should be at least 70 percent complete) **as specified in the BDS**
 - (c) proposals for the timely acquisition (own, lease, hire, etc.) of the essential equipment **listed in the BDS**;
 - (d) a Contract Manager with five years' experience in Services of an equivalent nature and volume, including no less than three years as Manager; and
 - (e) liquid assets and/or credit facilities, net of other contractual commitments and exclusive of any advance payments which may be made under the Contract, of no

less than the amount specified in the BDS.

A consistent history of litigation or arbitration awards against the Applicant or any partner of a Joint Venture may result in disqualification

- 5.6 The figures for each of the partners of a joint venture shall be added together to determine the Bidder's compliance with the minimum qualifying criteria of ITB Sub-Clause 5.5 (a), (b) and (e); however, for a joint venture to qualify the partner in charge must meet at least 40 percent of those minimum criteria for an individual Bidder and other partners at least 25% of the criteria. Failure to comply with this requirement will result in rejection of the joint venture's Bid. Subcontractors' experience and resources will not be taken into account in determining the Bidder's compliance with the qualifying criteria, unless otherwise stated in the BDS.
- 6. One Bid per Bidder 6.1 Each Bidder shall submit only one Bid, either individually or as a partner in a joint venture. A Bidder who submits or participates in more than one Bid (other than as a subcontractor or in cases of alternatives that have been permitted or requested) will cause all the proposals with the Bidder's participation to be disgualified
- 7. Cost of Bidding 7.1. The Bidder shall bear all costs associated with the preparation **Bidding** and submission of his Bid, and the Employer will in no case be responsible or liable for those costs
- 8. Site Visit 8.1 The Bidder, at the Bidder's own responsibility and risk, is encouraged to visit and examine the Site of required Services and its surroundings and obtain all information that may be necessary for preparing the Bid and entering into a contract for the Services. The costs of visiting the Site shall be at the Bidder's own expense

B. Bidding Document

Contents of 9.1 The set of bidding documents comprises the documents listed in the table below and 6. addenda issued in accordance with ITB Clause 11. Bidding Documents

Section-	I	:	Instructions to Bidders
Section-	II	:	Bidding Data Sheet
Section-	III	:	Bidding Forms
Section-	IV	:	Eligible Countries
Section-	V	:	Activity Schedule
Section-	VI	:	General Conditions of Contract (GCC)
Section-	VII	:	Special Conditions of Contract (SCC)
Section-	VIII	:	Performance Specifications and Drawings (if Applicable)
Section-	IX	:	Contract Forms

- 9.2. The Bidder is expected to examine all instructions, forms, terms, and specifications in the bidding documents. Failure to furnish all information required by the bidding documents or to submit a bid not substantially responsive to the bidding documents in every respect will be at the Bidder's risk and may result in the rejection of its bid. Sections III, V, and IX should be completed and returned with the Bid in the number of copies specified in the BDS
- 10. Clarification of 10.1 A prospective Bidder requiring any clarification of the bidding documents may notify the Employer in writing or by cable ("cable" includes telex and facsimile) at the Employer's address indicated in the invitation to bid. The Employer will respond to any request for clarification received earlier than 14 days prior to the deadline for submission of bids. Copies of the Employer's response will be forwarded to all purchasers of the bidding documents, including a description of the inquiry, but without identifying its source.
 - 11.1 Before the deadline for submission of bids, the Employer may modify the bidding documents by issuing addenda.
 - 11.2 Any addendum thus issued shall be part of the bidding documents and shall be communicated in writing or by cable to all purchasers of the bidding documents. Prospective bidders shall acknowledge receipt of each addendum by cable to the

Bidding

Documents

11. Amendment of

Document

Bidding

Employer.

11.3 To give prospective bidders reasonable time in which to take an addendum into account in preparing their bids, the Employer shall extend, as necessary, the deadline for submission of bids, in accordance with ITB Sub-Clause 21.2 below

C. Preparation of Bids

- 12. Language of Bid12.1 The bid prepared by the Bidder, as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the bid exchanged by the Bidder and the Employer shall be written in the language specified in the BDS. Supporting documents and printed literature furnished by the Bidder may be in another language provided they are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant passages in the language specified in the Bidding Data Sheet, in which case, for purposes of interpretation of the Bid, the translation shall govern.
 - 13.1 The Bid submitted by the Bidder shall comprise the following:
 - (a) The Form of Bid (in the format indicated in Section III);
 - (b) Bid Security;
 - (c) Priced Activity Schedule;
 - (d) Qualification Information Form and Documents;
 - (e) Alternative offers where invited;

and any other materials required to be completed and submitted by bidders, as **specified in the BDS**.

- 13.2 Bidders bidding for this contract together with other contracts stated in the IFB to form a package will so indicate in the bid together with any discounts offered for the award of more than one contract
- 14.1 The Contract shall be for the Services, as described in Appendix A to the contract and in the Specifications, Section VIII, based on the priced Activity Schedule, Section V, submitted by the Bidder.
 - 14.2 The Bidder shall fill in rates and prices for all items of the Services described in the in Specifications [or **Activity Schedule (Section V**)], Section VIII and listed in the Activity Schedule, Section V. Items for which no rate or price is entered by the Bidder will not be paid for by the Employer when executed and shall be deemed covered by the other rates and prices in the Activity Schedule.
 - 14.3 All duties, taxes, and other levies payable by the Service Provider under the Contract, or for any other cause, as of the date 28 days prior to the deadline for submission of bids, shall be included in the total Bid price submitted by the Bidder.
 - 14.4 If **provided for in the BDS**, the rates and prices quoted by the Bidder shall be subject to adjustment during the performance of the Contract in accordance with and the provisions of Clause 6.6 of the General Conditions of Contract and/or Special Conditions of Contract. The Bidder shall submit with the Bid all the information required under the Special Conditions of Contract and of the General Conditions of Contract.
 - 14.5 For the purpose of determining the remuneration due for additional Services, a breakdown of the lump-sum price shall be provided by the Bidder in the form of Appendices D and E to the Contract
 - 15.1 The lump sum price shall be quoted by the Bidder separately in the following currencies:
 - (a) for those inputs to the Services which the Bidder expects to provide from within the Employer's country, the prices shall be quoted in the currency of the Employer's country, unless otherwise **specified in the BDS**; and
 - (b) for those inputs to the Services which the Bidder expects to provide from outside the Employer's country, the prices shall be quoted in up to any three currencies of any member country of the Bank.
 - 15.2 Bidders shall indicate details of their expected foreign currency requirements in the Bid.
 - 15.3 Bidders may be required by the Employer to justify their foreign currency Page **12** of **89**

14. Bid Prices

13. Documents

Bid

Comprising the

15. Currencies of Bid and Payment requirements and to substantiate that the amounts included in the Lump Sum are reasonable and responsive to ITB Sub-Clause 15.1

16. Bid Validity

- 16.1 Bids shall remain valid for the period **specified in the BDS**
 - 16.2 In exceptional circumstances, the Employer may request that the bidders extend the period of validity for a specified additional period. The request and the bidders' responses shall be made in writing or by cable. A Bidder may refuse the request without forfeiting the Bid Security. A Bidder agreeing to the request will not be required or permitted to otherwise modify the Bid, but will be required to extend the validity of Bid Security for the period of the extension, and in compliance with ITB Clause 17 in all respects.
 - 16.3 In the case of contracts in which the Contract Price is fixed (not subject to price adjustment), if the period of bid validity is extended by more than 60 days, the amounts payable in local and foreign currency to the Bidder selected for award, shall be increased by applying to both the local and the foreign currency component of the payments, respectively, the factors specified in the request for extension, for the period of delay beyond 60 days after the expiry of the initial bid validity, up to the notification of award. Bid evaluation will be based on the Bid prices without taking the above correction into consideration

17. Bid Security 17.1 The Bidder shall furnish, as part of the Bid, a Bid Security or a Bid-Securing Declaration, if required, as **specified in the BDS**.

- 17.2 The Bid Security shall be in the amount **specified in the BDS** and denominated in the currency of the Employer's Country or a freely convertible currency, and shall:
 - (a) at the bidder's option, be in the form of either a letter of credit, or a bank guarantee from a banking institution, or a bond issued by a surety;
 - (b) be issued by a reputable institution selected by the bidder and located in any eligible country. If the institution issuing the bond is located outside the Employer's Country, it shall have a correspondent financial institution located in the Employer's Country to make it enforceable.
 - (c) be substantially in accordance with one of the forms of Bid Security included in Section IX, Contract Forms, or other form approved by the Employer prior to bid submission;
 - (d) be payable promptly upon written demand by the Employer in case the conditions listed in ITB Sub-Clause 17.5 are invoked;
 - (e) be submitted in its original form; copies will not be accepted;

(f) remain valid for a period of 28 days beyond the validity period of the bids, as extended, if applicable, in accordance with ITB Sub-Clause 16.2;

- 17.3 If a Bid Security or a Bid- Securing Declaration is required in accordance with ITB Sub-Clause 17.1, any bid not accompanied by a substantially responsive Bid Security or Bid Securing Declaration in accordance with ITB Sub-Clause 17.1, shall be rejected by the Employer as non-responsive.
- 17.4 The Bid Security of unsuccessful Bidders shall be returned as promptly as possible upon the successful Bidder's furnishing of the Performance Security pursuant to ITB Clause 35.
- 17.5 The Bid Security may be forfeited or the Bid Securing Declaration executed:
 - (a) if a Bidder withdraws its bid during the period of bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Bid Submission Form, except as provided in ITB Sub-Clause 16.2; or (b) if the successful Bidder fails to:
 - (i) sign the Contract in accordance with ITB Clause 34;
 - (ii) furnish a Performance Security in accordance with ITB Clause 35.
- 17.6 The Bid Security or Bid- Securing Declaration of a JV must be in the name of the JV that submits the bid. If the JV has not been legally constituted at the time of bidding, the Bid Security or Bid-Securing Declaration shall be in the names of all future partners as named in the letter of intent to constitute the JV

18. Alternative **Proposals by** Bidders

- 18.1 Unless otherwise indicated in the BDS. alternative bids shall not be considered
- 18.2 When alternative times for completion are explicitly invited, a statement to that effect will be included in the BDS, as will the method of evaluating different times for completion.
- 18.3 Except as provided under ITB Sub-Clause 18.4 below, bidders wishing to offer technical alternatives to the requirements of the bidding documents must first submit a Bid that complies with the requirements of the bidding documents, including the scope, basic technical data, graphical documents and specifications. In addition to submitting the basic Bid, the Bidder shall provide all information necessary for a complete evaluation of the alternative by the Employer, including calculations. technical specifications, breakdown of prices, proposed work methods and other relevant details. Only the technical alternatives, if any, of the lowest evaluated Bidder conforming to the basic technical requirements shall be considered by the Employer. Alternatives to the specified performance levels shall not be accepted.
- 18.4 When bidders are **permitted in the BDS** to submit alternative technical solutions for specified parts of the Services, such parts shall be described in the Specifications [Activity Schedule (Section V)] and Drawings, Section VIII. In such case, the method for evaluating such alternatives will be as indicated in the BDS
- 19. Format and 19.1 The Bidder shall prepare one original of the documents comprising the Bid as described in ITB Clause 11 of these Instructions to Bidders, bound with the volume containing the Form of Bid, and clearly marked "ORIGINAL." In addition, the Bidder shall submit copies of the Bid, in the number **specified in the BDS**, and clearly marked as "COPIES." In the event of discrepancy between them, the original shall prevail.
 - 19.2 The original and all copies of the Bid shall be typed or written in indelible ink and shall be signed by a person or persons duly authorized to sign on behalf of the Bidder, pursuant to SubClauses 5.3(a) or 5.4(b), as the case may be. All pages of the Bid where entries or amendments have been made shall be initialed by the person or persons signing the Bid.
 - 19.3 The Bid shall contain no alterations or additions, except those to comply with instructions issued by the Employer, or as necessary to correct errors made by the Bidder, in which case such corrections shall be initialed by the person or persons signing the Bid

D. Submission of Bids

- 20.1 The Bidder shall seal the original and all copies of the Bid in Marking of two inner envelopes and one outer envelope, duly marking the Bids inner envelopes as "ORIGINAL" and "COPIES".
 - 20.2 The inner and outer envelopes shall:
 - be addressed to the Employer at the address provided in the BDS; (a)
 - (b) bear the name and identification number of the Contract as defined in the BDS and Special Conditions of Contract; and
 - (c) provide a warning not to open before the specified time and date for Bid opening as defined in the BDS
 - 20.3 In addition to the identification required in ITB Sub-Clause 20.2, the inner envelopes shall indicate the name and address of the Bidder to enable the Bid to be returned unopened in case it is declared late, pursuant to ITB Clause 22.
 - If the outer envelope is not sealed and marked as above, the Employer will assume no 20.4 responsibility for the misplacement or premature opening of the Bid.
 - 21.1 Bids shall be delivered to the Employer at the address specified above no later than the time and date **specified in the BDS**.
 - 21.2 The Employer may extend the deadline for submission of bids by issuing an amendment in accordance with ITB Clause 11, in which case all rights and obligations of the Employer and the bidders previously subject to the original deadline will then be subject to the new deadline
- 22.1 Any Bid received by the Employer after the deadline prescribed in ITB Clause 21 will be returned unopened to the Bidder.

Signing of Bid

20. Sealing and **Marking of Bids**

22. Late Bids

21. Deadline for

Bids

Submission of

- 23. Modification and Withdrawal of Bids
- 23.1 Bidders may modify or withdraw their bids by giving notice in writing before the deadline prescribed in ITB Clause 21.
 - 23.2 Each Bidder's modification or withdrawal notice shall be prepared, sealed, marked, and delivered in accordance with ITB Clauses 19 and 20, with the outer and inner envelopes additionally marked "MODIFICATION" or "WITHDRAWAL," as appropriate
 - 23.3 No Bid may be modified after the deadline for submission of Bids.
 - 23.4 Withdrawal of a Bid between the deadline for submission of bids and the expiration of the period of Bid validity specified in the BDS or as extended pursuant to ITB Sub-Clause 16.2 may result in the forfeiture of the Bid Security pursuant to ITB Clause 17.
 - 23.5 Bidders may only offer discounts to, or otherwise modify the prices of their bids by submitting Bid modifications in accordance with this clause, or included in the original Bid submission

E. Bid Opening and Evaluation

- **24. Bid Opening**24.1The Employer will open the bids, including modifications made pursuant to ITB
Clause 23, in the presence of the bidders' representatives who choose to attend
at the time and in the place **specified in the BDS.**
 - 24.2 Envelopes marked "WITHDRAWAL" shall be opened and read out first. Bids for which an acceptable notice of withdrawal has been submitted pursuant to ITB Clause 23 shall not be opened.
 - 24.3 The bidders' names, the Bid prices, the total amount of each Bid and of any alternative Bid (if alternatives have been requested or permitted), any discounts, Bid modifications and withdrawals, the presence or absence of Bid Security, and such other details as the Employer may consider appropriate, will be announced by the Employer at the opening. No bid shall be rejected at bid opening except for the late bids pursuant to ITB Clause 22; Bids, and modifications, sent pursuant to ITB Clause 23 that are not opened and read out at bid opening will not be considered for further evaluation regardless of the circumstances. Late and withdrawn bids will be returned unopened to the bidders.
 - 24.4 The Employer will prepare minutes of the Bid opening, including the information disclosed to those present in accordance with ITB Sub-Clause 24.3.
 - 25.1 Information relating to the examination, clarification, evaluation, and comparison of bids and recommendations for the award of a contract shall not be disclosed to bidders or any other persons not officially concerned with such process until the award to the successful Bidder is notified of the award. Any effort by a Bidder to influence the Employer's processing of bids or award decisions may result in the rejection of his Bid.
 - 25.2 If, after notification of award, a bidder wishes to ascertain the grounds on which its bid was not selected, it should address its request to the Employer, who will provide written explanation. Any request for explanation from one bidder should relate only to its own bid; information about the bid of competitors will not be addressed.
 - 26.1 To assist in the examination, evaluation, and comparison of bids, the Employer may, at the Employer's discretion, ask any Bidder for clarification of the Bidder's Bid, including breakdowns of the prices in the Activity Schedule, and other information that the Employer may require. The request for clarification and the response shall be in writing or by cable, telex, or facsimile, but no change in the price or substance of the Bid shall be sought, offered, or permitted except as required to confirm the correction of arithmetic errors discovered by the Employer in the evaluation of the bids in accordance with ITB Clause 28
 - 26.2 Subject to ITB Sub-Clause 26.1, no Bidder shall contact the Employer on any matter relating to its bid from the time of the bid opening to the time the contract is awarded. If the Bidder wishes to bring additional information to the notice of the Employer, he should do so in writing.

25. Process to Be Confidential

26. Clarification of Bids 26.3 Any effort by the Bidder to influence the Employer in the Employer's bid evaluation or contract award decisions may result in the rejection of the Bidder's hid

27. Examination of **Bids and** Determination of **Responsiveness**

Evaluation

Bids

- 27.1 Prior to the detailed evaluation of bids, the Employer will determine whether each Bid (a) meets the eligibility criteria defined in ITB Clause 4: (b) has been properly signed; (c) is accompanied by the required securities; and (d) is substantially responsive to the requirements of the bidding documents.
- 27.2 A substantially responsive Bid is one which conforms to all the terms, conditions, and specifications of the bidding documents, without material deviation or reservation. A material deviation or reservation is one (a) which affects in any substantial way the scope, quality, or performance of the Services; (b) which limits in any substantial way, inconsistent with the bidding documents, the Employer's rights or the Bidder's obligations under the Contract; or (c) whose rectification would affect unfairly the competitive position of other bidders presenting substantially responsive bids.
- 27.3 If a Bid is not substantially responsive, it will be rejected by the Employer, and may not subsequently be made responsive by correction or withdrawal of the nonconforming deviation or reservation
- 28. Correction of 28.1 Bids determined to be substantially responsive will be checked by the Employer for any arithmetic errors. Arithmetical errors will be rectified by the Employer Errors on the following basis: if there is a discrepancy between unit prices and the total price that is obtained by multiplying the unit price and quantity, the unit price shall prevail, and the total price shall be corrected; if there is an error in a total corresponding to the addition or subtraction of subtotals, the subtotals shall prevail and the total shall be corrected; if there is a discrepancy between the amounts in figures and in words, the amount in words will prevail.
 - 28.2 The amount stated in the Bid will be adjusted by the Employer in accordance with the above procedure for the correction of errors and, with the concurrence of the Bidder, shall be considered as binding upon the Bidder. If the Bidder does not accept the corrected amount, the Bid will be rejected, and the Bid Security may be forfeited in accordance with ITB SubClause 17.5(b)
- 29. Currency for Bid 29.1 The Employer will convert the amounts in various currencies in which the Bid Price, corrected pursuant to ITB Clause 28, is payable (excluding Provisional Sums but including Daywork where priced competitively) to either:
 - (a) the currency of the Employer's country at the selling rates established for similar transactions by the authority specified in the BDS on the date stipulated in the BDS; or
 - (b) a currency widely used in international trade, such as the U.S. dollar, stipulated in the BDS, at the selling rate of exchange published in the international press as stipulated in the BDS on the date stipulated in the BDS, for the amounts payable in foreign currency; and, at the selling exchange rate established for similar transactions by the same authority specified in ITB Sub-Clause 29.1 (a) above on the date specified in the **BDS** for the amount payable in the currency of the Employer's country.
- 30.1 The Employer will evaluate and compare only the bids determined to be 30. Evaluation and substantially responsive in accordance with ITB Clause 27; **Comparison of**
 - 30.2 In evaluating the bids, the Employer will determine for each Bid the evaluated Bid price by adjusting the Bid price as follows:
 - making any correction for errors pursuant to ITB Clause 28; (a)
 - excluding provisional sums and the provision, if any, for contingencies in the (b) Activity Schedule, Section V, but including Day work, when requested in the Specifications [or Activity Schedule (Section V)]) Section VIII;
 - making an appropriate adjustment for any other acceptable variations, (c) deviations, or alternative offers submitted in accordance with ITB Clause 18; and
 - (d) making appropriate adjustments to reflect discounts or other price modifications offered in accordance with ITB Sub-Clause 23.5

Domestic Bidders

Contract, will not be taken into account in Bid evaluation. **31. Preference for** 31.1 Domestic bidders shall **not** be eligible for any margin of preference in Bid evaluation

F. Award of Contract

30.3 The Employer reserves the right to accept or reject any variation, deviation, or alternative offer. Variations, deviations, and alternative offers and other factors, which are in excess of the requirements of the bidding documents or otherwise result in unsolicited benefits for the Employer will not be taken into account in Bid

30.4 The estimated effect of any price adjustment conditions under Sub-Clause 7.6 of the General Conditions of Contract, during the period of implementation of the

32. Award Criteria 32.1 Subject to ITB Clause 33, the Employer will award the Contract to the Bidder whose Bid has been determined to be substantially responsive to the bidding documents and who has offered the lowest evaluated Bid price, provided that such Bidder has been determined to be (a) eligible in accordance with the provisions of ITB Clause 4, and (b) qualified in accordance with the provisions of ITB Clause 5.

evaluation.

- 32.2 If, pursuant to ITB Sub-Clause 13.2 this contract is being let on a "slice and package" basis, the lowest evaluated Bid Price will be determined when evaluating this contract in conjunction with other contracts to be awarded concurrently. Taking into account any discounts offered by the bidders for the award of more than one contract.
- 33.1 Notwithstanding ITB Clause 32, the Employer reserves the right to accept or reject any Bid, and to cancel the bidding process and reject all bids, at any time prior to the award of Contract, without thereby incurring any liability to the affected Bidder or bidders or any obligation to inform the affected Bidder or bidders of the grounds for the Employer's action.
- 34.1 The Bidder whose Bid has been accepted will be notified of the award by the Employer prior to expiration of the Bid validity period by cable, telex, or facsimile confirmed by registered letter from the Employer. This letter (hereinafter and in the Conditions of Contract called the "Letter of Acceptance") will state the sum that the Employer will pay the Service provider in consideration of the execution, completion, and maintenance of the Services by the Service provider as prescribed by the Contract (hereinafter and in the Contract called the "Contract Called the "Contract Price").
 - 34.2 The notification of award will constitute the formation of the Contract.
 - 34.3 The Contract, in the form provided in the bidding documents, will incorporate all agreements between the Employer and the successful Bidder. It will be signed by the Employer and sent to the successful Bidder along with the Letter of Acceptance. Within 21 days of receipt of the Contract, the successful bidder shall sign the Contract and return it to the Employer, together with the required performance security pursuant to Clause 35.
 - 34.4 Upon fulfillment of ITB Sub-Clause 34.3, the Employer will promptly notify the unsuccessful Bidders the name of the winning Bidder and that their bid security will be returned as promptly as possible.
 - 34.5 If, after notification of award, a bidder wishes to ascertain the grounds on which its bid was not selected, it should address its request to the Employer. The Employer will promptly respond in writing to the unsuccessful Bidder
 - 35.1 Within 21 days after receipt of the Letter of Acceptance, the successful Bidder shall deliver to the Employer a Performance Security in the amount and in the form (Bank Guarantee and/or Performance Bond) **stipulated in the BDS**, denominated in the type and proportions of currencies in the Letter of Acceptance and in accordance with the General Conditions of Contract.
 - 35.2 If the Performance Security is provided by the successful Bidder in the form of a Bank Guarantee, it shall be issued either (a) at the Bidder's option, by a bank located in the country of the Employer or a foreign bank through a correspondent bank located in the country of the Employer, or (b) with the agreement of the Employer directly by a foreign bank acceptable to the Employer.

33. Employer's

Right to Accept any Bid and to Reject any or all Bids

34. Notification of Award and Signing of Agreement

Security

35. Performance

- 35.3 If the Performance Security is to be provided by the successful Bidder in the form of a Bond, it shall be issued by a surety which the Bidder has determined to be acceptable to the Employer.
- 35.4 Failure of the successful Bidder to comply with the requirements of ITB Sub-Clause 35.1 shall constitute sufficient grounds for cancellation of the award and forfeiture of the Bid Security
- ent 36.1 The Employer will provide an Advance Payment on the Contract Price as stipulated in the Conditions of Contract, subject to the amount **stated in the BDS**
- **37. Adjudicator** 37.1 The Employer proposes the person **named in the BDS** to be appointed as Adjudicator under the Contract, at an hourly fee **specified in the BDS**, plus reimbursable expenses. If the Bidder disagrees with this proposal, the Bidder should so state in the Bid. If, in the Letter of Acceptance, the Employer has not agreed on the appointment of the Adjudicator, the Adjudicator shall be appointed by the Appointing Authority designated in the Special Conditions of Contract at the request of either party

36. Advance Payment and Security

Section II. Bidding Data Sheet

Section II. Bidding Data Sheet (BDS)

Instructions to Bidders (ITB) Clause Reference

The following specific data for the goods to be procured shall complement, supplement, or amend the provisions in the Instructions to Bidders (ITB). Whenever there is a conflict, the provisions herein shall prevail over those in ITB.

ITB Clause Reference						
Reference	A. General					
ITB 1.1	The Employer is: State Project Director, ARIAS society on behalf of the Commissioner & Secretary to the Govt. of Assam (GoA), Administrative Reforms & Training (AR&T) Department.					
	The name and identification number of the Contract are ;					
	Name : "Service Provider Agency (SPA) for providing Non-Consulting Services for Setting-up and Management of the Public Facilitations Centers (PFCs) in the district of Assam (excluding the seven districts under the Sixth-Schedule Autonomous Councils) for					
	providing services under the ARTPS Act, 2012: Package No					
	#1: Indicate the package number(s) from the list of Packages under the IFB for which bid(s is/are being submitted:					
	Package Approximate Districts Nos. of PFCs					
	Package-1 63 Dhubri, South Salmara, Bongaigaon, Goalpara, Barpeta (5 Dists)					
	Package-2 60 Nalbari, Kamrup Rural, Kamrup Metro, Darrang, Morigaon (5 Dists)					
	Package-356Sonitpur, Biswanath, Lakhimpur Dhemaji (4 Dists)Package-440Charaideo, Dibrugarh, Sibsagar, Tinsukia (4 Dists)					
	Package-562Nagaon, Golaghat, Majuli, Hojai, Jorhat (5 Dists)					
	Package-6 47 Cachar, Karimganj, Hajlakandi (3 Dists)					
	Total 328					
	[Note- In case a bidder is submitting bids for multiple packages, each bid shall be submitted in separate envelops, clearly indicating inter alia the package no. on the top of the envelop]					
	Identification number: IFB No. ARIASS/ACCSDP/155/2019/10 Dated 6th March, 2019					
ITB 1.2	The Intended Completion Date is three (3) years from the date of signing of the Contract Agreement. <i>Within the three (3) years period, the contract for the third year will be renewed based on the performance in the first and second year.</i>					
	Thereafter, the contract may be extended subject to need of the AR&T Department					
	and/or IT Department of the Government of Assam (GoA) based on the availability the funds with the GoA for the purpose and also mutual consent with the SPA.					
ITB 2.1	The Borrower is: Government of Assam through the Government of India.					
	The Project is : Assam Citizen Centric Service Delivery Project (ACCSDP) [Project ID: P150308]					
	The loan number: IBRD Loan No. 8754-IN					
ITB 5.2	Prequalification has not been undertaken.					
ITB 5.3	The Qualification Information and Bidding forms to be submitted are as follows: Prequalification has not been undertaken.					
	Bidders shall include all information and documents with their bids in Section IV as mentioned in sub-clause 5.3 of Section-I, Instruction to Bidders.					
	Note: Bidders have the option to Bid for any one or more packages. Bids will be evaluated package wise, taking into account discounts offered, if any, for combined packages. The contract(s) will be awarded to the Bidder or Bidders offering the lowest evaluated cost to the Employer for combined packages, subject to the selected Bidder(s) meeting the required qualification criteria for combination of packages as the case may be					
ITB 5.5	The minimum qualifying criteria for the bidders to qualify for award of the Contract, in Sub-Clause 5.5 are modified as follows:					
	(Note: Important: Bidders have the option to Bid for any one or more packages. Bids will be evaluated package-wise, taking into account discounts offered, if any, for combined packages. The contract(s) will be awarded to the Bidder or Bidders offering the lowest evaluated cost to the Employer for combined packages, subject to the selected Bidder(s) meeting the required qualification criteria for combination of packages as the case may be)					

ITB Clause							
Reference ITB 5.5(a)	The package wise	required minimum annu	ıal volu n	e of Se	ervices i.e. Average		
112 010 (u)		e successful Bidder in any of					
	Package Achieved in <u>each of the past three</u> years (2017-18; 2016-17 & 2015-1						
	0	an annual a		rnover of at least:-			
		Indian Rupees in Crore	or	USI	Dollar equivalent		
	Package-1 Package-2	4.00 4.00	or		5,70,000 5,70,000		
	Package-2 Package-3	4.00	or or		5,70,000		
	Package-4	2.60	or		3,70,000		
	Package-5	4.00	or		5,70,000		
	Package-6	3.00	or		4,29,000		
ITB 5.5(b)		equired experience to be der					
		r service contract over the la					
		5, 2013-14, 2012-13 & 20			with this requirement		
	Services contracts o	cited should be at least 70 per	-				
	Package	Experience of execution					
		the past <u>seven</u> years (201 2012-13 & 2011-12) with			-16, 2014-15, 2013-14,		
		Indian Rupees in Cro			IS Dollar equivalent		
	Package-1	8.00	010 01		11,43,000		
	Package-2	8.00	01	•	11,43,000		
	Package-3	7.00	01	•	10,00,000		
	Package-4	5.00	10		7,15,000		
	Package-5 Package-6	8.00	10 10		<u>11,43,000</u> 8,57,000		
	I ackage-0	0.00	01		0,37,000		
	OR " Similar Servic peripherals, includin computer & peripher in Indian Rupees or	15, 2013-14, 2012-13 & 2011-12). OR " Similar Service " or ' similar contract ' means a bidder who has 'supplied computer & peripherals, including provided maintenance support' and also provided 'manpower' to run the computer & peripherals, under a contract with a <u>package wise value</u> as mentioned in the table above in Indian Rupees or US Dollar equivalent in the past 7 years (viz. 2017-18; 2016-17, 2015-16, 2014-15, 2013-14, 2012-13 & 2011-12)					
ITB 5.5(c)		ipment to be made available As mention in the Activity So		s assignr	nent by the successful		
ITB 5.5.(d)		lification and experience r perators shall be As mention					
ITB 5.5(e)		minimum amount of liquid tments of the successful Bidde hown below:					
	Package	Access to cred	lit or liauid :	assets of r	not less than		
		Indian Rupees in Cro		or	US Dollar equivalent		
	Package-1	4.00		or	5,70,000		
	Package-2	4.00		or	5,70,000		
	Package-3	4.00		or	5,70,000		
	Package-4	2.60		or	3,70,000		
	Package-5 Package-6	4.00 3.00		or or	5,70,000 4,29,000		
	I uchage U	5.00	I	UI	7,23,000		
ITB 5.6	experience an compliance wi	rs' experience shall not be d resources will not be take ith the qualifying criteria. or each of the partners of a	en into acco	unt in de	etermining the Bidder's		
	determine the Bidder's compliance with the minimum qualifying criteria of ITB Sub-Clause 5.5 (a), (b), (C), (d) and (e);						

ITB Clause							
Reference	(c) However	, for a loint Venture to gual	ify the partner in charge must				
	meet at	least 40 percent of those min	imum criteria for an individual				
			25% of the criteria. Failure to result in rejection of the joint				
	venture'	—					
	Note: Bidders	have the option to Bid for any	one or more packages. Bids will be				
			counts offered, if any, for combined				
			Bidder or Bidders offering the lowest ages, subject to the selected Bidder(s)				
			nbination of packages as the case may				
	be.						
		B. Bidding D	ata				
ITB 9.2 and 19.1	The number of	copies of the Bid to be completed a	nd returned shall be : Two for each				
	Package (in c	ase bidder want submit bid for multip	le packages)				
		C. Preparation	of Bids				
ITB 12.1	Language of the	bid: English					
ITB 13.1	The additional r	naterials required to be completed a	nd submitted are:				
	(1) The followi	ng details shall also be provided b	y Indian Bidders:				
		of the Directors of the Bidding Cosciences are being assessed.	mpany, address, PAN and ward/circle				
			e & fax numbers, PAN and ward/circle				
	where i	t is being assessed,					
		ation details of the company under s as may be applicable.	GST (Goods & Services Tax), and other				
			e the complete postal address, email,				
	telephone & fax number, and corresponding details of Income Tax registration, Social						
	Security Number, details regarding Registration under Value Added Tax or sale of goods (as may be applicable) etc						
ITB 14.4		The Contract is subject to price adjustment in accordance with Clause 6.6 of General					
	Conditions of Contract						
ITB 15.1	•	ll be quoted in Indian Rupees or	-				
ITB 16.1		id validity shall be 180 (one hund ion specified in the BDS.	red & eighty) days after the deadline				
ITB 17.1	The Bidder shal	l provide only the Bid Security .					
ITB 17.2	The package w	ise amount of Bid Security(ies) shall	be in Indian Rupees or in US\$ or				
	an equivalent	amount in a freely-convertible cu	rrency shall be as mentioned in the				
			Demand Draft or a Bank Guarantee a or by a reputable banking institution				
		bidder and located abroad in any elig					
	Package	Bid Security Amount in Indian Rupees	OR Equivalent Amount in US Dollar				
	Package-1	42,00,000	60,000				
	Package-2	40,00,000	57,000				
	Package-3 Package-4	<u>38,00,000</u> 27,00,000	54,000 39,000				
	Package-5	42,00,000	60,000				
	Package-6	31,00,000	44,000				
	-	letails: Name of the bank - Bank of 20200000013; IFSC - BARBOSIXMIX	Baroda; Name of the branch - Sixmile;				
			multiple packages, the bid security shall be separate, for the amount as				
	indicated abov	e for each package. Bids not in c	ompliance to this provision shall be				
	rejected by the	client.					
ITB 18.1	Alternative bids	shall not be permitted.					

ITB Clause						
Reference						
ITB 18.2	Alternative times for completion are not permitted.					
ITB 18.4	Alternative technical solutions are Not Permitted .					
	D. Submission of Bids					
ITB 20.2	The Employer's address for the purpose of Bid submission is :					
	Address:State Project Director, Assam Citizen-Centric Service Delivery Project (ACCSDP)Assam Rural Infrastructure and Agricultural Services (ARIAS) Society,Agriculture Complex, Khanapara, G.S. Road, Guwahati-781022 (Assam, India)website: www.arias.inCountry: IndiaTelephone: +91 361-2332125,					
	Electronic mail address: <u>spd@arias.in</u> , For identification of the bid the envelopes should indicate:					
	Contract: "Setting-up and Management of the Public Facilitations Centers (PFCs) in the districts of Assam (excluding the seven districts under the Sixth-Schedule Autonomous Councils) for providing services under the ARTPS Act, 2012: Package No. 					
	Package Approximate Districts					
	Nos. of PFCs Package-1 63 Dhubri, South Salmara, Bongaigaon, Goalpara, Barpeta (5 Dists)					
	Package-2 60 Nalbari, Kamrup Rural, Kamrup Metro, Darrang, Morigaon (5 Dists)					
	Package-356Sonitpur, Biswanath, Lakhimpur Dhemaji (4 Dists)Package-440Charaideo, Dibrugarh, Sibsagar, Tinsukia (4 Dists)					
	Package-562Nagaon, Golaghat, Majuli, Hojai, Jorhat (5 Dists)					
	Package-6 47 Cachar, Karimganj, Hailakandi (3 Dists)					
	Total 328 IFB No. ARIASS/ACCSDP/155/2019/10 Dated 6 th March, 2019					
ITB 21.1	The deadline for submission of bids shall be					
	Date: 7 th May 2019					
	Time: upto 14.00 hrs (IST)					
	E. Bid Opening and Evaluation					
ITB 24.1	Bids will be opened at 14.15 hrs (IST) on 7th May, 2019 at the following address:					
	Address: State Project Director, Assam Citizen-Centric Service Delivery Project (ACCSDP) Assam Rural Infrastructure and Agricultural Services (ARIAS) Society, Agriculture Complex, Khanapara, G.S. Road, Guwahati-781022 (Assam, India) website: www.arias.in Country: India Telephone: +91 361-2332125, Electronic mail address: <u>spd@arias.in</u>					
ITB 29.1	Currency chosen for the purpose of converting to a common currency: Indian Rupees.					
	Source of exchange rate: B.C. Selling Rate of Exchange of State Bank of India (SBI), Panbazar, Main Branch, Guwahati-781001 (Assam, India).					
	Exchange rate date: Is the last date for submission of bids indicated in Clause 21.1 of Data Sheet.					
	F. Award of Contract					
ITB 35.1	The Performance Security @ 10% of the total contract value shall be the in the Standard Form of Bank Guarantee or Demand Draft. In case of JV, the Performance Security of a JV must be in the name of the JV that submits the bid.					

ITB Clause Reference	
	Note: In case a bidder is awarded contract for multiple packages, the performance security instruments for each of the packages shall be separate, and the contract will be signed for each package separately.
ITB 36.1	The Advance Payment shall be maximum 10% (ten percent) against the submission of a Bank Guarantee (BG) by the Service Provider Agency for the same amount, and the BG shall be valid for the period stated in the SCC (Special Conditions of Contract)
ITB 37.1	The Adjudicator proposed by the Employer is Sri M.C. Boro, Retired Commissioner & Secretary, Public Works Roads Department , Government of Assam, at an hourly fee of INR 2500/-(Indian Rupees Two thousand five hundred only)

Section III. Bidding Forms

Section III. Bidding Forms

Table of Forms

1.	Service Provider's Bid	23
2.	Abstract of Price Schedules	24
3.	PRICE SCHEDULE	
	(PART-A): For the Machinery (Computers & peripherals) to be supplied & installed	
	Price Schedule: Goods Manufactured Outside the Purchaser's Country, TO BE IMPORTED	25
	Price Schedule: Goods Manufactured Outside the Purchaser's Country, ALREADY IMPORTED	26
	Price Schedule: Goods Manufactured in the Purchaser's Country	27
	(PART-B): Remuneration of the PFC Operators, Other Key Staff, Charges for Internet	28
	Connectivity etc.	
4.	Qualification Information	29
5.	Bidder Information Form	30
6.	Bidder's JV Members Information Form	31
7.	JOINT VENTURE AGREEMENT	32
8.	Letter of Acceptance	33
9.	Form of Contract	34
10.	Bid Security (Bank Guarantee)	35-36
11.	Bid-Securing Declaration	37

1. Service Provider's Bid

(In the letter head of the bidder)

[This form shall be separate for each package in case a bidder is submitting bids for multiple packages]

[date]

To: [name and address of Employer]

Having examined the bidding documents including addenda No, we offer to execute the [name and identification number of Contract] in accordance with the Conditions of Contract, and the activity schedule accompanying this Bid for the Contract Price of [amount in numbers], [amount in words] [names of currencies].

The Contract shall be paid in the following currencies:

Currency	Amount payable in currency	Inputs for which foreign currency is required
(a)		
(b)		

We accept the appointment of *[name proposed in the Bidding Data Sheet]* as the Adjudicator.

[or]

We do not accept the appointment of *[name proposed in the Bidding Data Sheet]* as the Adjudicator, and propose instead that *[name]* be appointed as Adjudicator, whose daily fees and biographical data are attached.

This Bid and your written acceptance of it shall constitute a binding Contract between us. We understand that you are not bound to accept the lowest or any Bid you receive.

We hereby confirm that this Bid complies with the Bid validity and Bid Security required by the bidding documents and specified in the Bidding Data Sheet.

Commissions or gratuities, if any, paid or to be paid by us to agents relating to this Bid, and to contract execution if we are awarded the contract, are listed below:

Name of Recipient	Address of Recipient	Purpose	Currency Commission or gratuity	Amount

(if none, state "none")

Authorized Signature: ____ Name and Title of Signatory: ____ Name of Bidder: _____ Address: _____

2. Abstract of Price Schedules

[This form shall be separate for each package in case a bidder is submitting bids for multiple packages]

#	Particulars	Currency(ies) of Payment	Total quoted Amount without Goods & Services Taxes (GST) as per Indian laws
1.	Part:A- Price Schedule of the Machinery		
	(Computers & peripherals) to be supplied &		
	installed		
2.	Part:B- Remuneration of the PFC Operators,		
	Other Key Staff, Charges for Internet		
	Connectivity etc.		
	Total Bid Price C=(Part:A+ Part:B)		

Note:

- 1. For the purpose of evaluation and comparison of prices, the quoted prices will be converted to Indian Rupees based on the BC Selling Exchange Rate prevailing on the date of bid opening.
- 2. However, payments shall be made as per currency of the bid (maximum three)

3. PRICE SCHEDULE (PART-A)

Part-A: For the Machinery (Computers & peripherals) to be supplied & installed

(use the formats given below as applicable)

[This form shall be separate for each package in case a bidder is submitting bids for multiple packages]

(a) Price Schedule: Goods Manufactured Outside the Purchaser's Country, TO BE IMPORTED

	(Grou	up C bids, Good	ls to be Importe	ed); Currenci	ies in accordance with ITB 1	5	Date:IFB No:	
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9
SI.	Description of Goods	Country of Origin	Delivery Date as defined by Incoterms	Quantity and physical unit #2	Unit price #1 CIP [insert place of destination] in accordance with ITB 14	CIP Price per line item (Col. 5x6)	Price per line item for inland transportation and other services required in the Purchaser's country to convey the Goods to their final destination specified in BDS	Total Price per Line item (Col. 7+8)
		[insert country of origin of the Good]	[insert quoted Delivery Date]		[insert unit price CIP per unit]	[insert total CIP price per line item]		[insert total price of the line item]
1.	All-in-One Desktop Computer (2 per PFC)							
2.	Laptop Computer (10 nos)							
3.	LaserJet Multi-Function Printer (MFP) for HQ							
4.	USB Web Camera (2 per PFC)		CIP final					
	Finger Print Reader (2 per PFC)		Destination within 120 (one					
6.	UPS-Inverter 2.5KVA - for minimum 4 hours of Power Backup by each. (1 per PFC)		hundred & twenty) days from the date of					
	UPS-Inverter 3.5KVA - for minimum 4 hours of Power Backup by each. (1 per HQ office)		signing of contract					
8.	Wireless Network Router – 4 LAN Ports (1 per PFC)							
	Network Cables (5 mt per PFC)							
	Flatbed Color Image Scanner, USB Powered (2 per PFC)							
	Inkjet Wireless Multi- Function Printer (MFP) (1 per PFC)							
	(r	1	1		1	Gra	and Total Price Excluding taxes	
Nai	ne of Bidder <i>[insert com</i>	plete name of Bi	dder] Signature of	Bidder [signat	ture of person signing the Bid] w	ith Date [Insert Date]		

#1: Bidder shall quote price for those inputs which the Bidder proposes to provide from within the Employer's country (India), in the currency of the Employer's country i.e Indian Rupees only;

#2: The quantity per package shall be as per the as per para 10(i) of the Activity Schedule.

	• •					(b) Price Schedule: Goods Manufactured Outside the Purchaser's Country, ALREADY IMPORTED* [This form shall be separate for each package in case a bidder is submitting bids for multiple packages]								
				<u> </u>	rencies in accordance			<u> </u>	Date: IFB N	0:				
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12			
SI	Description of Goods	Country of Origin	Delivery Date as defined by Incoterms	Quantity and physical unit #1	Unit price including Custom Duties and Import Taxes paid, in accordance with ITB 14.8(c)(i)	Taxes paid per unit -	import taxes, (Col. 6 minus Col.7)		transportation and other services required in the Purchaser's country to convey the goods to their final destination, as specified in BDS	is awarded	per line iter (Col. 9+10)			
	[insert name of Goods]	[insert country of origin of the Good]	[insert quoted Delivery Date]		[insert unit price per unit]	[insert custom duties and taxes paid per unit]	[insert unit price net of custom duties and import taxes]	[insert price per line item net of custom duties and import taxes]	[insert price per line item for inland transportation and other services required in the Purchaser's country]	[insert sales & other taxes payable per item if Contract is awarded]	[insert total price per line item]			
1.	All-in-One Desktop Computer (2 per PFC)													
2.	Laptop Computer (10 Nos.)													
3. 4.	LaserJet Multi-Function Printer (MFP) for HQ Office (2 Nos.) USB Web Camera (2 per PFC)		CIP final Destinati on within											
т. 5.	Finger Print Reader (2 per PFC)		120 (one											
6.	UPS-Inverter 2.5KVA - for minimum 4 hours of Power Backup by each. (1 per PFC)		hundred & twenty) days from											
7.	UPS-Inverter 3.5KVA - for minimum 4 hours of Power Backup by each. (1 per HQ office)		the date of signing of contract											
8.	Wireless Network Router - 4 LAN Ports (1 per PFC)		contract											
9. 10	Network Cables (5 mt per PFC) Flatbed Color Image Scanner, USB Powered (2 per PFC)													
11	Inkjet Wireless Multi-Function Printer (MFP) (1 per PFC)													
									Total Bid Price In Words		<u> </u>			

Signature of Bidder [signature of person signing the Bid] with Date [insert date]

* [For previously imported Goods, the quoted price shall be distinguishable from the original import value of these Goods declared to customs and shall include any rebate or mark-up of the local agent or representative and all local costs except import duties and taxes, which have been and/or have to be paid by the Purchaser. For clarity the bidders are asked to quote the price including import duties, and additionally to provide the import duties and the price net of import duties which is the difference of those values.]

#1: The quantity per package shall be as per the as per para 10(i) of the Activity Schedule.

		[1	i his form sh			je in case a bidder is submitti			
	haser's Country: INDIA		-		· ·	bids) Currencies in accordance		Date:IFB No:	
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
SI.		as defined by Inco terms			price per line item (Col. 4×5)	Price per line item for inland transportation and other services required in the Purchaser's Country to convey the Goods to their final destination	Cost of local labor, raw materials and components from with origin in the Purchaser's Country % of Col. 5	Sales and other taxes payable per line item if Contract is awarded	Total Price per line item (Col. 6+7)
	[insert name of Good]	[insert quoted Delivery Date]		price]		[insert the corresponding price per line item]	[Insert cost of local labor, raw material and components from within the Purchase's country as a % of the EXW price per line item]	[insert sales and other taxes payable per line item if Contract is awarded]	[insert total price per item]
1.	All-in-One Desktop Computer (2 per PFC)								
2.	Laptop Computer								
3.	LaserJet Multi-Function Printer (MFP) for HQ	CIP final							
4.		Destination							
5.	Finger Print Reader (2 per PFC)	within 120 (one							
6.	Backup by each. (1 per PFC)	hundred & twenty) days from the date							
7.	UPS-Inverter 3.5KVA - for minimum 4 hours of Power Backup by each. (1 per PFC)	of signing of contract							
<u>.</u>	Wireless Network Router – 4 LAN Ports (1 per PFC)								
	Network Cables (5 mt per PFC)								
	Flatbed Color Image Scanner, USB Powered (2 per PFC)								
11.	Inkjet Wireless Multi- Function Printer (MFP) (1 per PFC)								
								Total Price	
								In Words	
Sign	ne of Bidder <i>[insert complete</i> ature of Bidder <i>[signature o]</i> e <i>[insert date]</i>								

#1: The Bidder shall quote price for those inputs which the Bidder proposes to provide from within the Employer's country (India), in the currency of the Employer's country i.e Indian Rupees only;

#2: The quantity per package shall be as per the as per para 10(i) of the Activity Schedule.

PRICE SCHEDULE (PART-B)

Part-B: For Remuneration of the PFC Operators, Other Key Staff, Charges for Internet Connectivity etc.

[This form shall be separate for each package in case a bidder is submitting bids for multiple packages]

	Price Schedule: For Ren	nuneration o	f the PFC ()perators, Other Ke	ey Staff, Charges for	r Internet Connectivity etc	C
Date	e: ICB No:				Currencies in accordance	with ITB 15 (#1)	
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8
SI.	Particulars (Refer to the Activity Schedule for further details)	Quantity and physical unit #2	Rate per month	Total for one month per line item (Col. 3×4)	Total for 36 (thirty six) months per line item (Col. 5×36)	Sales (GST) and other taxes payable for 36 (thirty six) months per line item if Contract is awarded	Total Price per line item for 36 (thirty six) months (Col. 6+7)
			[insert EXW unit price]	[insert total EXW price per line item]	[insert the corresponding price per line item]	[insert sales and other taxes payable per line item if Contract is awarded]	[insert total price per item]
	Internet Connectivity of atleast 4Mbps (<i>i.e. minimum 4</i> Mbps for Download and Minimum 1 Mbps for Upload) (1 Connectivity per PFC)						
2.	Remuneration of PFC Operators (2 per PFC)#1						
3.	Remuneration of Team Leader (1 per package)						
4.	Remuneration of Sr. System Administrator (1 per package)						
5.	Remuneration of Sr. Network Administrator (1 per package)						
6.	Remuneration of System & Network Administrators (SNA) (1 per district)						
	Remuneration of the Helpdesk Operator (2 per package)						
	Remuneration of the Support Staff (2 per package)						
	Set up, maintenance cost for Machinery (computer & peripherals), Administrative Management, management, etc. (No. of PFCs+ 1 HQ)						
	Insurance coverage charges for the Machinery (for Machineries and equipment in each PFC and in the HQ) per PFC+HQ						
	Printing Charges per A4 size paper for printing acknowledge receipt (Per copy rate)						
12.	Company Overheads per Package						
						Total Price	
						In Words	

Name of Bidder *[insert complete name of Bidder]*; Signature of Bidder *[signature of person signing the Bid]*; Date *[insert date]*

#1:The quoted staff remuneration rates shall not be less than minimum wage rate fixed by the Government of Assam for skilled workers, which is revised every year by the Government of Assam based on based on the "Consumer Price Index".

#2: The quantity per package shall be as per the as per para 14 of the Activity Schedule

3. Qualification Information

[This form shall be separate for each package in case a bidder is submitting bids for multiple packages]

1. Individual Bidders or Individual Members of Joint Ventures

1.1 Constitution or legal status of Bidder: [attach copy]

Place of registration: [insert]

Principal place of business: *[insert]*

Address for postal communication:

Email Address and contact Telephone numbers including Cell Phone numbers:

Power of attorney of signatory of Bid: [attach]

- **1.2** a) Total annual volume of Services performed **i.e. Turn Over in each of the last ten (10) years**, in the internationally traded currency specified in the BDS:
 - b) The annual volume of Services i.e. Average Annual Turnover in each of the last three years (2017-18; 2016-17 & 2015-16) [Ref. ITB 5.3]:
- **1.3** Services performed as prime Service Provider on the provision of Services of a similar nature and volume over the last five years. The values should be indicated in the same currency used for Item 1.2 above. Also list details of work under way or committed, including expected completion date.

	Project name and country	Name of employer and contact person	Type of Services provided and year of completion	Value of contract
(a) (b)				

1.4 Major items of Service Provider's Equipment proposed for carrying out the Services. List all information requested below. Refer also to ITB.Sub Clause 5.5(c)

	Item of equipment	Description, make, and age (years)	Condition (new, good, poor) and number available	Owned, leased (from whom?), or to be purchased (from whom?)
(a)				
(b)				

1.5 Qualifications and experience of key personnel proposed for administration and execution of the Contract. Attach biographical data. Refer also to ITB Sub-Clause 5.5(d) and GCC Clause

	Position	Name	Years of experience (general)	Years of experience in proposed position
(a)				
(b)				

1.6 Proposed subcontracts and firms involved. Refer to GCC Clause 3

	Sections of the Services	Value of subcontract	Subcontractor (name and address)	Experience in providing similar Services
(a)				
(b)				

1.7 Financial reports for the last five years: balance sheets, profit and loss statements, auditors' reports, etc. List below and attach copies

1.8 Evidence of access to financial resources to meet the qualification requirements: cash in hand, lines of credit, etc. List below and attach copies of support documents. We certify/confirm that we comply with eligibility requirements as per ITB Clause 4

1.9 Name, address, and telephone, telex, and facsimile numbers of banks that may provide references if contacted by the Employer

1.10 Information regarding any litigation, current or within the last five years, in which the Bidder is or has been involved

	Other party(ies)	Cause of dispute	Details of litigation award	Amount involved
(a)				
(b)				

- 1.11 Statement of compliance with the requirements of ITB Sub-Clause 4.2
- 1.12 Proposed Program (service work method and schedule). Descriptions, drawings, and charts, as necessary, to comply with the requirements of the bidding documents

2. Joint Ventures

- 2.1 The information listed in **1.1 1.11** above shall be provided for each partner of the joint venture.
- 2.2 The information in **1.12** above shall be provided for the joint venture.
- 2.3 Attach the power of attorney of the signatory(ies) of the Bid authorizing signature of the Bid on behalf of the joint venture.
- 2.4 Attach the Agreement among all partners of the joint venture (and which is legally binding on all partners), which shows that
 - (a) all partners shall be jointly and severally liable for the execution of the Contract in accordance with the Contract terms;
 - (b) one of the partners will be nominated as being in charge, authorized to incur liabilities, and receive instructions for and on behalf of any and all partners of the joint venture; and
 - (c) the execution of the entire Contract, including payment, shall be done exclusively with the partner in charge.

Note:

Pursuant to ITB 5.6 (b): The figures for each of the partners of a Joint Venture shall be added together to determine the Bidder's compliance with the minimum qualifying criteria of ITB Sub-Clause 5.5 (a), (b), (C), (d) and (e); and

Pursuant to ITB 5.6 (c): However, for a Joint Venture to qualify the partner in charge must meet at least 40 percent of those minimum criteria for an individual Bidder and other partners at least 25% of the criteria. Failure to comply with this requirement will result in rejection of the joint venture's Bid.

3. Additional Requirements

3.1 Bidders should provide any additional information required in the BDS and to fulfil the requirements of ITB Sub-Clause **5.1**, if applicable.

Note: Bidders have the option to Bid for any one or more packages. Bids will be evaluated package-wise, taking into account discounts offered, if any, for combined packages. The contract(s) will be awarded to the Bidder or Bidders offering the lowest evaluated cost to the Employer for combined packages, <u>subject</u> to the selected Bidder(s) meeting the required qualification criteria for combination of packages as the case may be.

5. Bidder Information Form

[The Bidder shall fill in this Form in accordance with the instructions indicated below. No alterations to its format shall be permitted and no substitutions shall be accepted.]

Date: [insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid Submission] ICB No.: [insert number of bidding process] Alternative No.: [insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative]

Page _____ of_ ____ pages

1. Bidder's Name [insert Bidder's legal name]

2. In case of JV, legal name of each member : [insert legal name of each member in JV]

3. Bidder's actual or intended country of registration: [insert actual or intended country of registration]

4. Bidder's year of registration: [insert Bidder's year of registration]

5. Bidder's Address in country of registration: [insert Bidder's legal address in country of registration]

6. Bidder's Authorized Representative Information

Name: [insert Authorized Representative's name]

Address: [insert Authorized Representative's Address]

Telephone/Fax numbers: [insert Authorized Representative's telephone/fax numbers]

Email Address: [insert Authorized Representative's email address]

7. Attached are copies of original documents of [check the box(es) of the attached original documents]

□ Articles of Incorporation (or equivalent documents of constitution or association), and/or documents of registration of the legal entity named above, in accordance with ITB 4.3.

□ In case of JV, letter of intent to form JV or JV agreement, in accordance with ITB 4.1.

□ In case of Government-owned enterprise or institution, in accordance with ITB 4.5 documents establishing:

- Legal and financial autonomy
- Operation under commercial law
- Establishing that the Bidder is not dependent agency of the Purchaser

2. Included are the organizational chart, a list of Board of Directors, and the beneficial ownership.

6. Bidder's JV Members Information Form

[The Bidder shall fill in this Form in accordance with the instructions indicated below. The following table shall be filled in for the Bidder and for each member of a Joint Venture]].

Date: [insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid Submission]

ICB No.: [insert number of bidding process]

Alternative No.: [insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative]

Page _____ of ____ pages

1. Bidder's Name: [insert Bidder's legal name]

2. Bidder's JV Member's name: [insert JV's Member legal name]

3. Bidder's JV Member's country of registration: [insert JV's Member country of registration]

4. Bidder's JV Member's year of registration: [insert JV's Member year of registration]

5. Bidder's JV Member's legal address in country of registration: [insert JV's Member legal address in country of registration]

6. Bidder's JV Member's authorized representative information

Name: [insert name of JV's Member authorized representative]

Address: [insert address of JV's Member authorized representative]

Telephone/Fax numbers: [insert telephone/fax numbers of JV's Member authorized representative]

Email Address: [insert email address of JV's Member authorized representative]

- 7. Attached are copies of original documents of [check the box(es) of the attached original documents]
- □ Articles of Incorporation (or equivalent documents of constitution or association), and/or registration documents of the legal entity named above, in accordance with ITB 4.3.
- □ In case of a Government-owned enterprise or institution, documents establishing legal and financial autonomy, operation in accordance with commercial law, and absence of dependent status, in accordance with ITB 4.5.

2. Included are the organizational chart, a list of Board of Directors, and the beneficial ownership.

7. JOINT VENTURE AGREEMENT

PERFORMA FOR JOINT VENTURE AGREEMENT/CONSORTIUM BETWEEN M/s. and M/s..... and M/s..... and M/s.....

For ICB No.....ofof

Ioint Venture Agreement executed on this dav ofbetween The M/s....., a company under the Laws of Company Act, 1956 and having its registered office at and Corporate Office at successors, Executers and permitted Assigns) AND M/s..... а company having its registered office at successors, Executors and permitted Assigns)

M/s..... а company AND having its registered office at successors, Executors and permitted Assigns) for the purpose of making a Bid and entering into a contract (in case of award) for *u* ICB

WHEREAS, the EMPLOYER invited Bids as per above mentioned tender Document for the "......"

WHEREAS in accordance with Instruction to Bidders – clause 4 "Eligible Bidders" of the Tender Specification. A Bidder may be a private entity or a government-owned entity – subject to ITB 4.5 – or any combination of such entities with the intent to enter into an agreement supported by a letter of intent or under an agreement in the form of a Joint Venture or consortium.

NOW THIS INDENTURE WITNESSETH AS UNDER

In consideration of the above premises and agreements all the partners to this Joint Venture do hereby now agree as follows :

LEAD PARTNER :

PARTNER – A :

PARTNER – B :

If in the determination of the Employer that the LEAD PARTNER is unable to fulfill its responsibility as above, the Employer shall be at liberty to terminate the contract which shall be binding on all partners of the Joint Venture.

2. In case of any breach of the said Contract by the LEAD PARTNER or other Partners of the Joint Venture Agreement, the Partner(s) do hereby agree to be fully responsible for the successful performance of the Contract and to carry out all the obligations and responsibilities under the Contract in accordance with the requirements of the Contract.

- 3. Further, if the Employer suffers any loss or damage on account of any breach in the Contract or any shortfall in meeting the performance guaranteed as per the works Contract, the Partner(s) of these presents undertake to promptly make good such loss or damages caused to the Employer, on its demands without any demur. It shall not be necessary or obligatory for the Employer to proceed against LEAD PARTNER to these presents before proceeding against or dealing with other Partner(s).
- 4. The financial liability of the Partners of this Joint Venture agreement to the Employer, with respect to any of the claims arising out of the performance or non-performance of the obligations set forth in the said Joint Venture Agreement, read in conjunction with the relevant conditions of the Contract shall, however, not be limited in any way so as to restrict or limit the liabilities of any of the Partners of the Joint Venture agreement.
- 5. It is expressly understood and agreed between the Partners to this Joint Venture agreement that the responsibilities and obligations of each of the Partners has been delineated in clause no. 1 herein above to this agreement. It is further agreed by the Partners that the above sharing of responsibilities and obligations shall not in any way be a limitation of joint responsibilities of the Partners under this Contract.
- 7. It is further agreed that the Joint Venture agreement shall be irrevocable and shall form an integral part of the contract, and shall continue to be enforceable till the Employer discharges the same. It shall be effective from the date first mentioned above for all purposes and intents.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Partners to the Joint Venture Agreement have through their Authorized Representatives executed these presents and affixed Common Seals of their companies, on the day, month and year first mentioned above.

[Name, Signature of all Joint Venture Partners]

[Name and Signature of Witnesses]

10. Bid Security (Bank Guarantee)

[The Bank shall fill in this Bank Guarantee Form in accordance with the instructions indicated.]

Beneficiary: _____

Date: __

BID GUARANTEE No.:

We have been informed that ______ (hereinafter called "the Bidder") has submitted to you its bid dated (hereinafter called "the Bid") for the execution of ______ under Invitation for Bids No. _____ ("the IFB").

Furthermore, we understand that, according to your conditions, bids must be supported by a bid guarantee.

At the request of the Bidder, we ______ hereby irrevocably undertake to pay you any sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of ______ (_____) upon receipt by us of your first demand in writing accompanied by a written statement stating that the Bidder is in breach of its obligation(s) under the bid conditions, because the Bidder:

- (a) has withdrawn its Bid during the period of bid validity specified by the Bidder in the Form of Bid; or
- (b) having been notified of the acceptance of its Bid by the Purchaser during the period of bid validity, (i) fails or refuses to execute the Contract Form; or (ii) fails or refuses to furnish the performance security, if required, in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders.

This guarantee will expire: (a) if the Bidder is the successful bidder, upon our receipt of copies of the contract signed by the Bidder and the performance security issued to you upon the instruction of the Bidder; or (b) if the Bidder is not the successful bidder, upon the earlier of -

- (i) our receipt of a copy of your notification to the Bidder of the name of the successful bidder; or
- (ii) twenty-eight (28) days after the expiration of the Bidder's Bid.

Consequently, any demand for payment under this guarantee must be received by us at the office on or before that date.

This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees, ICC Publication No. 458.

[signature(s)]

Note: The Bank must include the Complete postal Address of the Branch including the contact email address of the respective managers and signatories of the BG, telephone & fax numbers of the Bank

11. Bid-Securing Declaration

[The Bidder shall fill in this Form in accordance with the instructions indicated.]

Date:	
Bid No.:	
Alternative No.:	

То:_____

We, the undersigned, declare that:

We understand that, according to your conditions, bids must be supported by a Bid-Securing Declaration.

We accept that we will automatically be suspended from being eligible for bidding in any contract with the Purchaser for the period of time of ______ starting on ______, if we are in breach of our obligation(s) under the bid conditions, because we:

- (a) have withdrawn our Bid during the period of bid validity specified in the Form of Bid; or
- (b) having been notified of the acceptance of our Bid by the Purchaser during the period of bid validity, (i) fail or refuse to execute the Contract; or (ii) fail or refuse to furnish the Performance Security, if required, in accordance with the ITB.

We understand this Bid Securing Declaration shall expire if we are not the successful Bidder, upon the earlier of (i) our receipt of your notification to us of the name of the successful Bidder; or (ii) twenty-eight days after the expiration of our Bid.

Note: The Surety must include its Complete postal Address including the contact email address of the respective managers and signatories of the BS, telephone & fax numbers of the Surety.

Section IV. Eligible Countries

Eligibility for the Provision of Goods, Works and Services in Bank-Financed Procurement

1. In accordance with Para 1.8 of the Guidelines: Procurement under IBRD Loans and IDA Credits, dated **July 2014**, the Bank permits firms and individuals from all countries to offer goods, works and services for Bankfinanced projects. As an exception, firms of a Country or goods manufactured in a Country may be excluded if:

- Para 1.8 (a) (i): as a matter of law or official regulation, the Borrower's Country prohibits commercial relations with that Country, provided that the Bank is satisfied that such exclusion does not preclude effective competition for the supply of the Goods or Works required, or
- Para 1.8 (a) (ii): by an Act of Compliance with a Decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations, the Borrower's Country prohibits any import of goods from that Country or any payments to persons or entities in that Country.

2. For the information of borrowers and bidders, at the present time firms, goods and services from the following countries are excluded from this bidding:

- (a) With reference to paragraph 1.8 (a) (i) of the Guidelines: **None**
- (b) With reference to paragraph 1.8 (a) (ii) of the Guidelines: **None**

Section V. Bank Policy - Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices

Guidelines for Procurement of Goods, Works, and Non-Consulting Services under IBRD Loans and IDA Credits & Grants by World Bank Borrowers, dated July 2014.

"Fraud and Corruption:

- 1.16 It is the Bank's policy to require that Borrowers (including beneficiaries of Bank loans), bidders, suppliers, contractors and their agents (whether declared or not), sub-contractors, sub-consultants, service providers or suppliers, and any personnel thereof, observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement and execution of Bank-financed contracts.¹ In pursuance of this policy, the Bank:
 - (a) defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows:
 - (i) "corrupt practice" is the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence improperly the actions of another party;²;
 - (ii) "fraudulent practice" is any act or omission, including a misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to obtain a financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;³
 - (iii) "collusive practice" is an arrangement between two or more parties designed to achieve an improper purpose, including to influence improperly the actions of another party;⁴
 - (iv) "coercive practice" is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence improperly the actions of a party;⁵
 - (v) "obstructive practice" is:
 - (aa) deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering, or concealing of evidence material to the investigation or making false statements to investigators in order to materially impede a Bank investigation into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive or collusive practice; and/or threatening, harassing or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to the investigation or from pursuing the investigation, or
 - (bb) acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the Bank's inspection and audit rights provided for under paragraph 1.16(e) below.
 - (b) will reject a proposal for award if it determines that the bidder recommended for award, or any of its personnel, or its agents, or its sub-consultants, sub-contractors, service providers, suppliers and/or their employees, has, directly or indirectly, engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices in competing for the contract in question;
 - (c) will declare misprocurement and cancel the portion of the loan allocated to a contract if it determines at any time that representatives of the Borrower or of a recipient of any part of the proceeds of the loan engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices during the procurement or the implementation of the contract in question, without the Borrower having taken

¹ In this context, any action to influence the procurement process or contract execution for undue advantage is improper.

For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "another party" refers to a public official acting in relation to the procurement process or contract execution. In this context, "public official" includes World Bank staff and employees of other organizations taking or reviewing procurement decisions.

³ For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "party" refers to a public official; the terms "benefit" and "obligation" relate to the procurement process or contract execution; and the "act or omission" is intended to influence the procurement process or contract execution.

⁴ For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "parties" refers to participants in the procurement process (including public officials) attempting either themselves, or through another person or entity not participating in the procurement or selection process, to simulate competition or to establish bid prices at artificial, non-competitive levels, or are privy to each other's bid prices or other conditions.

⁵ For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "party" refers to a participant in the procurement process or contract execution.

timely and appropriate action satisfactory to the Bank to address such practices when they occur, including by failing to inform the Bank in a timely manner at the time they knew of the practices;

- (d) will sanction a firm or individual, at any time, in accordance with the prevailing Bank's sanctions procedures,⁶ including by publicly declaring such firm or individual ineligible, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time: (i) to be awarded a Bank-financed contract; and (ii) to be a nominated⁷;
- (e) will require that a clause be included in bidding documents and in contracts financed by a Bank loan, requiring bidders, suppliers and contractors, and their sub-contractors, agents, personnel, consultants, service providers, or suppliers, to permit the Bank to inspect all accounts, records, and other documents relating to the submission of bids and contract performance, and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the Bank."

⁶ A firm or individual may be declared ineligible to be awarded a Bank financed contract upon: (i) completion of the Bank's sanctions proceedings as per its sanctions procedures, including, inter alia, cross-debarment as agreed with other International Financial Institutions, including Multilateral Development Banks, and through the application the World Bank Group corporate administrative procurement sanctions procedures for fraud and corruption; and (ii) as a result of temporary suspension or early temporary suspension in connection with an ongoing sanctions proceeding. See footnote 14 and paragraph 8 of Appendix 1 of these Guidelines.

A nominated sub-contractor, consultant, manufacturer or supplier, or service provider (different names are used depending on the particular bidding document) is one which has either been: (i) included by the bidder in its pre-qualification application or bid because it brings specific and critical experience and know-how that allow the bidder to meet the qualification requirements for the particular bid; or (ii) appointed by the Borrower.

PART 2 – Activity Schedule Section VI. Activity Schedule

Section VI - Activity Schedule

PROCUREMENT OF NON-CONSULTING SERVICES

Activity Schedule for

For the Service Provider Agency (SPA) for providing Non-Consulting Services for Setting-up and Management of the Public Facilitation Centers (PFCs) in the districts of Assam *(excluding the seven districts under the Sixth-Schedule Autonomous Councils)* for providing services under the ARTPS Act, 2012

(A) Background

- 1. The Government of Assam (GoA) is committed to improve governance in the State and public sector performance. The GoA has recognized the need to strengthen the delivery of citizen-centric service, and had therefore enacted the Assam Right to Public Services Act, 2012 (ARTPS) to ensure citizens' access to public services in timely, efficient and accountable manner. The Act enables the citizens of Assam to get notified public services within a stipulated timeframe and also fixes responsibilities on public servants to provide these services in a time-bound manner. The GoA has already embarked upon a number of specific initiatives to support this objective and they include: RTI, a public grievance redress system, e-District, Common Service Centers (CSC) and establishment of State e-Governance infrastructure.
- 2. To strengthen and deepen these initiatives, GoA has received a loan of \$39.20 million from the World Bank towards the 'Assam Citizen-Centric Service Delivery Project' (ACCSDP) [Project ID: P150308, IBRD Loan No. 8754-IN]. The ACCSDP aims to improve citizen access to targeted services under the ARTPS Act. Citizens of Assam, especially the rural communities who are heavily dependent on government services, are the principal beneficiary group of the project. The project places citizens at the centre of the service delivery process by strengthening feedback mechanisms and grievance redress.
- 3. **The Project Development Objective** is to improve access in the delivery of selected public services in Assam. ACCSDP will also strengthen institutional operations, improve citizen awareness and expand access to services to benefit the rural poor. The project design is pivoted around four interrelated components: (i) strengthening RTPS implementation; (ii) improving service delivery processes; (iii) setting up PFCs to receive requests for RTPS services and electronically deliver select services to the citizens; and (iv) promoting citizen engagement. More details about the project may be seen in the Project Appraisal Document at http://documents.worldbank.org/curated/en/151391503585044320/pdf/INDIA-ASSAM-PAD-05092017.pdf
- 4. The Project is being implemented by the Assam Rural Infrastructure and Agricultural Services (ARIAS) Society, an autonomous body created by the GoA in November 1998. The Society is headed by the Chief Secretary, Assam as its President (*of the Project Guidance Council*) and the Agriculture Production Commissioner, Assam as the Chairman (*of the Governing Body*). The Project Management Unit (PMU) created within the ARIAS Society is headed by a State Project Director (SPD), who is the **client** for this assignment, on behalf of the ARIAS Society and the Administrative Reforms & Training Department, Assam.
- 5. ACCSDP will facilitate implementation of the ARTPS Act with efficiency and accountability for better delivery of citizen-centric services under ARTPS Act and will support the line Deptts. A high-level RTPS Delivery Unit (RDU) is envisaged to be established to monitor the implementation of the ARTPS Act.
 - A blend of technological interventions and administrative reforms for the targeted ARTPS services to be taken-up under the project in the districts.
 - The project to provide for the targeted ARTPS services in the other districts under the four Govt. agencies, viz. Transport, Revenue & Disaster Management, Welfare of Plain Tribes & Backward Classes (WPT&BC) and the Guwahati Municipal Corporation (GMC). Some more departments are also likely to join in due course.
 - The project to assist implementing line Deptts/agencies and the Six Schedule Autonomous Councils in restructuring business processes so that citizens can access services digitally within the given timeline of ARTPS Act.
- 6. The ACCSDP intends to intensify delivery of RTPS services through Public Facilitation Centers (PFCs) at the block, circle and district levels, including provisioning of required minimum staffing to deliver RTPS services. The client expects that PFCs will be the delivery vehicle through which citizens will assess the

RTPS services, in case they are not able to avail the same from their home or nearest Common Service centre (CSC). The PFCs therefore are required to emerge as model centers for providing the RTPS services in the true spirit of the ARTPS Act.

(B) Objective of the assignment

- 7. The PMU is seeking to engage a Service Provider Agency (SPA) for setting up and managing the **Public Facilitation Centers (PFC)** at the DC offices, SDO offices, Circle Offices, Block offices and certain other designated offices in the districts (excluding the districts under Six Schedule Autonomous Councils, as a separate SPA will be engaged for these districts) for registering and tracking applications for RTPS services; and delivery of the targeted services..
 - a) The agency shall have to Supply and install the machines (computers & peripherals), internet connectivity (of minimum 4 Mbps for Download and minimum 1 Mbps for upload), power conditionings & backup equipment and qualified Service Center Operators to ensure that the PFCs are fully operational and functional⁸.
 - b) The agency also has to **provide maintenance and support service for the machines** (computers & peripherals), internet connectivity, power conditionings & backup equipment for at least 3 years, which may be extended based on mutually agreed terms & conditions.
 - c) The PFCs shall be setup in the districts.
 - d) The package wise no. of PFC and related districts under each packages are furnished below (**The detailed location list may be seen at Annex-2**):

Package	Approximate Nos. of PFCs	Districts
Package-1	63	Dhubri, South Salmara, Bongaigaon, Goalpara, Barpeta (5 Dists)
Package-2	60	Nalbari, Kamrup Rural, Kamrup Metro, Darrang, Morigaon (5 Dists)
Package-3	56	Sonitpur, Biswanath, Lakhimpur Dhemaji (4 Dists)
Package-4	40	Charaideo, Dibrugarh, Sibsagar, Tinsukia (4 Dists)
Package-5	62	Nagaon, Golaghat, Majuli, Hojai, Jorhat (5 Dists)
Package-6	47	Cachar, Karimganj, Hailakandi (3 Dists)

Note: Bidders have the option to Bid for any one or more packages. Bids will be evaluated package-wise, taking into account discounts offered, if any, for combined packages. The contract(s) will be awarded to the Bidder or Bidders offering the lowest evaluated cost to the Employer for combined packages, subject to the selected Bidder(s) meeting the required qualification criteria for combination of packages as the case may be.

e) This is a Service Level Agreement (SLA) based assignment and the Service Provider Agency (SPA) shall adhere to the SLA for payments for implementing the assignment.

(C) Scope of Services: The Tasks to be carried out by the SPA include the following:

- 8. To ensure that the PFCs are fully operational and functional, the SPA shall have to provide the following at each of the PFCs during the performance of the contract.
 - a) **Machines (computers & peripherals):** The SPA shall provide computers (as per specifications provided in this Activity Schedule) along with necessary IT and power backup equipment;
 - b) **Internet Connectivity:** The SPA shall provide internet connectivity of **atleast** *minimum* **4** *Mbps* (Megabits Per Second) *for Download and Minimum* **1** *Mbps for Upload*) at each PFC;
 - c) **Public Facilitation Center (PFC) Operators**: The SPA shall provide at least two (2) qualified PFC operators at each PFCs *inter alia* to accept the applications from the citizens, register the service application on RTPS portal *and forward the service applications using electronic means to concerned line departments*. The operators shall also provide the acknowledgement receipt of application of the citizens and also acknowledgement receipt of the certificates/documents issued by the concerned service delivery departments which are delivered by the PFC to the citizens.

⁸ Fully operational PFCs would entail fully equipped centers with adequately trained staff that functions at least 8 hours on all working days to receive RTPS service requests; and deliver targeted set of RTPS services, using electronic means

d) **Ensure that PFCs are fully operational:** The SPA shall ensure that each of the PFCs are operational at least from **9:30am to 5:30pm** in a day on all working days of the State Government (with one hour lunch break in between).

9. Number of PFCs to be setup:

a) The package wise number of PFCs to be setup is furnished below (locations may be seen at Annex-2):

Package	Approximate Nos. of PFCs	Districts
Package-1	63	Dhubri, South Salmara, Bongaigaon, Goalpara, Barpeta (5 Dists)
Package-2	60	Nalbari, Kamrup Rural, Kamrup Metro, Darrang, Morigaon (5 Dists)
Package-3	56	Sonitpur, Biswanath, Lakhimpur Dhemaji (4 Dists)
Package-4	40	Charaideo, Dibrugarh, Sibsagar, Tinsukia (4 Dists)
Package-5	62	Nagaon, Golaghat, Majuli, Hojai, Jorhat (5 Dists)
Package-6	47	Cachar, Karimganj, Hailakandi (3 Dists)

- b) Bidders have the option to Bid for any one or more packages. However, the Bidder shall quote for all the PFCs in a package or else the bid will be rejected.
- c) However, number of PFCs may be increased or decreased (by 15% +ve or -ve) during contract period.
- d) The bid prices to be quoted by the SPA shall be on the per PFC basis as per the price schedule given in the bidding document.
- e) The client may ask SPA to redeploy one or more PFC(s) (including the manpower, the equipment, etc.) to another location. In such case, SPA shall redeploy the PFC(s) at the location identified by the client and the minimal transportation cost will be paid separately by the client. Provisioning of Machines (Computer & Peripherals):

10. Provisioning of Machines (Computer & Peripherals)

a) The SPA shall have to Supply and Install computers **in each of the PFCs** along with necessary IT and power backup equipment etc. as mentioned below:

SI.	Type of Machines	Nos.	Minimum Requirement Specifications
(i) F	or each PFCs		
1.	All in one Desktop	2	Processor: 64 Bit, Minimum Dual Core Processor, Minimum 2.4 GHz Frequency or higher, 4MB Cache or higher
	Computers		Memory: 4 GB DDR4 RAM expandable to 8 GB or Higher
			Hard Disk: At least 1 TB HDD, 7200 RPM, SATA III 6 Gbps or higher
			Chipset and Motherboard : Chipset and Motherboard of the same OEM of the Processor
			Connectivity/Ports : Minimum <u>two</u> USB 3.0 and <u>two</u> USB 2.0 or higher, Integrated 10/100/1000 Mb Ethernet LAN, Wireless (Wi-fi), Bluetooth, HDMI, External VGA Port
			Optical Drive: CD/DVD Reader
			Audio: 1 High Definition Integrated Audio port (Head phone/ microphone combo), with Internal Speaker
			Display: 19 inches LED Monitor or Higher
			Operating System: Open Source Operating System (Ubuntu/Cent OS or similar)
			Mouse: Wired USB Optical Mouse
			Keyboard: Standard, Wired USB, Multimedia Keys
			Warranty : 3 years warranty for the repair or replacement of defective parts of the desktop computer. The SPA shall be responsible for the setup, maintenance and support for the desktops computers installed at the PFCs during the contract period.
2.	Extra Display Monitor	2	19 inches LED Monitor or Higher (with each all-in-one desktop computer) for citizens to view the data entry
3.	Web Camera	2	USB Web Camera : 5-megapixel snapshots, Built-in mic with noise reduction, USB 2.0 of higher. The device shall be compatible both with Open Source Linux and Windows operating systems.
			Warranty: 3 years warranty for the repair or replacement of defective parts of the web camera. The SPA shall be responsible for the setup, maintenance and support for web camera installed at the PFCs during the contract period.

Sl.	Type of Machines	Nos.	Minimum Requirement Specifications
4.	Inkjet Wireless Multi-Function Printer (MFP)	1	MFP Printer: The <u>Inkjet</u> Wireless MFP Printer shall have the facility for Print, Scan & Copy, at least 20 PPM (Black & White, A4 size paper) or Higher, shall have refillable ink tank. The device shall be compatible both with Open Source Linux and Windows operating systems. The printer shall also be functional on wire in case wireless port fails. Connectivity : Wifi, USB and Ethernet.
			Warranty: 3 years warranty for the repair or replacement of defective parts of the MFP Printer. The SPA shall be responsible for the setup, maintenance and support for MFP Printer installed at the PFCs during the contract period. The SPA shall also be responsible for refilling/replacing the printer cartridges and other consumables (i.e. A4 paper) whenever needed. Quantity: 1 (one) no. per PFC. (<i>The SPA shall not quote for the consumables in the quoted rates, but instead quote for printing cost of acknowledgement receipts to be issued to the citizens on per A4 page basis</i>)
5.	Flatbed Color Image Scanner	2	Flatbed Color Image Scanner: Flatbed Color Image Scanner, USB Powered, Optical Resolution: 4800 x 4800 dpi scanning, USB Connectivity, Scan Speed: Below 10 sec, Document size: A4/Letter (216x297 mm). The device shall be compatible both with Open Source Linux and Windows operating systems;
6.	Finger Print Reader with related driver	2	USB fingerprint scanner with related driver (<i>For recording attendance of the PFC Operators through the NMS/ remote monitoring software to be provided by the client):</i> STQC certified Optical USB fingerprint sensor with 500 DPI resolution. Platen area of minimum 18mm X 13mm or higher . The device shall be compatible both with Open Source Linux and Windows operating systems. Warranty: 3 years warranty for the repair or replacement of defective parts of the Finger Print Scanner. The SPA shall be responsible for the setup, maintenance and support for Finger Print Scanner installed at the PFCs during the contract period.
7.	Power Backup (UPS-Inverter & Battery)	1	 The SPA shall be responsible for the supply of <u>UPS-Inverter</u> power backup equipment for minimum four (4) hours of backup, including supply of required batteries with connectors and battery rack, setting up the UPS-Inverter, provide maintenance support. Quantity: 1 (one) no. for each PFC. The UPS Inverter shall have the following minimum specifications: Capacity: Minimum 2.5 KVA Output Format: Pure Sine Wave Operating Frequency: 50Hz or 60Hz with +/-5% Input Voltage: Minimum 120 V; Output Voltage: Minimum 220 V Phase: Single Phase Transfer Time: Less than 5 millisecond Battery: Tubular Technology Battery, Operation Hours: Atleast for four (4) hours of back-up operation (for 2 Computers, 2 USB Flatbed Scanner, 1 multifunctional Printers, network equipment (1 router/ switch) and 2 LED bulbs of 20W each & 2 ceiling Fans) Warranty: 3 years warranty for the repair or replacement of any defective parts of the UPS-Inverter and Battery supplied by the SPA.
8.	Wireless Network Router	1	 Wireless Network Router having Frequency Range 2.4 GHz to 2.497 GHz, Minimum 4 10/100 LAN ports, one 10/100 WAN (Internet) port, IEEE 802.11n/g/b, 5dBi omni-directional External Antenna, Repeater mode- or higher Warranty: 3 years warranty for the repair or replacement of any defective parts of the wireless router. The SPA shall be responsible for the setup, maintenance and support for wireless router installed at the PFCs during the contract period.
9.	Network Cables	4	 Minimum 5 meters long - Cat-6 Network cables with RJ45 connectors at both the ends for networking the computers & printers and to ensure Internet Connectivity at the PFC. Warranty: 3 years warranty for the repair or replacement of any defective Network Cables. The SPA shall be responsible for setup, maintenance and support for network cables supplied by the SPA.

Sl.			Minimum Requirement Specifications
	· ·	Manag	gement-cum-HelpDesk Office')
1.	All in one Desktop	4	Processor: 64 Bit, Minimum Dual Core Processor , Minimum 2.4 GHz Frequency or higher, 4MB Cache or higher
	Computers		Memory: 4 GB DDR4 RAM expandable to 8 GB or Higher
			Hard Disk: At least 1 TB HDD, 7200 RPM, SATA III 6 Gbps or higher
			Chipset and Motherboard : Chipset and Motherboard of the same OEM of the Processor
			Connectivity/Ports : Minimum <u>two</u> USB 3.0 and <u>two</u> USB 2.0 or higher, Integrated 10/100/1000 Mb Ethernet LAN, Wireless (Wi-fi), Bluetooth, HDMI, External VGA Port
			Optical Drive: CD/DVD Reader
			Camera: Built-In WebCam with mic
			Audio: 1 High Definition Integrated Audio port (Head phone/ microphone combo), with Internal Speaker
			Display: 19 inches LED Monitor or Higher
			Operating System: Open Source Operating System (Ubuntu/Cent OS or similar)
			Mouse: Wired USB Optical Mouse
			Keyboard: Standard, Wired USB, Multimedia Keys
			Warranty : 3 years warranty for the repair or replacement of defective parts of the desktop computer. The SPA shall be responsible for the setup, maintenance and support for the desktops computers installed at the PFCs during the contract period.
2.	Laptop	10	Processor: 64 Bit, Quad Core Processor, Minimum 3.0 GHz Frequency or
	Computers		higher, 4MB Cache or higher Memory : 4 GB DDR4 RAM expandable to 32 GB or Higher
			Hard Disk: At least 1 TB HDD
			Connectivity : 3 USB, LAN, Wireless (Wi-fi), HDMI, VGA, Bluetooth, 3-in-1 Card Reader (SD, SDHC, SDXC)
			Audio: 1 High Definition Integrated Audio port (Head phone/ microphone combo), Integrated Single Digital Microphone with Integrated Stereo Speaker
			Camera: Integrated Camera with minimum 5-megapixel snapshots, Built-in mic with noise reduction
			Optical Drives: CD/DVD writer
			Screen : 14 inches HD LED Backlit Widescreen Display or Higher, Minimum 1366 x 768 Pixel
			Weight: Less than or equal to 2.5 Kg
			Operating System & software to be installed: Open Source Operating System (Ubuntu/Cent OS or similar);
			Warranty : 3 years warranty for the repair or replacement of defective parts of the Laptops. The SPA shall be responsible for the setup, maintenance and support for the laptop computers supplied by the SPA.
3.	Web Camera	6	USB Web Camera : 5-megapixel snapshots, Built-in mic with noise reduction, USB 2.0 of higher. The device shall be compatible with Linux, Windows operating systems.
			Warranty: 3 years warranty for the repair or replacement of defective parts of the web camera. The SPA shall be responsible for the setup, maintenance and support for web camera installed at the PFCs during the contract period.
4.	Multi-Function Printer (MFP)	1	The LaserJet MFP shall have the facility for Print, Scan(color) & Copy, at least 20 PPM (Black & White, A4 size paper) or Higher Warranty : 3 years warranty for the repair or replacement of defective parts of the MFP Printer. The SPA shall be responsible for the setup, maintenance and support for MFP Printer supplied by the SPA. The SPA shall also be responsible for refilling/replacing the printer cartridges and other consumables (i.e. A4 paper) whenever needed.

Sl.	Type of Machines	Nos.	Minimum Requirement Specifications
5.	Finger Print Reader	6	USB fingerprint scanner (For recording attendance of the Resources): STQC certified Optical USB fingerprint sensor with 500 DPI resolution. Platen area of minimum 18mm X 13mm or higher . The device shall be compatible with Linux, Windows operating systems. Warranty: 3 years warranty for the repair or replacement of defective parts of the Finger Print Scanner. The SPA shall be responsible for the setup, maintenance and support for Finger Print Scanner installed at the PFCs during the contract period.
6.	Power Backup (UPS-Inverter and Battery)	6	 The SPA shall be responsible for the supply of <u>UPS-Inverter</u> power backup equipment for minimum four (4) hours of backup, including supply of required batteries with connectors and battery rack, setting up the UPS-Inverter, provide maintenance support. Quantity: 1 (one) no. only The UPS Inverter shall have the following minimum specifications: Capacity: Minimum 3.5 KVA Output Format: Pure Sine Wave Operating Frequency: 50Hz or 60Hz with +/-5% Input Voltage: Minimum 120 V; Output Voltage: Minimum 220 V Phase: Single Phase Transfer Time: Less than 5 millisecond Battery: Tubular Technology Battery, Operation Hours: Atleast for four (4) hours of back-up operation (for 6 Computers, 2 LaserJet multifunctional Printers, network equipment (1 router/ switch) and 4 LED bulbs of 20W each and 3 ceiling Fans) Warranty: 3 years warranty for the repair or replacement of any defective parts of the UPS-Inverter and Battery supplied by the SPA
7.	Network Router	1	 Wireless Frequency Range 2.4 GHz to 2.497 GHz, Minimum 4 10/100 LAN ports, one 10/100 WAN (Internet) port, IEEE 802.11n/g/b, 5dBi omnidirectional External Antenna, Repeater mode or Higher. Warranty: 3 years warranty for the repair or replacement of any defective parts of the wireless router. The SPA shall be responsible for the setup, maintenance and support for wireless router supplied by the SPA.
8.	Network Cables (State Office)	8	Minimum 5 meters long – Cat-6 Network cables with RJ45 connectors at both the ends for networking the computers & printers and to ensure Internet Connectivity.
			Warranty: 3 years warranty for the repair or replacement of any defective Network Cables. The SPA shall be responsible for setup, maintenance and support for network cables supplied by the SPA.

- b) The SPA shall have to Supply, Setup, install, configure and maintain the above mention equipment at each of the PFCs during the performance of the contract. The SPA shall also be responsible for setup, installation, management, support & maintenance of all the software, licenses supplied by the SPA under this assignment. This will also include setting up and configuration for connecting PFCs computers to the Internet.
- c) The SPA shall also be responsible for the replacement and upgrades of all the above equipment/software during the duration of the project. All the equipment supplied by the SPA shall be formally handed-over to the Authority of the District e-Governance Society of the district once the contract is rescinded.
- d) The SPA shall have to ensure that the supplied machines should be recent in design, and not an earlier design approaching obsolescence. The SPA shall also be responsible for the installation and upgradation of additional software as and when required. The SPA will have to ensure replacement of any equipment required under upgrade/faulty/repairs within two (2) working days.
- e) The SPA shall have to take adequate insurance to cover (during the contract period) for accidental damage and thefts for all the assets/machines (including computer & peripherals) supplied and installed at the PFCs by the SPA for 3 years. The SPA shall quote for the insurance for all the assets/ machines mentioned in para 11(a). The insurance coverage shall be taken from any insurance company (public or private) which has been in the business of providing insurance for more than 15 years. The SPA shall be responsible for initiating and obtaining insurance claims

against any damage or thefts of the equipment covered by insurance during the period of the contract. The beneficiary of the insurance shall be the client i.e. the State Project Director, ARIAS Society

- f) The SPA shall be responsible for the cyber-security of the computers and peripherals by arranging and installing Anti-Virus software, Anti- Malware, Anti-spyware etc. including upgrading of the applications/software, without causing any inconvenience to the citizens who will turn up at the PFCs for RTPS.
- g) The SPA shall have to ensure that there are no hanging or open electrical wires which may be hazardous to the citizens visiting to the PFC as well as to the operators working at the PFCs.
- h) The client shall reject the bid in case the machines offered by a bidder in the bid do not conform to the specifications mentioned in this Activity Schedule. In case after confirming the same during the bidding stage, the winning bidder/SPA does not adhere to the accepted specifications during supply of items, the contract may be terminated by the client.

i) Package wise number of machines & equipment required shall be as shown in the table below:

Sl.	Package No.	Package-1	Package-2	Package-3	Package-4	Package-5	Package-6
	Approx. No. of PFCs	63	60	56	40	62	47
			Qu	antity in nu	umbers (No	os.)	
1	All-in-One Desktop Computer (2 per PFC)	126	120	112	80	124	94
2	Laptop Computer (10 Nos.)	10	10	10	10	10	10
3	LaserJet Multi-Function Printer (MFP) for HQ	2	2	2	2	2	2
4	USB Web Camera (2 per PFC)	126	120	112	80	124	94
5	Finger Print Reader (2 per PFC)	126	120	112	80	124	94
6	UPS-Inverter 2.5KVA - for minimum 4 hours of Power Backup by each. (1 per PFC)	63	60	56	40	62	47
7	UPS-Inverter 3.5KVA - for minimum 4 hours of Power Backup by each. (1 per HQ)	1	1	1	1	1	1
8	Wireless Network Router – 4 LAN Ports (1 per PFC)	63	60	56	40	62	47
9	Network Cables (5 mt per PFC)	315	300	280	200	310	235
10	Flatbed Color Image Scanner, USB Powered (2 per PFC)	126	120	112	80	124	94
11	Inkjet Wireless Multi-Function Printer (MFP) (1 per PFC)	63	60	56	40	62	47

However, depending on the need the client may ask the SPA to increase the number of Machines for the assignment during performance of the contract and in such cases the contract will be amended based on the unit rates quoted by SPA.

j) Adhere to the SLA – **Annex-1**

11. Providing Internet Connectivity to the PFCs:

- a) The SPA shall have to provide atleast *minimum 4 Mbps for Download and Minimum 1 Mbps for Upload* internet connectivity at each PFCs **on monthly rental basis**. The potential bidders are encouraged to be innovative in their proposed services so as to provide the most reliable, robust and cost-effective solution using various media and/or technologies or failover options and quote their prices accordingly. The SPA shall be responsible for selection of the most advantageous Internet Service Provider at the location of each PFC.
- b) The SPA shall have the responsibility to install, commission and maintain all necessary equipment required for providing the internet connectivity in the PFCs.
- c) The SPA shall have to own and shall be responsible for all the hardware, software, licenses, and management of the Internet Connectivity to the PFCs and also to the SPA's 'Managementcum-HelpDesk Office' at Guwahati. The SPA also will be responsible for the replacement and upgrading of all the equipment related to Internet Connectivity at the PFCs during the duration of the project.
- d) The upgrade/fault repairs of equipment, including replacements, shall be done within two (2) working days.
- e) The performance level of Internet Connectivity (along with other management control aspects like upload time of an application by PFC Operators) shall be monitored continually by the client through a software application (NMS or similar software), which shall be procured by the client

separately and the software shall have to be installed by the SPA in all the computers supplied by them *in presence of the representatives from the Authority of the District e-Governance Societies.*

- f) The agency shall adhere to the SLA provided at Annex-1.
- 12. **Provisioning of the PFC Operators:** The SPA shall have to provide at least two resources at each of the PFCs **on monthly remuneration basis** as given below:
 - a) The Minimum Qualification and experience of the PFCs operators:

Designation	Nos.	Minimum Qualification	Minimum experience
PFC Operator	2 (two)	 Atleast Class 12 pass with IT Certification/ Diploma in Computer from a reputed institute (at least 3 months' duration course) along with knowledge of Computer Hardware, Networking and MS Office or its equivalent. Must have knowledge of computer operations and operation of web-based computer applications 	 Minimum 2 years of experience in an organization as computer assistant/ operator from the date of passing the required qualification. Knowledge of English, and local language of the concerned District areas is a must. Preference shall be given to the local people of the PFC area with working proficiency in the local tribal language
		Age: Maximum 47 years as on 1st January, 2	2019

- b) The SPA shall have to take client's approval before issuing the engagement letter to the PFC Operators. In case a PFC operator is found not having the qualification and experience cited above, the client may ask the SPA not to issue the engagement letter or terminate, if already engaged.
- c) While recruiting the PFC Operators, preference shall be given to the local people of the PFC area with working proficiency in the local tribal language, having the requisite qualification and experience cited above.
- d) The SPA shall ensure that all the PFC Operators have valid employment contract adhering to all the statutory requirements of the Government of Assam and the Govt. of India. The contract with the PFC Operators shall not have any commitment of future employment with Govt. of Assam or ARIAS Society and this shall be clearly indicated in the contract agreement.
- e) The SPA shall ensure that each of the PFC operators attends the training program on provisions of the ARTPS Act and soft skills, conducted by client or the District e-Governance Society or by the Assam Administrative Staff College.
- f) **Careful handling of original documents**: The PFC Operators & SPA shall be responsible for careful handling of the original documents provided by the citizens for obtaining a service and the documents shall be returned to the citizen after scanning and uploading.
- g) **PFC Operator Decorum**: As the PFC operators would be directly interacting with the Citizens, the operators shall be well dressed, polite and well mannered. The PFC operator shall deal courteously with all citizens, especially people with disability, women and senior citizens. *In case of sustained adverse feedback from the citizens, the service of the PFC operator shall have to be terminated by the SPA based on the advice from the client.*
- h) The performance of the Operators will be reviewed on quarterly basis and/or as often as necessary by the client or his representative(s) and/or by the Authority of the District e-Governance Society.
- i) Depending on the need, the client may ask the SPA to increase the number of **PFC Operators** for the assignment and in such cases the contract will be amended based on the unit rates quoted by SPA.
- j) The SPA shall have to abide by the Government norms relating to the maximum working hours of the PFC Operators and shall also have to pay the Minimum wages/remuneration to the PFC Operators as per the Government norms. The PFC Operators shall be considered as "skilled" workers.
- k) Job Description and Responsibilities of the PFC Operators: The PFC Operator shall
 - i) Serve as facilitator to the applicant of RTPS Services at the PFCs with citizen-centric approach to service delivery.

- ii) Accept citizens' applications for various RTPS services using web based software/portal, which would include entering all relevant data through online forms, scanning and uploading of relevant supporting documents provided by the citizens. S/he will ensure completeness of the application submitted.
- iii) Receive the prescribed fee for the accepted RTPS application, provide printed acknowledgement receipt generated by the RTPS portal and maintain the account of fee payments received and deposit the funds to the Authority of the concerned District e-Governance Society or any other officials as directed by the client for depositing to the Govt. exchequer. The PFC Operator shall also handle on-line payment systems wherever relevant.
- iv) Shall be responsible for careful handling of the documents provided by the citizens for obtaining a service and the documents shall be returned to citizen after scanning and uploading.
- v) Responsible for the cyber-security of the computers and peripherals by installing and upgrading of Anti-Virus software, Anti-Malware, Anti-spyware etc. without causing any inconvenience to the citizens who will turn up at the PFCs for RTPS.
- vi) Responsible for installation of software/NMS/Remote Monitoring Software at the computers at the PFCs.
- vii) Provides relevant and accurate information to the citizens in case they have doubts or seek clarifications. Assist the citizen/applicant in tracking the status of her/his application(s) through the web-based software/Portal at the PFC.
- viii) At the request of the citizens, generate & print authenticated certificates/documents from the RTPS portal once the service gets electronically delivered by the concerned agency/ department/ directorate of the Government.

In case competent authority of the Government denies the applied service of a citizen (with due justification), the relevant order/communiqué is to be downloaded from RTPS portal, printed and communicated to the applicant, if sought by the applicant.

(the related payment for printing such documents shall be collected from the citizens by the operator, which shall not be more than the rate per page quoted by the SPA)

- ix) Help collecting citizen's feedback on service delivery and also through Grievance Redressal mechanism of the RTPS Portal.
- x) Undertakes daily first level checks on network availability, service, bandwidth etc and also undertake first level of maintenance and upkeep of the machines (computer & peripherals including UPS, printer, Internet connectivity etc.) at the PFC to make sure efficient functioning of the PFC.
- xi) Ensure physical security of the Machines in the PFCs during operational hours of the PFCs.
- xii) Shall report to the Authority of the District e-Governance Society on day-to-day basis.
- xiii) Shall keep the information submitted by the public/recipient as confidential and shall not share it with any other person unless desired by competent authority for the delivery of the specified service
- xiv) Adhere to the SLA **Annex-1**.

13. List of other professionals/services:

- a) The SPA shall setup a central office **in the District HQ of any one of districts included in the package (for which bid is submitted by the bidder) called as SPA's 'Management-cum-HelpDesk Office'.** The helpdesk will function as an internal support the PFCs and the Authority of the DeGS. The HelpDesk will act as a single point of contact for the PFC Operators/Authority of DeGS to gain assistance in troubleshooting, get answers to questions, and solve known problems. The HelpDesk will function as to troubleshoot technical or other management problems in the PFCs and provide guidance to the PFC Operators/ Authorities of the DeGS.
- b) Apart from the two (2) PFC operators for each of PFCs cited above, the SPA shall have to provide the following professionals at the minimum:

- i) For the SPA's 'Management-cum-HelpDesk Office' at Guwahati: One (1) Team Leader for the assignment along with one (1) Senior System Administrator; one (1) Senior Network Administrator; Three (3) Helpdesk Operators and two (2) Office support staff shall be placed at the Helpdesk office However, the number of HelpDesk operators may have to be increased based on the demand from the external callers, as per request made by the client and in that case the accepted unit rates for Helpdesk Operators quoted for the SPA shall be applicable.
- ii) **For the district e-Governance Society's office in each district**: One (1) System & Network Administrator (SNA) shall be placed in each of the district e-Governance Society's office, who shall report to the Authority of the DeGS. However, the locations of the SNA shall be as determined by the Authority of the DeGS.

However, depending on the need the client may ask the SPA to increase the number of Human Resources for the assignment, including the PFC Operators and in such cases the contract will be amended based on the unit rates quoted by SPA.

	c)	Job Responsibilities of the other Professional of the S	SPA:
--	----	---	------

Sl.	Position	Job Responsibilities include, but not limited to the following:
1.	Team Leader (1)	Manage IT Infrastructures, Network and Computer systems.
		• Plan, organize, control and evaluate IT and electronic data operations.
		• Design, develop, implement and coordinate systems, policies and procedures.
		• Ensure security of data, network access and backup systems.
		• Ensure quality in delivery of the deliverables under the assignments.
		 Responsible for providing high available network infrastructure monitoring and incident management services through proactive monitoring, and outstanding responsiveness
		• Works with System Administrator and Network Administrator, interfaces with SPA and Client.
		• Directs network operation team's activities to ensure PFCs are kept serviceable, available and supportable 24/7/365, ensuring maintenance tasks are coordinated, communicated, scheduled and resourced accordingly.
		• Responsible for end to end availability, lead issue triage and resolution for complex network and system issues spanning all applications, OS, network, and storage etc.
		• Implement comprehensive service monitoring to ensure uptime and performance, including synthetic, real user, system, application performance, dashboards etc.
		• Define, measure, and meet key Service Level Objectives including availability, performance, incidents and chronic problems.
		Manage staff in an effective manner
		Knowledgeable in compliance and information security.
		• Maintain levels of technical expertise sufficient to advise troubleshooting procedures for all Operating system.
		• Defines, plans & acquires services, technology, tools and systems required to keep citizen facing systems available and serviceable.
		• Leads/manages critical crisis & incident management teams to manage disruptions/degradations, restore services and provide root cause analysis/corrective actions/remediation.
		• Focus on managing a high-performing team driven to consistency, operations excellence and superior citizen service.
		• Manages Client communication & interface during network/service related degradations/disruptions, and maintenances.
2.	Sr. System Administrator	• Responsible for the on-going monitoring, maintenance, and administration of free-standing or networked systems
	(1)	• Installs, maintains, upgrades and supports internal computer software systems used for running PFCs.
		• Fluent in Windows / UNIX operating systems and scripting.
		• Analyze, design, develop, implement, support, and maintain networking systems
		Controls user access and passwords.
		• Controls user access and passwords.

 Proposes and implements system enhancements that will and performance of system. Monitors usage and performance. Trains personnel on system usage. Troubleshoots server and software issues. Assists with recommending, scheduling and implementir and/or software upgrades or repairs. Supports Web access and electronic messaging service secure systems environment. Sr. Network Administrator (1) Monitors usage of shared resources, and works with network management applications. Monitors usage of shared resources, and works with network management applications. Provide troubleshooting expertise by interfacing with multimembers and vendors to resolve complex issues. Provide troubleshooting equipment, such as routers and switt contribute in the stable operation of the local and remote of computing network Will involve in planning, developing, installing, configuring supporting, and optimizing all network hardware, software computer problems in a timely and accurate fashion, and p training where required System & Network Administrator (7) [to be placed/attached in the DeGS office Controls user access and passwords. 	g system hardware es and maintains a s and network atters, and uses ork engineers to cations and ciple technical staff ironments. nfigure and ches.
 Trains personnel on system usage. Troubleshoots server and software issues. Assists with recommending, scheduling and implementir and/or software upgrades or repairs. Supports Web access and electronic messaging service secure systems environment. Sr. Network Administrator (1) Monitors, troubleshoots and maintains telecommunication (LAN, WAN, wireless and VOIP) multiplexers, hubs and roor remote monitoring tools. Monitors usage of shared resources, and works with network resolve issues related to malfunctioning equipment. Selects, develops, integrates and implements telecommunin network management applications. Provide troubleshooting expertise by interfacing with mul members and vendors to resolve complex issues. Provide tsupport for LAN/WAN/SAN/Backup/VMware env. Provide technical support and guidance to users. Install, com maintain networking equipment, such as routers and switt contribute in the stable operation of the local and remote of computing network Will involve in planning, developing, installing, configuring supporting, and optimizing all network hardware, softwar communication links. The person will also work with PFC Operators, System and Administrators to analyze and resolve end user hardware computer problems in a timely and accurate fashion, and pt training where required Installs, maintains, upgrades and supports internal systems used for running PFCs. Fluent in Windows / UNIX operating systems and scripting systems 	es and maintains a s and network iters, and uses ork engineers to cations and ciple technical staff ironments. nfigure and ches.
 Troubleshoots server and software issues. Assists with recommending, scheduling and implementing and/or software upgrades or repairs. Supports Web access and electronic messaging service secure systems environment. Monitors, troubleshoots and maintains telecommunication (LAN, WAN, wireless and VOIP) multiplexers, hubs and rour remote monitoring tools. Monitors usage of shared resources, and works with network resolve issues related to malfunctioning equipment. Selects, develops, integrates and implements telecommuninetwork management applications. Provide troubleshooting expertise by interfacing with multimembers and vendors to resolve complex issues. Provide technical support for LAN/WAN/SAN/Backup/VMware envelowed to computing network Will involve in planning, developing, installing, configuring supporting, and optimizing all network hardware, software computer problems in a timely and accurate fashion, and ptraining where required System & Network Administrator (7) [to be placed/attached Systems 	es and maintains a s and network iters, and uses ork engineers to cations and ciple technical staff ironments. nfigure and ches.
 Assists with recommending, scheduling and implementing and/or software upgrades or repairs. Supports Web access and electronic messaging service secure systems environment. Sr. Network Administrator Sr. Network in the state of the secure systems and secure systems and the secure secure systems and the secure secure systems and secure the secure secure systems and the secure secure secure systems and the secure secures and works with network and the secure seconput secure secure secure secure secure secure secure secure	es and maintains a s and network iters, and uses ork engineers to cations and ciple technical staff ironments. nfigure and ches.
 and/or software upgrades or repairs. Supports Web access and electronic messaging service secure systems environment. Sr. Network Administrator Sr. Network Monitors, troubleshoots and maintains telecommunication (LAN, WAN, wireless and VOIP) multiplexers, hubs and rouremote monitoring tools. Monitors usage of shared resources, and works with networesolve issues related to malfunctioning equipment. Selects, develops, integrates and implements telecommuninetwork management applications. Provide troubleshooting expertise by interfacing with mulmembers and vendors to resolve complex issues. Provide technical support for LAN/WAN/SAN/Backup/VMware env. Provide technical support and guidance to users. Install, communication links. Contribute in the stable operation of the local and remote ocomputing network Will involve in planning, developing, installing, configuring supporting, and optimizing all network hardware, software computer problems in a timely and accurate fashion, and ptraining where required System & Network Administrator (7) [to be placed/attached Fluent in Windows / UNIX operating systems and scripting and accurate fashion, and ptraining where required 	es and maintains a s and network iters, and uses ork engineers to cations and ciple technical staff ironments. nfigure and ches.
 secure systems environment. Sr. Network Administrator (1) Monitors, troubleshoots and maintains telecommunication (LAN, WAN, wireless and VOIP) multiplexers, hubs and rou- remote monitoring tools. Monitors usage of shared resources, and works with networ- resolve issues related to malfunctioning equipment. Selects, develops, integrates and implements telecommuni- network management applications. Provide troubleshooting expertise by interfacing with mul- members and vendors to resolve complex issues. Provide technical support for LAN/WAN/SAN/Backup/VMware envi- Provide technical support and guidance to users. Install, co- maintain networking equipment, such as routers and switt contribute in the stable operation of the local and remote of computing network Will involve in planning, developing, installing, configuring supporting, and optimizing all network hardware, software communication links. The person will also work with PFC Operators, System and Administrators to analyze and resolve end user hardware computer problems in a timely and accurate fashion, and p training where required Installs, maintains, upgrades and supports internal systems used for running PFCs. Fluent in Windows / UNIX operating systems and scripting Analyze, design, develop, implement, support, and m systems 	s and network iters, and uses ork engineers to cations and tiple technical staff ironments. nfigure and ches.
 Administrator (1) (LAN, WAN, wireless and VOIP) multiplexers, hubs and rouremote monitoring tools. Monitors usage of shared resources, and works with networs resolve issues related to malfunctioning equipment. Selects, develops, integrates and implements telecommuninetwork management applications. Provide troubleshooting expertise by interfacing with multimembers and vendors to resolve complex issues. Provide troubleshooting expertise by interfacing with multimembers and vendors to resolve complex issues. Provide technical support for LAN/WAN/SAN/Backup/VMware environmembers and vendors to resolve complex issues. Provide technical support and guidance to users. Install, communication networking equipment, such as routers and switt contribute in the stable operation of the local and remote of computing network Will involve in planning, developing, installing, configuring supporting, and optimizing all network hardware, softwar communication links. The person will also work with PFC Operators, System and Administrators to analyze and resolve end user hardware computer problems in a timely and accurate fashion, and ptraining where required System & Installs, maintains, upgrades and supports internal systems used for running PFCs. Fluent in Windows / UNIX operating systems and scripting Analyze, design, develop, implement, support, and m systems 	aters, and uses ork engineers to cations and tiple technical staff ironments. nfigure and ches.
 resolve issues related to malfunctioning equipment. Selects, develops, integrates and implements telecommuninetwork management applications. Provide troubleshooting expertise by interfacing with mulmembers and vendors to resolve complex issues. Provide support for LAN/WAN/SAN/Backup/VMware envinements networking equipment, such as routers and swith contribute in the stable operation of the local and remote of computing network Will involve in planning, developing, installing, configuring supporting, and optimizing all network hardware, softwar communication links. The person will also work with PFC Operators, System and Administrators to analyze and resolve end user hardware computer problems in a timely and accurate fashion, and ptraining where required System & Installs, maintains, upgrades and supports internal systems used for running PFCs. Fluent in Windows / UNIX operating systems and scripting Analyze, design, develop, implement, support, and m systems 	cations and tiple technical staff ironments. nfigure and ches.
 A. System & Network Administrator (7) [to be placed/attached 4. System & Network A. System & Network A. System & System & Network A. System & Sy	tiple technical staff ironments. nfigure and thes.
 members and vendors to resolve complex issues. Provide support for LAN/WAN/SAN/Backup/VMware env. Provide technical support and guidance to users. Install, comaintain networking equipment, such as routers and swith contribute in the stable operation of the local and remote of computing network. Will involve in planning, developing, installing, configuring supporting, and optimizing all network hardware, softwar communication links. The person will also work with PFC Operators, System and Administrators to analyze and resolve end user hardware computer problems in a timely and accurate fashion, and p training where required System & Installs, maintains, upgrades and supports internal systems used for running PFCs. Fluent in Windows / UNIX operating systems and scripting Analyze, design, develop, implement, support, and m systems 	ironments. nfigure and ches.
 Provide technical support and guidance to users. Install, comaintain networking equipment, such as routers and switce contribute in the stable operation of the local and remote of computing network Will involve in planning, developing, installing, configuring supporting, and optimizing all network hardware, softwar communication links. The person will also work with PFC Operators, System and Administrators to analyze and resolve end user hardware computer problems in a timely and accurate fashion, and p training where required System & Installs, maintains, upgrades and supports internal systems used for running PFCs. Fluent in Windows / UNIX operating systems and scripting Analyze, design, develop, implement, support, and m systems 	nfigure and hes.
 maintain networking equipment, such as routers and switt contribute in the stable operation of the local and remote of computing network Will involve in planning, developing, installing, configuring supporting, and optimizing all network hardware, softwar communication links. The person will also work with PFC Operators, System and Administrators to analyze and resolve end user hardware computer problems in a timely and accurate fashion, and ptraining where required System & Installs, maintains, upgrades and supports internal systems used for running PFCs. Fluent in Windows / UNIX operating systems and scripting Analyze, design, develop, implement, support, and m systems 	ches.
 computing network Will involve in planning, developing, installing, configuring supporting, and optimizing all network hardware, softwar communication links. The person will also work with PFC Operators, System and Administrators to analyze and resolve end user hardware computer problems in a timely and accurate fashion, and p training where required System & Installs, maintains, upgrades and supports internal systems used for running PFCs. Fluent in Windows / UNIX operating systems and scripting Analyze, design, develop, implement, support, and m systems 	offices and cloud
 supporting, and optimizing all network hardware, softwar communication links. The person will also work with PFC Operators, System and Administrators to analyze and resolve end user hardware computer problems in a timely and accurate fashion, and p training where required System & Installs, maintains, upgrades and supports internal systems used for running PFCs. Fluent in Windows / UNIX operating systems and scripting Analyze, design, develop, implement, support, and m systems 	inter und troud
Administrators to analyze and resolve end user hardware computer problems in a timely and accurate fashion, and p training where required4.System & Network Administrator (7) [to be placed/attachedInstalls, maintains, upgrades and supports internal systems used for running PFCs.•Installs, maintains, upgrades and supports internal systems used for running PFCs.•Fluent in Windows / UNIX operating systems and scripting systems	
Networksystems used for running PFCs.Administrator• Fluent in Windows / UNIX operating systems and scripting(7) [to be• Analyze, design, develop, implement, support, and m systems	and software
(7) [to be placed/attached • Analyze, design, develop, implement, support, and m systems	computer software
placed/attached systems	j.
<i>in the DeGS office</i> • Controls user access and passwords.	aintain networking
ss	
<i>in the 7 districts]</i> • Proposes and implements system enhancements that will and performance of system.	improve reliability
Monitors usage and performance.	
Provide support for LAN/WAN/SAN/Backup/VMware env	
Provide technical support and guidance to users. Install, commaintain networking equipment, such as routers and switch	ches.
contribute in the stable operation of the local and remote of computing network	
Will involve in planning, developing, installing, configuring supporting, and optimizing all network hardware, softwar communication links.	
5.Helpdesk operators (3)• Receiving and Responding to service requests, compl HelpDesk office.	
Listening to the callers and understanding and identifying	aint, issues at the
Performing geographical location spotting, understand problems and data entry	
 Provide effective and outstanding service to all callers, and appropriately respond to inquiries and questions, 	their problem
6. Office Support • Support Office Management and operational activities,	their problem ng the issues and
Staff (3) • Maintain files and documents	their problem ng the issues and
Check and Send email, prepare document, Enter Data in th	their problem ng the issues and

Sl.	Position	Qualification	Experience
1.	Team Leader (1)	BE/B.Tech/ MCA/ Post Graduate in Computer Science or IT	 Overall 10 years experience in IT Infrastructure support and maintenance projects from the date of passing the required Qualification. Minimum of 5 years of experience as a Project Manager/team Leader Experience in managing, planning, designing and
			 implementing of IT Infrastructure support and maintenance projects Experience in implementing quality assurance practices and policies in IT Infrastructure support and maintenance projects
			 Good experience in managing Teams, resources, coordination with the clients/ stakeholders of the project
			Good experience on System and Network Administration.
			• Effective hardware and software problem solving abilities, Knowledge of open source Linux and Windows operating system
			Good Communication skills in English, Hindi and Assamese
2.	Sr. System Administrator (1)	BE/B.Tech/ BCA/ MCA/ Graduate /	• Overall 7 years experience in IT Infrastructure support and maintenance projects from the date of passing the required Qualification.
		Post Graduate in Computer Science or IT	• Effective hardware and software problem solving abilities, Knowledge of open source Linux and Windows operating system,
		Science of 11	• Experience in managing the configuration and operation of client-based computer operating systems, monitoring the system daily and respond immediately to security or usability concerns upgrading systems and processes as required for enhanced functionality and security issue resolution
			• Good Administration in infrastructure management, including firewalls, databases, malware protection software and other processes
			• Experience in Email account management, Access control and attendance system configuration for new and existing users. Skills on managing WAN/LAN/ Wireless Connectivity, Switch/ Router/ Firewall etc.
			Good Communication skills in English, Hindi and Assamese
3.	Sr. Network Administrator (1)	BE/B.Tech/ BCA/ MCA/ Graduate /	• Overall 7 years experience in IT Infrastructure support and maintenance projects from the date of passing the required Qualification.
		Post Graduate in Computer Science or IT	• Planning, Installation and Commissioning, Involved in designing network layouts & managing installation, configuration, commissioning and testing of complex network environment. Ensuring maintenance of complete network, inclusive of performance monitoring, day to day network operations, preventive & corrective maintenance.
			• Strong hands-on experience in Installation, Configuration and troubleshooting of Routers and Switches. Excellent knowledge in implementation and troubleshooting of security mechanisms such as IPSec, SSL, and VPN.
			 Effective hardware and software problem solving abilities, Good Knowledge of Linux and windows operating system Good Communication skills in English, Hindi and Assamese
4.	System & Network Administrator	BE/B.Tech/ BCA/ MCA/ Graduate /	 Overall 4 years experience in IT Infrastructure support and maintenance projects from the date of passing the required Qualification.
	(7)	Post Graduate in Computer Science or IT	• Effective hardware and software problem solving abilities, Good Knowledge of Desktop operating systems such as Linux and windows, Windows AD, Email account management, Access control and attendance system configuration for new and existing users. Skills on managing WAN/LAN/ Wireless

d) **Qualification and Experience of the professionals**:

Sl.	Position	Qualification	Experience
			Connectivity, Switch/ Router/ Firewall etc.
			 Good knowledge on System Security, Web and Internet Security, databases security, Antivirus, firewalls, malware protection software
			Good Communication skills in English, Hindi and Assamese
5.	Helpdesk operators (3)	Graduate	• Overall 3 years experience in call center for IT Infrastructure support and maintenance projects from the date of passing the required Qualification.
			• Good Communication skills in English, Hindi, Assamese and local tribal languages
6.	Office Support Staff (3)	Graduate	• Overall 3 years experience as Office management and support staff / or similar from the date of passing the required Qualification. Having good IT Skills such as MS Word, Excel, web browser, internet, email etc.
			Good Communication skills in English, Hindi and Assamese

e) While recruiting the Office Support Staff and HelpDesk Operators, preference shall be given to the local people of the area, having the requisite qualification and experience cited above.

14. Package wise break-up of quantity of PFC Operators, Other Key Staff, Charges for Internet Connectivity etc

Sl.	Package No.	Package-1	Package-2	Package-3	Package-4	Package-5	Package-6
	No. of Districts per package	5	5	4	4	5	3
	Approx. No. of PFCs	63	60	56	40	62	47
1	Internet Connectivity of atleast 4Mbps (i.e. minimum 4 Mbps for Download and Minimum 1 Mbps for Upload) (1 Connectivity per PFC)	63	60	56	40	62	47
2	PFC Operators (2 per PFC)	126	120	112	80	124	94
3	Team Leader (1 per package)	1	1	1	1	1	1
4	Sr. System Administrator (1 per package)	1	1	1	1	1	1
5	Sr. Network Administrator (1 per package)	1	1	1	1	1	1
6	System & Network Administrators (SNA) (1 per district)	5	5	4	4	5	3
7	Helpdesk Operator (2 per package)	2	2	2	2	2	2
8	Support Staff (2 per package)	2	2	2	2	2	2
9	Set up, maintenance cost for Machinery (computer & peripherals), Administrative Management, management, etc. (No. of PFCs+ 1 HQ)	64	61	57	41	63	48
10	Insurance coverage charges for the Machinery (for Machineries and equipment in each PFC and in the HQ) per PFC+HQ	64	61	57	41	63	48
11	Printing Charges per A4 size paper for printing acknowledge receipt (Per copy rate)						
12	Company Overheads per Package						

15. Reporting Requirements: The SPA shall -

- a) Perform its obligation under this Contract with due diligence and efficiency and in conformity with sound professional, administrative and financial practices.
- b) Have to install the 'Network Management System (NMS⁹)' or other similar software <u>(to be</u> <u>provided by the client)</u> on the Computers to be supplied by the SPA in the PFCs and in the SPA-cum-HelpDesk Office, for automatic collection of management information data.
- c) Submit <u>monthly reports</u> of each of the PFCs, to the client **or any other agency authorized by the client**, both hard (one copy) & soft copy counter signed by the **Authority of the District e-Governance Society** (*DeGS*).

The **monthly report**, along with the invoice for payment, shall cover different aspects of **the deliverables and Achievements** against **SLAs** under the contract such as details of Internet connectivity, status of machines & manpower deployed, number of electronic service requests,

⁹ Note: A NMS is a combination of hardware & software used to monitor, maintain and administer a network. Network Management Software contains the set of functions required for controlling, planning, allocating, deploying, coordinating and monitoring the resources of a network including performing functions such as fault management, configuration management, accounting management, performance management, security management and bandwidth management

performance of the PFC operators, service requests handled by each of the PFC Operators, etc. (*More details will be included in the contract agreement.*)

- d) Submit **quarterly report of the assignment** both hard (one copy) & soft copy indicating the overall management aspects of the contract, issues faced if any, manpower deployed at the State Level Office, invoices raised (No. & date) vis-à-vis amount of payment by the client along with date of payment, etc. (*More details will be included in the contract agreement.*)
- e) In case **SPA fails to submit of monthly and quarterly report** on time, monthly payment for the succeeding month for this assignment shall be put on hold or delayed till the reports are submitted.
- f) The format of monthly and quarterly report shall be provided by the client after signing of contract with the SPA.

(D) Schedule for Completion of Tasks:

16. **Setting up of PFCs**: The agency shall have to setup PFCs. The package wise no. of PFC and related districts under each packages are furnished below (**The detailed location list may be seen at Annex-2**):

Package	Approximate	Districts
	Nos. of PFCs	
Package-1	63	Dhubri, South Salmara, Bongaigaon, Goalpara, Barpeta (5 Dists)
Package-2	60	Nalbari, Kamrup Rural, Kamrup Metro, Darrang, Morigaon (5 Dists)
Package-3	56	Sonitpur, Biswanath, Lakhimpur Dhemaji (4 Dists)
Package-4	40	Charaideo, Dibrugarh, Sibsagar, Tinsukia (4 Dists)
Package-5	62	Nagaon, Golaghat, Majuli, Hojai, Jorhat (5 Dists)
Package-6	47	Cachar, Karimganj, Hailakandi (3 Dists)

17. The SPA shall have to complete setting up of the PFCs in a package and making them fully functional within maximum 8 Months from the signing of the contract agreement. However, if the SPA fails to establish atleast the number of PFCs (for the package as shown below) within 6 months from the date of signing of agreement the client will impose Liquidated Damage (LD) for the delay at the rate furnished in SCC Clause 3.8 and upon the LD reaching 5% of the Contract Price, the employer may initiate action for termination of the contract agreement.

18. Indicative schedule of setting up of PFCs shall be given below:

Package	Approximate Nos. of PFCs	Districts	1st Lot with 4 months from date contract signing	2nd Lot with 6 months from date contract signing	3rd Lot with 8 months from date contract signing
Package-1	63	Dhubri, South Salmara, Bongaigaon, Goalpara, Barpeta (5 Dists)	16	32	16
Package-2	60	Nalbari, Kamrup Rural, Kamrup Metro, Darrang, Morigaon (5 Dists)	15	30	15
Package-3	56	Sonitpur, Biswanath, Lakhimpur Dhemaji (4 Dists)	14	28	14
Package-4	40	Charaideo, Dibrugarh, Sibsagar, Tinsukia (4 Dists)	10	20	10
Package-5	62	Nagaon, Golaghat, Majuli, Hojai, Jorhat (5 Dists)	16	31	16
Package-6	47	Cachar, Karimganj, Hailakandi (3 Dists)	12	24	12

(E) Data, Services and Facilities to be provided by the Client

- 19. The client would nominate and designate a Team of Officials including from PMU and other agency(ies) for day-to-day -monitoring and coordination with the SPA on all aspects of the contract agreement.
- 20. The client will provide any available information and documents to the SPA related to the assignment; and will also facilitate engagement of all the relevant stakeholders.
- 21. The required office space (in the offices of the DC, SDO, Circle Offices and Block Offices etc.) for setting up the PFCs will be facilitated by the client before the delivery of the machines (computer & peripherals) under the contract by the SPA, including internal electrical wiring/plug points and also the furniture required for setting up the PFCs (@2 tables, 2 chairs for the PFC operators and 6 chairs for the visitors, per PFC). [No civil work relating to the PFCs are envisaged under this contract.]
- 22. The client shall provide a facility to the SPA to register complaints for any issues relating to the assignment.

(F) Final outputs that will be required from the Agency

23. There are two final outputs of the assignment –

- a) The first Final output shall be setting up of the fully functional PFCs included in each package, with
 (i) Internet Connection of atleast minimum 4 Mbps for Download and Minimum 1 Mbps for
 Upload bandwidth; (ii) required two Computers & peripherals; (iii) two PFC Operators in each of the PFCs included in a package.
- b) **The second Final output** is to operate all the PFCs that have been set up under the assignment on a 'fully operational^{4'} basis initially for a period of 36 (thirty-six) months from the date of signing of contract agreement, subject to the condition that the performance/service of the SPA is determined to be satisfactory by the client. **The contract may be extended based on the need by the client**, **linked to mutually agreed terms & conditions and availability of fund with the client**.

(G) Review, Monitoring and Acceptance etc. of the Assignment

24. The client will constitute a review committee *inter alia* comprising members from the PMU, Administrative Reforms & Training (AR&T) Department, IT Department, and ACCSDP's line departments of the Govt. of Assam, etc. to monitor and review the progress of the assignment.

While day-to-day/monthly monitoring will happen continuously, a formal review will be conducted on a **quarterly** basis to track the progress under the assignment and resolve any issues. Representatives of all participating GoA departments/agencies would also take part in the **quarterly** Progress Review. However, depending on the need the client may hold monthly review meeting as well.

25. **Conformity Test:** The client through a notified committee **or through the Authority of the DeGS** will conduct **Conformity Test** before accepting the completion report of each of the PFCs setup (including installation of the NMS software) by the SPA and the SPA shall be bound to resolve or remove all the issues, bugs & defects that are detected during the test as informed to the SPA accordingly.

(H) Exit Policy after contract completion:

26. After the contract period is over, the SPA shall formally handover all the machinery & equipment procured under the contract to the respective Authority of the DeGS in full working condition, along with all the relevant records/physical files in the PFCs etc and a certificate in this respect from the Authority of the DeGS *inter alia* shall be mandatory before release of the Final payment to the SPA by the client. As the PFC operators will be working online through the RTPS portal, which is to be managed by another agency, no data transfer is contemplated.

Annex-1 (to the Activity Schedule) Payment Terms & conditions and related Service Level Agreement (SLA)

- The SPA shall have to quote the unit bid prices exclusive of taxes and the total prices for each of the following line items on per package basis as per the Price Schedule formats in the this bidding document. (The Bidder shall quote for <u>all the number of PFCs under a package PFCs or else the bid will be rejected</u>). The Minimum required specifications of the machines & equipments. <u>Note</u>: In case, the bidder/SPA does not quote any of the particulars/items mentioned above, the client shall reject the bid as non-responsive
- 2. The specifications of the items shall be as per para 10 of the Activity Schedule. The client shall reject the bid in case the machines offered by a bidder in the bid do not conform to the specifications mentioned in this Activity Schedule. In case after confirming the same during the bidding stage, the winning bidder/SPA does not adhere to the accepted specifications during supply of items, the contract may be terminated by the client.

3. Payment Terms & conditions shall be as provided in the Special Conditions of Contract (SCC) clause 6.4.1.

- **4. HelpDesk for PFC management:** The Service provider shall have to establish a **'Management-cum-HelpDesk Office' at Guwahati** for the assignment, with a Toll Free number available from 9:30 AM to 5:30 PM on all working days with dedicated staff of qualified helpdesk operators. The SPA shall also provide an online system for registering any faults/issues in the PFCs. The system should have functionality to send automated emails to the client and the fault/issue registering person about the faults/issues registered in the system and also after its rectification.
- **5. ARTPS Fee Collections**: Each of the PFC managed by the SPA shall have to collect the service fees from the citizens/applicants for every application under the ARTPS Act as per the Fee Structure already notified (and as amended) or to be notified by the State Government.

The citizens/applicants shall also have the option to make payment through cash or by debit card or by other digital payment as the Government decides. Acceptance of Credit Card for Payment by will be decided at later point of time. For payment of fees through debit card, the SPA has to use the POS (Point of Sale) machines in each of the PFCs linked to the account of the Government where ARTPS fee is to be deposited. POS Machines will be provided by the Client.

In case of receipt of fees in cash, the PFC operator shall handover the cash to the concerned Government Official designated by the State Government/ DeGS for each PFC. The concerned Government official will deposit the cash in the designated Bank Account of the State Government/DeGS.

Notwithstanding above, the modalities of fee collection by the PFC operators and depositing into the Government exchequer shall be finalized at the time of signing of contract agreement with the SPA, (in consultation with the Administrative Reforms & Training Department and the Finance Department).

- 6. **Printing Charges:** The printing charges for acknowledgement receipt shall be quoted by SPA. It shall be printed on A4 size in black ink only. The printing charges for acknowledgement will be paid by the client at actual. Other than the acknowledgement, any printing for the citizens may be charged to the citizens by the SPA. The SPA shall ensure that the printers are fully functional during the working days of the PFCs and the maintenance including the cost of paper and printer cartridges shall be taken care by the SPA.
- 7. Locations of the PFCs: The Locations of the PFCs are furnished at Annex-2 [All the PFCs are most likely to be located in the Government owned office premises.] The locations of the PFCs shall be the Final Destination of the machinery to be supplied and installed, except for the machinery to be installed in the SPA's 'Management-cum-HelpDesk Office'.

Annex-2 Package wise Locations of the PFCs PFCs under Package 1 & 2

		PFCs un
	Package-1	ara Parnota)
Sl.	Dhubri, S. Salmara, Bongaigaon, Goalpa DHUBRI DISTRICT	No of PFC
1	Agomoni Block Office	1
2	Bilasipara Block Office	1
3	Chapar- Salkocha Block Office	1
4	Debitola Block Office	1
5	Dhubri Block Office	1
6	Fekamri Block Office	1
7	Golokganj Block Office	1
8	Gouripur Block Office	1
9	Hathidhura Block Office	1
10	Mahamaya Block Office	1
11	Mankachar Block Office	1
12	Nayeralga Block Office	1
13	Rupshi Block Office	1
14	Dhubri Sub Registrar office	1
15	Bilashipara Sub Registrar office	1
16	Golokganj Sub Registrar office	1
17	Dhubri DTO office	1
18	Dhubri Municipal Board office	1
19	SOUTH SALAMARA DISTRICT S . Salmara DC office	1
20	Hatsingimari Sub division office	1
20	South Salmara Circle Offic e	1
22	Mankachar Circle office	1
23	Hatsingimari Sub Registrar office	1
24	South Salamara Sub Registrar office	1
	BONGAIGAON DISTRICT	-
25	Boitamari Block Office	1
26	Dangtol Block Office	1
27	Manikpur Block Office	1
28	Srijangram Block Office	1
29	Tapattary Block Office	1
30	Bongaigaon Sub Registrar office	1
31	Abhyapuri Sub Registrar office	1
32	Bongaigaon DTO OFfice	1
33	Bongaigaon Municipal Board	1
	GOALPARA DISTRICT	
34	Balijana Block Office	1
35	Jaleswar Block Office	1
36	Kharmuja Block Office	1
37	Krishnai Block Office	1
38 39	Kushdhowa Block Office Lakhipur Block Office	1
	P ==	
40 41	Matia Block Office Rangjuli Block Office	1
41	Goalpara Sub Registrar Office	1
42	Lakhipur Sub Registrar Office	1
43	Goalpara Municipality Board	1
T-T	BARPETA DISTRICT	1
45	Bajali Block Office	1
46	Barpeta Block Office	1
47	Bhawanipur Block Office	1
48	Chakchaka Block Office	1
49	Chenga Block Office	1
50	Gobardhana Block Office	1
51	Gomafulbari Block Office	1
52	Mandia Block Office	1
53	Pakabetabari Block Office	1
54	Ruposi Block Office	1
55	Sarukhetri Block Office	1
56	Barpeta Deputy Registrar	1
57	Patacharkuchi Sub Registrar	1
58	Sorbhog Sub Registrar	1
59	Kalgachia Sub Registrar	1
60	Pathsala Sub Registrar	1
-	Mandia Sub Dogistron	1
61	Mandia Sub Registrar	
61 62 63	Barpeta DTO Office Barpeta Municipal Board	1 1 1

(Nall	Package- 2 Dari Kamrup Pural Kamrup Motro, Da	rrang Marigaan)
	oari, Kamrup Rural, Kamrup Metro, Da NALBARI DISTRICT	rrang, Morigaon) NO of PFC
	Barbhag Block office	1
	Barkhetri Block office	1
	Borigog Block office	1
	Madupur Block office	1
	Paschim Nalbari Block office	1
	Pub Nalbari Block office	1
	Tihu Block Office	1
	Nalbari Sub Registrar Office	1
	Belsor Registrar Office	1
	Tihu Registrar Office Mukalmua Registrar Office	1
	Nalbari DTo office	1
	Nalbari Municipality Board	1
	KAMRUP(Rural)	T
	Bezera Block Office	1
	Bihdia-Jajikona Block Office	1
	Boko Block Office	1
17	Bongaon Block Office	1
	Chamaria Block Office	1
	Chayani Block Office	1
	Chaygaon Block Office	1
	Goroimari Block Office	1
	Hajo Block Office	1
	Kamalpur Block Office	1
	Rampur Block Office	1
	Rangia Block Office	1
	Sualkuchi Block Office Kamrup Sadar Sub Registrar office	1
	Rangia Sub Registrar office	1
	Hajo Sub Registrar office	1
	Boko Sub Registrar office	1
	Amingaon, Kamrup DTO office	1
	GMC Amingaon Kamrup .	1
	KAMRUP(Metro) Guwahati	
33	Dimoria Block office	1
	Chandrapur Block office	1
	Rani Block Office	1
	Guwahati Revenue Circle	1
	DTO Kamrup, Betkuchi	1
	GMC, Panbazar, Guwahati	1
	Guwahati City (GMC)	2
	DARRANG DISTRICT(Mangaldoi)	1
40 41	Bechimari Block office Kalaigaon Block office	1
	Kalaigaon Block office	1
	Pashim-Mangaldai Block office	1
	Pub-Mangaldoi Block office	1
	Sipajhar Block office	1
	Dalgaon-Sialmari	1
	Mangaldoi Sub Registrar Office	1
48	Dalgaon Sub Registrar office	1
	DTO Darrang Office	1
	Mangaldai Municipal Board	1
	MORIGAON DISTRICT	
	Bhurbandha Block Office	1
	Lahorighat Block Office	1
	Mayong Block Office	1
54	Kapili Block Office	1
	Moirabari Block Office	1
	Dulongghat Block Office Morigaon SSR Sub Registrar Office	1
	DTO Morigaon	1
50		T
	Morigaon Municipality Board	1

Package wise Locations of the PFCs PFCs under Package 3 & 4

D.	-les - 2 (Consituure Biomeneth, Label-	PFCS un
Ра	ckage-3 (Sonitpur, Biswanath, Lakhimpu	ir Dnemajij
4	SONITPUR (TEZPUR)	No of Pfc
1	Baghmara Block Office	1
2	Balipara Block Office	1
3	Behali Block Office	1
4	Bihaguri Block Office	1
5	Borchala Block Office	1
6	Dhekiajuli Block Office	1
7	Gabharu Block Office	1
8	Naduar Block Office	1
9	Pub-Chaiduar Block Office	1
10	Rangapara Block Office	1
11	Sakomatha Block Office	1
12	Sootea Block Office	1
13	Tezpur Sub Registrar Office	1
14	Dekiajuli Sub Registrar Office	1
15	Sootea Sub Registrar Office	1
16	DTO Sonitpur Office	1
17	Tezpur Municipality Board	1
	Dhekiajuli Municipality Board	
18		1
10	BISWANATH DISTRICT	1
19	Biswanath DC Office	1
20	BIswanath Chariali Sub Division	1
21	Gohpur Sub Division	1
22	BIswanath Chariali Circle Office	1
23	Gohpur Circle Office	1
24	Helem Circle Office	1
25	Pub-Chaiduar Development Block	1
26	Chaiduar Development Block	1
27	Behali Development Block	1
28	Baghmora Development Block	1
29	Biswanath Development Block	1
30	Sakomotha development Block	1
31	Biswanath Sub Registrar Office	1
32	Sotea Development Block	1
33	Biswanath Chariali Municipality Board	1
	LAKHIMPUR DISTRICT	
34	Subansri (Ghilamara) Circle Office	1
35	Bihpuria Block office	1
36	Boginadi Block office	1
37	Dhakuakhana Block office	1
38	Ghilamara Block office	1
30 39	Karunabari Block office	1
40	Lakhimpur Block office	1
41	Narayanpur Block office	1
42	Nowboicha Block office	1
43	Telahi Block office	1
44	Lakhimpur Deputy Registrar	1
45	Dhakuakhana Sub Registrar	1
46	Lakhimpur DTO Office	1
47	N. Lakhimpur Municipality Board	1
48	Bihpuria Municipality Board	1
	DHEMAJI DISTRICT	
49	Bordoloni Block Office	1
50	Dhemaji Block Office	1
51	Machkhowa Block Office	1
52	Murkongselek Block Office	1
53	Sissiborgaon Block Office	1
53 54	Dhemaji Registrar office	1
55	Jonai Registrar office	1
56	Dhemaji Dto Office	1
		56

	Package-4 (Charaideo, Dibrugarh, Sibsa	agar, Tinsukia)
	CHARAIDEO DISTRICT	No. Of Pfc
1	Charaideo DC office	1
	SIVASAGAR DISTRICT	
2	Amguri Block Office	1
3	Demow Block Office	1
4	Disangpani Block Office	1
5	Lakowa Block Office	1
6	Nazira Block Office	1
7	Sapekhati Block Office	1
8	Sivasagar Block Office	1
9	West Abhaypur Block Office	1
10	Sivasagar Deputy Registrar	1
11	Sonari Sub Registrar	1
12	Nazira Sub Registrar	1
13	Sivasagar DTO Office	1
14	Sibsagar Municipality Board	1
15	Nazira Municipality Board	1
16	Amguri Municipality Board	1
	DIBRUGARH DISTRICT	-
17	Barbaruah Block office	1
18	Joypur Block office	1
19	Khowang Block office	1
20	Lahowal Block office	1
21	Panitola Block office	1
22	Tengakhat Block office	1
23	Tingkhong Block office	1
24	Dibrugarh Deputy Registrar Office	1
25 26	Dibrugarh Sub Registrar Office Naharkatia Registrar office	1
20	Dibrugarh DTO Office	1
27	Dibrugarh Municipality Board	1
20	TINSUKIA DISTRICT	1
29	Guijan Block Offic e	1
30	Hapjan Block Office	1
31	Itakhuli Block Offic e	1
32	Kakopather Block Offic e	1
33	Margherita Block Offic e	1
34	Sadiya Block Offic e	1
35	Saikhowa Block Offic e	1
36	Tinsukia Sub Registrar Office	1
37	Margherita Registrar Office	1
38	Chapakhowa Registrar Office	1
39	Tinsukia DTO office	1
40	Tinsukia Municipality Board	1
-		40

Package wise Locations of the PFCs PFCs under Package 5 & 6

	Package- 5 (Nagaon, Golaghat, Hojai, Jorhat)	Inder Packa	Lec D		Package- 6 (Cachar, Karimganj, Hail	akandi)
	NAGAON DISTRICT	No. of PFC			SILCHAR DISTRICT(Cachar)	No. Of PFC
1	Bajiagaon Block Office	1		1	Banskandi Block office	1
2	Barhampur Block Office	1		2	Binnakandi Block office	1
3	Batradawa Block Office	1		3	Borjalenga Block office	1
4	Dolangghat Block Office	1		4	Borkhola Block office	1
5	Juria Block Office	1		5	Kalain Block office	1
6	Kaliabar Block Office	1		6	Katigorah Block office	1
7	Kathiatali Block Office	1		7	Lakhipur Block office	1
8	Khagarijan Block Office	1		8	Narasinghpur Block office	1
9	Laokhowa Block Office	1		9	Palonghat Block office	1
10	Pakhimuria Block Office	1		10	Rajabazar Block office	1
11	Paschim-Kaliabar Block Office	1		11	Salchapra Block office	1
12	Raha Block Office	1		12	Silchar Block office	1
13	Rupahi Block Office	1		13	Sonai Block office	1
14	Nagaon Deputy Registrar office	1		14	Tapang Block office	1
15	Nagaon Sub Registrar office	1		15	Udharbond Block office	1
16 17	Dhing Registrar office Rupahi Registrar office	1		16 17	Silchar Deputy Registrar office Silchar Sub Registrar office	1
17	Jakhalabandha Registrar office	1		17	Palonghat Sub Registrar office	1
10	Kaliabor Registrar office	1		10	Katigorah Sub Registrar office	1
20	Kanabor Registrar office	1		20	Lakhipur Sub Registrar office	1
20	District Transport Office, A.S.T.C Campus, Nagaon	1		20	Barjatrapur Sub Registrar office	1
22	Nagaon Municiaplity Board	1		22	Cachar, Silchar DTO office	1
23	Dhing Municiaplity Board	1		23	Silchar Municipal Board	1
24	Lumding Municiaplity Board	1		24	Lakhipur Municipal Board	1
	GOLAGHAT DISTRICT	-			KARIMGANJ DISTRICT	-
25	Bokakhat Block office	1		25	Badarpur Block office	1
26	Dergaon Block office	1		26	Dullavchera Block office	1
27	Golaghat Block office	1		27	Lowairpoa Block office	1
28	Gomariguri Block office	1		28	North Karimganj Block office	1
29	Kakodonga Block office	1		29	Patharkandi Block office	1
30	Khumtai Block office	1		30	Ramkrishna Nagar Block office	1
31	Morongi Block office	1		31	South Karimganj Block office	1
32	Padumani Block office	1		32	Karimganj Sub Registrar office	1
33	Sarupather Block office	1		33	Patharkandi Registrar office	1
34	Golaghat Sub Registrar office	1		34	Ramkrishna Nagar Registrar office	1
35	Bokakhat Registrar office	1		35	Ratabari Registrar office	1
36	Sarupathar Registrar office	1		36	Bhangabazar Registrar office	1
37	Golaghat DTO Office	1		37	Karimganj DTO office	1
38	Golaghat Municipal Office	1		38	Karimganj Municipal Board	1
20	MAJULI DISTRICT	1		20	HAILAKANDI DISTRICT	
39	Majuli DC Office	1		39	Algapur Block office	1
40	Majuli Block office	1		40	Hailakandi Block office	1
41	HOJAI DISTRICT Hojai DC office	1			Katlichera Block office	1
41 42	,	1		42	Lala Block office	1
42	Binnakandi Dev. Bock Udali Dev. Block	1		43 44	South Hailakandi Block office Hailakandi Sub Registrar office	1
43	Dhal Pukhuri Dev. Block	1		44	Katlichera Sub Registrar office	1
45	Lumding Dev. Block	1		46	Hailakandi DTO Office	1
46	Jugijan Dev. Block	1		40	Hailakandi Municipal Board	1
47	Hojai Dy Registrar office	1		.,		47
48	Hojai Municipality Board	1				.,
49	Doboka Municipality Board	1				
50	Lanka Municipality Board	1				
51	Lumding Municipality Board	1				
	IORHAT DISTRICT					
52	(Baghchung) Selenghat Block office	1				
53	Dhekorgorah Block office	1]			
54	Jorhat Block office	1]			
55	Kaliapani Block office	1				
56	Teok Block office	1				
57	Titabor Block office	1				
58	Ujani Majuli Block office	1				
59	Jorhat Sub Registrar office	1				
60	Gormur registrar office	1				
61	Jorhat DTO Office	1				
62	Jorhat Municipality Board	1				
		62				

PART 3 - Contract

1. Definitions 1.2 Applicable Law	62 63
1.3 Language	63
1.4 Notices	63
1.5 Location	63
1.6 Authorized Representatives	63
1.7 Inspection and Audit by the Bank 1.8 Taxes and Duties	63
1.8 Taxes and Duties	63
2.1 Effectiveness of Contract	63
2.2 Commencement of Services	63
2.2.1 Program	63
2.2.2 Starting Date 2.3 Intended Completion Date	63 63
2.4 Modification	63
2.5 Force Majeure	63
2.5.1 Definition	63
2.5.2 No Breach of Contract	63
2.5.3 Extension of Time	63
2.5.4 Payments 2.6 Termination	63 64
2.6.1 By the Employer	64
2.6.2 By the Service Provider	65
2.6.3 Suspension of Loan or Credit	65
2.6.4 Payment upon Termination	65
3.1 General	65
3.2 Conflict of Interests	65
3.2.1 Service Provider Not to Benefit from Commissions and Discounts.	65
3.2.2 Service Provider and Affiliates Not to be Otherwise Interested in Project	65
3.2.3 Prohibition of Conflicting Activities	65
3.3 Confidentiality	66
3.4 Insurance to be Taken Out by the Service Provider 3.5 Service Provider's Actions Requiring Employer's Prior Approval	66 66
3.6 Reporting Obligations	66
3.7 Documents Prepared by the Service Provider to Be the Property of the Employer	66
3.8 Liquidated Damages	66
3.8.1 Payments of Liquidated Damages	66
3.8.2 Correction for Overpayment	66
3.8.3 Lack of performance penalty	66
4. Service Provider's Personnel	66
4.1 Description of Personnel	66
4.2 Removal and/or Replacement of Personnel	66
5. Obligations of the Employer	67
5.1 Assistance and Exemptions	67
5.2 Change in the Applicable Law	67
5.3 Services and Facilities	67
6. Payments to the Service Provider	67
6.1 Lump-Sum Remuneration	67
6.2 Contract Price	67
6.3 Payment for Additional Services, and Performance Incentive Compensation	67
6.4 Terms and Conditions of Payment 6.5 Interest on Delayed Payments	67
6.6 Price Adjustment	67 67-68
6.7 Dayworks	68
7. Quality Control	68
7.1 Identifying Defects 7.2 Correction of Defects, and Lack of Performance Penalty	68 68
7.2 dorrection of Derecto, and Eack of refformance reliaity	
8. Settlement of Disputes	68
8.1 Amicable Settlement	68 68-69
8.2 Dispute Settlement	00-09

Section VII. General Conditions of Contract

- 1. Definitions
- 1.1 Unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms whenever used in this Contract have the following meanings:
 - (a) The Adjudicator is the person appointed jointly by the Employer and the Contractor to resolve disputes in the first instance, as provided for in Sub-Clause 8.2 hereunder.
 - (b) "Activity Schedule" is the priced and completed list of items of Services to be performed by the Service Provider forming part of his Bid;
 - (c) "Bank" means the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development, Washington, D.C., U.S.A.; or
 "Association" means the International Development Association, Washington, D.C., U.S.A.;
 - (d) "Completion Date" means the date of completion of the Services by the Service Provider as certified by the Employer
 - (e) "Contract" means the Contract signed by the Parties, to which these General Conditions of Contract (GCC) are attached, together with all the documents listed in Clause 1 of such signed Contract;
 - (f) "Contract Price" means the price to be paid for the performance of the Services, in accordance with Clause 6;
 - (g) "Dayworks" means varied work inputs subject to payment on a time basis for the Service Provider's employees and equipment, in addition to payments for associated materials and administration.
 - (h) "Employer" means the party who employs the Service Provider
 - (i) "Foreign Currency" means any currency other than the currency of the country of the Employer;
 - (j) "GCC" means these General Conditions of Contract;
 - (k) "Government" means the Government of the Employer's country;
 - (l) "Local Currency" means the currency of the country of the Employer;
 - (m) "Member," in case the Service Provider consist of a joint venture of more than one entity, means any of these entities; "Members" means all these entities, and "Member in Charge" means the entity specified in the SC to act on their behalf in exercising all the Service Provider' rights and obligations towards the Employer under this Contract
 - (n) "Party" means the Employer or the Service Provider, as the case may be, and "Parties" means both of them;
 - (0) "Personnel" means persons hired by the Service Provider or by any Subcontractor as employees and assigned to the performance of the Services or any part thereof;
 - (p) "Service Provider" is a person or corporate body whose Bid to provide the Services has been accepted by the Employer;
 - (q) "Service Provider's Bid" means the completed bidding document submitted by the Service Provider to the Employer
 - (r) "SCC" means the Special Conditions of Contract by which the GCC may be amended or supplemented;
 - (s) "Specifications" means the specifications of the service included in the bidding document submitted by the Service Provider to the Employer
 - (t) "Services" means the work to be performed by the Service Provider pursuant to this Contract, as described in Appendix A; and in the Specifications and Schedule of Activities included in the Service Provider's Bid.
 - (u) "Subcontractor" means any entity to which the Service Provider subcontracts any part of the Services in accordance with the provisions of Sub-Clauses 3.5 and 4.

1.2 Applicable Law	The Contract shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the Employer's country, unless otherwise specified in the Special Conditions of Contract (SCC) .
1.3 Language	This Contract has been executed in the language specified in the SCC , which shall be the binding and controlling language for all matters relating to the meaning or interpretation of this Contract.
1.4 Notices	Any notice, request, or consent made pursuant to this Contract shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been made when delivered in person to an authorized representative of the Party to whom the communication is addressed, or when sent by registered mail, telex, telegram, or facsimile to such Party at the address specified in the SCC
1.5 Location	The Services shall be performed at such locations as are specified in Appendix A, in the specifications and, where the location of a particular task is not so specified, at such locations, whether in the Government's country or elsewhere, as the Employer may approve.
1.6 Authorized Representatives	Any action required or permitted to be taken, and any document required or permitted to be executed, under this Contract by the Employer or the Service Provider may be taken or executed by the officials specified in the SCC .
1.7 Inspection and Audit by the Bank	The Service Provider shall permit the Bank to inspect its accounts and records relating to the performance of the Services and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the Bank, if so required by the Bank.
1.8 Taxes and Duties	The Service Provider, Subcontractors, and their Personnel shall pay such taxes, duties, fees, and other impositions as may be levied under the Applicable Law, the amount of which is deemed to have been included in the Contract Price.
	2. Commencement, Completion, Modification, and Termination of Contract
2.1 Effectiveness of Contract	This Contract shall come into effect on the date the Contract is signed by both parties or such other later date as may be stated in the SCC.
2.2 Commencement of	
Services 2.2.1 Program	Before commencement of the Services, the Service Provider shall submit to the Employer for approval a Program showing the general methods, arrangements, order and timing for all activities. The Services shall be carried out in accordance with the approved Program as updated.
2.2.2 Starting Date	The Service Provider shall start carrying out the Services thirty (30) days after the date the Contract becomes effective, or at such other date as may be specified in the SCC.
2.3 Intended Completion Date	Unless terminated earlier pursuant to Sub-Clause 2.6, the Service Provider shall complete the activities by the Intended Completion Date, as is specified in the SCC . If the Service Provider does not complete the activities by the Intended Completion Date, it shall be liable to pay liquidated damage as per Sub-Clause 3.8. In this case,
2.4 Modification	Modification of the terms and conditions of this Contract, including any modification of the scope of the Services or of the Contract Price, may only be made by written agreement between the Parties and shall not be effective until the consent of the Bank or of the Association, as the case may be, has been obtained.
2.5 Force Majeure	
2.5.1 Definition	For the purposes of this Contract, "Force Majeure" means an event which is beyond the reasonable control of a Party and which makes a Party's performance of its obligations under the Contract impossible or so impractical as to be considered impossible under the circumstances.
2.5.2 No Breach of Contract	The failure of a Party to fulfill any of its obligations under the contract shall not be considered to be a breach of, or default under, this Contract insofar as such inability arises from an event of Force Majeure, provided that the Party affected by such an event (a) has taken all reasonable precautions, due care and reasonable alternative measures in order to carry out the terms and conditions of this Contract, and (b) has informed the other Party as soon as possible about the occurrence of such an event.
2.5.3 Extension of Time	Any period within which a Party shall, pursuant to this Contract, complete any action or task, shall be extended for a period equal to the time during which such Party was unable to perform such action as a result of Force Majeure.

2.5.4 Payments During the period of their inability to perform the Services as a result of an event of Force Majeure, the Service Provider shall be entitled to continue to be paid under the terms of this Contract, as well as to be reimbursed for additional costs reasonably and necessarily incurred by them during such period for the purposes of the Services and in reactivating the Service after the end of such period.

2.6 Termination

2.6.1 By the Employer

The Employer may terminate this Contract, by not less than thirty (30) days' written notice of termination to the Service Provider, to be given after the occurrence of any of the events specified in paragraphs (a) through (d) of this Sub-Clause 2.6.1:

- (a) if the Service Provider does not remedy a failure in the performance of its obligations under the Contract, within thirty (30) days after being notified or within any further period as the Employer may have subsequently approved in writing;
- (b) if the Service Provider become insolvent or bankrupt;
- (c) if, as the result of Force Majeure, the Service Provider is unable to perform a material portion of the Services for a period of not less than sixty (60) days; or
- (d) if the Service Provider, in the judgment of the Employer has engaged in corrupt or fraudulent practices in competing for or in executing the Contract.
 For the purposes of this Sub-Clause:
 - "corrupt practice"¹⁰ is the offering, giving, receiving or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence improperly the actions of another party;
 - (ii) "fraudulent practice"¹¹ is any act or omission, including a misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to obtain a financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;
 - (iii) "collusive practice"¹² is an arrangement between two or more parties designed to achieve an improper purpose, including to influence improperly the actions of another party;
 - (iv) "coercive practice"¹³ is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence improperly the actions of a party;
 - (v) "obstructive practice" is
 - (aa) deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering or concealing of evidence material to the investigation or making false statements to investigators in order to materially impede a Bank investigation into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive or collusive practice; and/or threatening, harassing or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to the investigation or from pursuing the investigation, or acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the Bank's inspection and audit rights provided for under para. 1.14 (e) of the Bank's Procurement Guidelines
 - (bb) acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the Bank's inspection and audit rights provided for under para. 1.14 (e) of the Bank's Procurement Guidelines.

¹⁰ For the purpose of this Contract, "another party" refers to a public official acting in relation to the procurement process or contract execution. In this context, "public official" includes World Bank staff and employees of other organizations taking or reviewing procurement decisions.

¹¹ For the purpose of this Contract, "party" refers to a public official; the terms "benefit" and "obligation" relate to the procurement process or contract execution; and the "act or omission" is intended to influence the procurement process or contract execution.

¹² For the purpose of this Contract, "parties" refers to participants in the procurement process (including public officials) attempting to establish bid prices at artificial, non competitive levels.

¹³ For the purpose of this Contract, "party" refers to a participant in the procurement process or contract execution.

2.6.2 By the Service Provider

2.6.3 Suspension of Loan or Credit

2.6.4 Payment upon Termination

The Service Provider may terminate this Contract, by not less than thirty (30) days' written notice to the Employer, such notice to be given after the occurrence of any of the events specified in paragraphs (a) and (b) of this Sub-Clause 2.6.2:

- (a)if the Employer fails to pay any monies due to the Service Provider pursuant to this Contract and not subject to dispute pursuant to Clause 7 within fortyfive (45) days after receiving written notice from the Service Provider that such payment is overdue; or
- (b) if, as the result of Force Majeure, the Service Provider is unable to perform a material portion of the Services for a period of not less than sixty (60) days.

In the event that the World Bank suspends the loan or Credit to the Employer, from which part of the payments to the Service Provider are being made:

- (d)The Employer is obligated to notify the Service Provider of such suspension within 7 days of having received the World Bank's suspension notice.
- (e) If the Service Provider has not received sums due to by the due date stated in the SCC in accordance with Sub-Clause 6.5 the Service Provider may immediately issue a 14 day termination notice

Upon termination of this Contract pursuant to Sub-Clauses 2.6.1 or 2.6.2, the Employer shall make the following payments to the Service Provider:

- (a) remuneration pursuant to Clause 6 for Services satisfactorily performed prior to the effective date of termination;
- (b) except in the case of termination pursuant to paragraphs (a), (b), (d) of Sub-Clause 2.6.1, reimbursement of any reasonable cost incident to the prompt and orderly termination of the Contract, including the cost of the return travel of the Personnel

3. Obligations of the Service Provider

The Service Provider shall perform the Services in accordance with the Specifications 3.1 General and the Activity Schedule, and carry out its obligations with all due diligence, efficiency, and economy, in accordance with generally accepted professional techniques and practices, and shall observe sound management practices, and employ appropriate advanced technology and safe methods. The Service Provider shall always act, in respect of any matter relating to this Contract or to the Services, as faithful adviser to the Employer, and shall at all times support and safeguard the Employer's legitimate interests in any dealings with Subcontractors or third parties.

3.2 Conflict of Interests

3.2.1 Service Provider Not to Benefit from **Commissions and Discounts.**

3.2.2 Service Provider and Affiliates Not to be Otherwise **Interested** in Project

3.2.3 Prohibition of Conflicting Activities

The remuneration of the Service Provider pursuant to Clause 6 shall constitute the Service Provider's sole remuneration in connection with this Contract or the Services, and the Service Provider shall not accept for their own benefit any trade commission, discount, or similar payment in connection with activities pursuant to this Contract or to the Services or in the discharge of their obligations under the Contract, and the Service Provider shall use their best efforts to ensure that the Personnel, any Subcontractors, and agents of either of them similarly shall not receive any such additional remuneration.

The Service Provider agree that, during the term of this Contract and after its termination, the Service Provider and its affiliates, as well as any Subcontractor and any of its affiliates, shall be disqualified from providing goods, works, or Services (other than the Services and any continuation thereof) for any project resulting from or closely related to the Services.

Neither the Service Provider nor its Subcontractors nor the Personnel shall engage, either directly or indirectly, in any of the following activities:

- (a) during the term of this Contract, any business or professional activities in the Government's country which would conflict with the activities assigned to them under this Contract;
- (b) during the term of this Contract, neither the Service Provider nor their Subcontractors shall hire public employees in active duty or on any type of leave, to perform any activity under this Contract;
- (c) after the termination of this Contract, such other activities as may be **specified** in the SCC

- 3.3 Confidentiality The Service Provider, its Subcontractors, and the Personnel of either of them shall not, either during the term or within two (2) years after the expiration of this Contract, disclose any proprietary or confidential information relating to the Project, the Services, this Contract, or the Employer's business or operations without the prior written consent of the Employer.
- 3.4 Insurance to be The Service Provider (a) shall take out and maintain, and shall cause any Taken Out by the Subcontractors to take out and maintain, at its (or the Subcontractors', as the case **Service Provider** may be) own cost but on terms and conditions approved by the Employer, insurance against the risks, and for the coverage, as shall be **specified in the SCC**; and (b) at the Employer's request, shall provide evidence to the Employer showing that such insurance has been taken out and maintained and that the current premiums have been paid.
- 3.5 Service Provider's The Service Provider shall obtain the Employer's prior approval in writing before **Actions Requiring** taking any of the following actions: **Employer's Prior**
 - entering into a subcontract for the performance of any part of the Services, (a)
 - (b) appointing such members of the Personnel not listed by name in Appendix C ("Key Personnel and Subcontractors"),
 - (c) changing the Program of activities; and
 - (d) any other action that may be **specified in the SCC.**
- 3.6 Reporting The Service Provider shall submit to the Employer the reports and documents **Obligations** specified in Appendix B in the form, in the numbers, and within the periods set forth in the said Appendix.
- 3.7 Documents Prepared by the Service Provider to Be the Property of the Employer

Approval

All plans, drawings, specifications, designs, reports, and other documents and software submitted by the Service Provider in accordance with Sub-Clause 3.6 shall become and remain the property of the Employer, and the Service Provider shall, not later than upon termination or expiration of this Contract, deliver all such documents and software to the Employer, together with a detailed inventory thereof. The Service Provider may retain a copy of such documents and software. Restrictions about the future use of these documents, if any, shall be **specified in the SCC**

- 3.8 Liquidated
- Damages 3.8.1 Payments of Liquidated Damages

3.8.2 Correction for **Overpayment**

3.8.3 Lack of performance penalty

4. Service Provider's Personnel 4.1 Description of Personnel

4.2 Removal and/or **Replacement of** Personnel

The Service Provider shall pay liquidated damages to the Employer at the rate per day stated in the SCC for each day that the Completion Date is later than the Intended Completion Date. The total amount of liquidated damages shall not exceed the amount defined in the SCC. The Employer may deduct liquidated damages from payments due to the Service Provider. Payment of liquidated damages shall not affect the Service Provider's liabilities

If the Intended Completion Date is extended after liquidated damages have been paid, the Employer shall correct any overpayment of liquidated damages by the Service Provider by adjusting the next payment certificate. The Service Provider shall be paid interest on the overpayment, calculated from the date of payment to the date of repayment, at the rates specified in SubClause 6.5.

If the Service Provider has not corrected a Defect within the time specified in the Employer's notice, a penalty for Lack of performance will be paid by the Service Provider. The amount to be paid will be calculated as a percentage of the cost of having the Defect corrected, assessed as described in Sub-Clause 7.2 and specified in the SCC.

The titles, agreed job descriptions, minimum gualifications, and estimated periods of engagement in the carrying out of the Services of the Service Provider's Key Personnel are described in Appendix C. The Key Personnel and Subcontractors listed by title as well as by name in Appendix C are hereby approved by the Employer

(a) Except as the Employer may otherwise agree, no changes shall be made in the Key Personnel. If, for any reason beyond the reasonable control of the Service Provider, it becomes necessary to replace any of the Key Personnel, the Service Provider shall provide as a replacement a person of equivalent or better qualifications.

- (b) If the Employer finds that any of the Personnel have (i) committed serious misconduct or have been charged with having committed a criminal action, or (ii) have reasonable cause to be dissatisfied with the performance of any of the Personnel, then the Service Provider shall, at the Employer's written request specifying the grounds thereof, provide as a replacement a person with qualifications and experience acceptable to the Employer.
- (c) The Service Provider shall have no claim for additional costs arising out of or incidental to any removal and/or replacement of Personnel.

The Employer shall use its best efforts to ensure that the Government shall provide the Service Provider such assistance and exemptions as **specified in the SCC**.

If, after the date of this Contract, there is any change in the Applicable Law with respect to taxes and duties which increases or decreases the cost of the Services rendered by the Service Provider, then the remuneration and reimbursable expenses otherwise payable to the Service Provider under this Contract shall be increased or decreased accordingly by agreement between the Parties, and corresponding adjustments shall be made to the amounts referred to in Sub-Clauses 6.2 (a) or (b), as the case may be.

- 5.3 Services and
FacilitiesThe Employer shall make available to the Service Provider the Services and FacilitiesIsted under Appendix F.
- 6. Payments to the Service Provider

Remuneration

6.1 Lump-Sum

The Service Provider's remuneration shall not exceed the Contract Price and shall be a fixed lump-sum including all Subcontractors' costs, and all other costs incurred by the Service Provider in carrying out the Services described in Appendix A. Except as provided in SubClause 5.2, the Contract Price may only be increased above the amounts stated in Sub-Clause 6.2 if the Parties have agreed to additional payments in accordance with Sub-Clauses 2.4 and 6.3

- (a) The price payable in local currency is **set forth in the SCC**.
- (b) The price payable in foreign currency is set **forth in the SCC.**
- 6.3.1 For the purpose of determining the remuneration due for additional Services as may be agreed under Sub-Clause 2.4, a breakdown of the lump-sum price is provided in Appendices D and E.
- 6.3.2 **If the SCC so specify,** the service provider shall be paid performance incentive compensation as set out in the Performance Incentive Compensation appendix.

Payments will be made to the Service Provider according to the payment schedule **stated in the SCC. Unless otherwise stated in the SCC**, the advance payment (Advance for Mobilization, Materials and Supplies) shall be made against the provision by the Service Provider of a bank guarantee for the same amount, and shall be valid for the period **stated in the SCC**. Any other payment shall be made after the conditions **listed in the SCC** for such payment have been met, and the Service Provider have submitted an invoice to the Employer specifying the amount due.

If the Employer has delayed payments beyond fifteen (15) days after the due date stated in the SCC, interest shall be paid to the Service Provider for each day of delay at the rate stated in the SCC.

6.6.1 Prices shall be adjusted for fluctuations in the cost of inputs only if **provided for in the SCC.** If so provided, the amounts certified in each payment certificate, after deducting for Advance Payment, shall be adjusted by applying the respective price adjustment factor to the payment amounts due in each currency. A separate formula of the type indicated below applies to each Contract currency:

$P_c = A_c + B_c Lmc/Loc + C_c Imc/Ioc$ Where:

 P_{c} is the adjustment factor for the portion of the Contract Price payable in a specific currency "c".

 A_c , B_c and C_c are coefficients specified in the SCC, representing: A_c the nonadjustable portion; B_c the adjustable portion relative to labor costs and C_c the adjustable portion for other inputs, of the Contract Price payable in that

5. Obligations of the Employer

- 5.1 Assistance and Exemptions
- 5.2 Change in the Applicable Law

6.2 Contract Price

6.3 Payment for Additional Services, and Performance Incentive Compensation

6.4 Terms and Conditions of Payment

6.5 Interest on Delayed Payments

6.6 Price Adjustment

		specific currency "c"; and
		Lmc is the index prevailing at the first day of the month of the corresponding invoice date and Loc is the index prevailing 28 days before Bid opening for labor; both in the specific currency "c".
		Imc is the index prevailing at the first day of the month of the corresponding invoice date and loc is the index prevailing 28 days before Bid opening for other inputs payable; both in the specific currency "c".
		If a price adjustment factor is applied to payments made in a currency other than the currency of the source of the index for a particular indexed input, a correction factor Zo/Zn will be applied to the respective component factor of pn for the formula of the relevant currency. Zo is the number of units of currency of the country of the index, equivalent to one unit of the currency payment on the date of the base index, and Zn is the corresponding number of such currency units on the date of the current index
	calcu	If the value of the index is changed after it has been used in a calculation, the lation shall be corrected and an adjustment made in the next payment certificate. index value shall be deemed to take account of all changes in cost due to fluctuations sts
6.7 Dayworks	6.7.1	If applicable, the Daywork rates in the Service Provider's Bid shall be used for small additional amounts of Services only when the Employer has given written instructions in advance for additional services to be paid in that way.
	6.7.2 All work to be paid for as Dayworks shall be recorded by the Service Provider on forms approved by the Employer. Each completed form shall be verified and signed by the Employer representative as indicated in Sub-Clause 1.6 within two days of the Services being performed.	
	6.7.3	The Service Provider shall be paid for Dayworks subject to obtaining signed Dayworks forms as indicated in Sub-Clause 6.7.2
7. Quality Control		
7.1 Identifying Defects	The principle and modalities of Inspection of the Services by the Employer shall be as indicated in the SCC. The Employer shall check the Service Provider's performance and notify him of any Defects that are found. Such checking shall not affect the Service Provider's responsibilities. The Employer may instruct the Service Provider to search for a Defect and to uncover and test any service that the Employer considers may have a Defect. Defect Liability Period is as defined in the SCC	
7.2 Correction of Defects, and Lack of Performance Penalty	(a)	The Employer shall give notice to the Service Provider of any Defects before the end of the Contract. The Defects liability period shall be extended for as long as Defects remain to be corrected.
	(b)	Every time notice a Defect is given, the Service Provider shall correct the notified Defect within the length of time specified by the Employer's notice.
	(c)	If the Service Provider has not corrected a Defect within the time specified in the Employer's notice, the Employer will assess the cost of having the Defect corrected, the Service Provider will pay this amount, and a Penalty for Lack of Performance calculated as described in Sub-Clause 3.8.
8. Settlement of Disputes		
8.1 Amicable Settlement	The Parties shall use their best efforts to settle amicably all disputes arising out of or in connection with this Contract or its interpretation.	
8.2 Dispute Settlement	8.2.1	If any dispute arises between the Employer and the Service Provider in connection with, or arising out of, the Contract or the provision of the Services, whether during carrying out the Services or after their completion, the matter shall be referred to the Adjudicator within 14 days of the notification of disagreement of one party to the other.
	8.2.2	The Adjudicator shall give a decision in writing within 28 days of receipt of a notification of a dispute.
	8.2.3	The Adjudicator shall be paid by the hour at the rate specified in the BDS and SCC , together with reimbursable expenses of the types specified in the SCC , and the cost shall be divided equally between the Employer and the Service Provider, whatever decision is reached by the Adjudicator. Either

party may refer a decision of the Adjudicator to an Arbitrator within 28 days of the Adjudicator's written decision. If neither party refers the dispute to arbitration within the above 28 days, the Adjudicator's decision will be final and binding.

- 8.2.4 The arbitration shall be conducted in accordance with the arbitration procedure published by the institution named and in the place **shown in the SCC.**
- 8.2.5 Should the Adjudicator resign or die, or should the Employer and the Service Provider agree that the Adjudicator is not functioning in accordance with the provisions of the Contract, a new Adjudicator will be jointly appointed by the Employer and the Service Provider. In case of disagreement between the Employer and the Service Provider, within 30 days, the Adjudicator shall be designated by the Appointing Authority **designated in the SCC** at the request of either party, within 14 days of receipt of such request

Section VIII. Special Conditions of Contract

Section VIII. Special Conditions of Contract

Number of GCC	Amendments of, and Supplements to, Clauses in the General Conditions of Contract (GCC)					
1.1	The words "in the Government's country" are amended to read "in India."					
1.1(a)	The Adjudicator is Sri M.C. Boro, Retired Commissioner & Secretary, Public Works Roads Department , Government of Assam, at an hourly fee of INR 2500/-(Indian Rupees Two thousand five hundred only)					
1.1(e)	(e) The contract name is "Service Provider Agency (SPA) for providing Non-Consulting Serv Setting-up and Management of the Public Facilitations Centers (PFCs) in the dist Assam (excluding the seven districts under the Sixth-Schedule Autonomous Counc providing services under the ARTPS Act, 2012: Package No					
	Package	Approximate	Districts			
	Deckage 1	Nos. of PFCs 63	Dhubri, South Salmara, Bongaigaon, Goalpara, Barpeta (5 Dists)			
	Package-1 Package-2	60	Nalbari, Kamrup Rural, Kamrup Metro, Darrang, Morigaon (5 Dists)			
	Package-3	56	Sonitpur, Biswanath, Lakhimpur Dhemaji (4 Dists)			
	Package-4	40	Charaideo, Dibrugarh, Sibsagar, Tinsukia (4 Dists)			
	Package-5	62	Nagaon, Golaghat, Majuli, Hojai, Jorhat (5 Dists)			
	Package-6	47	Cachar, Karimganj, Hailakandi (3 Dists)			
	Total 328 [Note- In case a bidder is submitting bids for multiple packages, each bid shall be submitted in					
1.1(h)	Commiss	ioner & Se	tate Project Director, ARIAS Society, on behalf of the cretary to the Government of Assam, Administrative epartment, Dispur, Guwahati-781006			
1.1(m)	The Member in Charge is (to be filled up at the time of signing of contract)					
1.1(p)	The Service	Provider is	(to be filled up at the time of signing of contract)			
1.2	The Applica	ble Law is: Ind	ian Laws			
1.3	The language is English					
1.4	The addresses are: Employer:					
	State Project Director, Assam Citizen-Centric Service Delivery Project (ACCSDP) Assam Rural Infrastructure and Agricultural Services (ARIAS) Society, Agriculture Complex, Khanapara, G.S. Road, Guwahati-781022 (Assam, India) website: www.arias.in Telephone: +91 361-2332125, Electronic mail address: spd@arias.in, The address of Service Provider:					
	Telex: Facsimile:					
1.6	The Authorized Representatives are: For the Employer: (1) State Project Director, ARIAS Society; (2) Authority of the District e-Governance Societies; and (3) any other Authority(ies) as may be added by the client during performance of the contract for administrative convenience.					
	For the Service Provider:					
2.1	The date on	which this Con	tract shall come into effect is date of signing of contract .			

2.3	The Intended Completion Date of the contract is thirty-six months or three (3) years from the date of signing the contract.				
	The SPA shall have to complete setting up of the PFCs included in the pckage and making them fully functional within maximum 8 Months from the signing of the contract agreement. However, if the SPA fails to establish atleast the number of PFCs indicated at para 17 & 18 of the Activity Schedule within 6 months from the date of signing of agreement, the client shall impose Liquidated Damage (LD) for the delay at the rate furnished in SCC Clause 3.8.1 and upon the LD reaching 10% of the Contract Price, the employer may initiate action for termination of the contract agreement for poor performance of the SPA.				
3.2.3	Activities prohibited after termination of this Contract are: No machinery (computer & peripherals) and other material / document pertaining to the contract shall be used without the specific written concurrence of the employer .				
3.4	The risks and coverage by insurance shall be:				
	 (i) Third Party motor vehicle liability insurance in respect of motor vehicles operated in the Government's country by the Consultant or its Personnel or any Sub-Consultants or their Personnel, with a minimum coverage of: as per The Motor Vehicles Act, 1988 with amendments if any as on date; 				
	 (ii) employer's liability and workers' compensation insurance in respect of the Personnel of the service provider, in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Applicable Laws of India, as well as life, health, accident, travel or other insurance in respect of such Personnel as may be appropriate as per applicable laws; and 				
	$({ m iii})$ professional liability insurance, with a minimum coverage equivalent to the Contract amount				
	(iv) Insurance for the machinery (computer & peripherals) supplied & installed by the SPA, with a minimum coverage equivalent to 1.5 times the amount quoted by the SPA for the machinery. The beneficiary of the insurance shall be the client i.e. the State Project Director, ARIAS Society				
3.5(d)	The other actions: Any substitutions or inclusions of the proposed staff should be sent for prior approval by the employers or his authorized agent (as directed) with proper justification.				
3.8.1	The Liquidated Damage (LD) for failing to setupand making them fully functional within maximum 8 Months from the signing of the contract agreement OR if the SPA fails to setup & establish atleast 50 PFCs within 6 months from the date of signing of agreement would be at the rate of 0.5 percent (0.5%) per day for the delay after 6 months from the date of signing of the contract agreement.				
	The maximum amount of liquidated damages for the whole contract is 10% of the total contract price.				
	Upon the total amount of LD reaching 10% of the Contract Price, the employer may initiate action for termination of the contract agreement for non-performance by the SPA.				
3.8.3	Lack of Performance shall be measured by the criteria given for the Service Level Agreement (SLA) provided in Annex-1 of the Activity Schedule the Activity Schedule and payment to the SPA shall be linked to the Achievement of the SLA by the SPA.				
3.9	The performance security shall be 10% of the contract value to be furnished in the form of an unconditional Bank Guarantee in the form provided in the bidding document or another form acceptable to the Purchaser.				
	In case of JV, the Performance Security of a JV must be in the name of the JV that submits the bid				
	The proceeds of the Performance Security shall be payable to the Client as compensation for any loss resulting from the SPA's failure to complete its obligations under the Contract.				
5.1	The assistance and exemptions provided to the Service Provider are: NIL				
6.2(a)	The amount in local currency is INR (Indian Rupees)				
6.2(b)	The amount in foreign currency or currencies is (to be filled up at the time of signing the contract agreement)				

6.4	Term	ns & Conditions of Payment:
	6.4.1	Payment to foreign firms shall be made in the currency of the contract through irrevocable confirmed Letter of Credit (LC) opened in favor of the Supplier in a bank in its country, upon submission of documents specified in SCC 6.4.2 and SCC 6.4.3 below. Payment of local currency portion of the contract shall be made only in Indian Rupees through electronic banking mode.
	6.4.2	Advance Payment for Mobilization, Machinery and Supplies shall be made as per the following norms:
	(a)	Ten percent (10%) of the Contract Price shall be paid as interest free advance after signing of the contract, within 30 (thirty) Working days from the date of submission of a Bank Guarantee (BG) equivalent to the amount and in the currency in which advance payment is sought.
	(b)	The advance payment shall set off by the Client by deduction at the rate of 25% from each bill/invoice certified for payment by the client/authorized agent of the client to the Service Provider Agency (SPA).
	(c)	The deduction from payments will commence 3 (three) months after the date of releasing the advance payment by the Client and will continue till completion of the recovery of full amount of advance payment within 30 (thirty) months from the date of the contract. The amount of deduction will be suitably revised/ raised by the Client, if necessary, so as to complete the recovery of full amount of advance payment within said period of 30 (thirty) months.
	(d)	The amortization of the Advance mentioned above shall commence when interim payments have reached 25% of the contract price and be completed when the interim payments have reached 75%.
	(e)	The Bank Guarantee (BG) for the advance payment shall remain valid until entire amount of the advance payment has been adjusted from the Service Provider Agency's bill, after which the BG shall be returned by the Client.
	6.4.3	Interim Payments:
	(a)	The SPA shall submit PFC wise monthly bills (both soft & hard copy) to the client or his Authorized Agent which are commissioned and made fully operational by the SPA. Payment shall be made by the client or his Authorized Agent.
	(b)	The bills shall be raised PFC wise & District Wise and the bills shall have to be certified by the <i>Authority of the DeGS/ Deputy Commissioner or his authorized agent</i> . The bills shall be accompanied by the necessary relevant vouchers which shall also have to be duly certified as cited above. The format of the bill will be provided by the client at the time of signing the contract agreement.
	(c)	The payment by the client or his Authorized Agent shall be based on the achievement of SLAs by the SPA defined in this Activity Schedule.
	(d)	Payment to the SPA for the Remuneration of PFC Operators and the Internet Connectivity based on the achievement of the SLA shall be made by the client through the respective Authority of the DeGS on a monthly basis. However, the payment to the SPA for other elements of the contract agreement will be made by the client on quarterly basis based on the achievement of the SLA by the SPA.
		Note: (1) 15% of the remuneration of the PFC Operators shall be linked to the achievement of the SLA for the average time taken to submit a RTPS application by the PFC Operator and 10% of the remuneration of the PFC Operators shall be linked also the attendance of the PFC Operator.
		(2) 100% of the connectivity shall be linked to the achievement of the SLA for the average time taken to submit a RTPS application by the PFC Operator and also the attendance of the PFC Operator
	(e)	Verification Protocol of SLAs/bills before releasing Payment:
		i) The payment for the Remuneration of PFC Operators and the Internet Connectivity shall be based on the achievement of the SLA.
		ii) For the payment to the SPA for other elements of the contract, the monthly SLA

Achievement Reports and Bills submitted for each PFC by the SPA shall be reconfirmed by the client with the authority of the District e-Governance Society (DeGS). In case of contradiction from the DeGS, the payment for the concerned PFC/bill will be held up till it is resolved with the DeGS and SPA.

iii)	Verification protocol of the SLA Achievements Report submitted by the SPA:
------	--

Sl.	SLA Items	Verification Process	Score of the SPA as per SLA
1	Machines (Computer & Peripherals)	Verify with the Data collected for the machines at the PFCs by NMS/ Remote	
	1 /	Monitoring Software	
2	Average time taken to submit an RTPS application in a month	RTPS Portal Data/NMS/ Remote Monitoring Software	
3	Printing Charges for Acknowledgement	Verify with the record maintained at the RTPS portal for the PFC	

Note: In case the discrepancy between the data provided by the NMS or by the equivalent software and data mentioned in the bills of the client is within 10%, the discrepancy will be ignored. However, if the difference is over 10%, the authority of the District e-Governance Society will do a random/impromptu verification in the PFC for compliance of the concerned SLA in presence of the PFC Operators and the data that would emerge from NMS/Monitoring Software at that point of time shall be applicable.

- iv) The bill shall be verified by the Authority of the DeGS. The process for verification of the SLA Achievements Report and Bills shall be completed within fifteen (15) working days after receipt of the reports and the bills from the SPA and subject to confirmation of no-issues, the Payment shall be made by the client within fifteen (15) working days thereafter. If the issues are not resolved or settled within 45 days from the date of receipt of the reports and the bills from the SPA, the matter shall be brought under adjudication.
- (f) Payment for Supply & installation of the Machines (Computers & Peripherals):
 - i) Seventy percent (70%) of the payment for the supply of the Machines [computers & peripherals mentioned in the Activity Schedule] be made in accordance with the provisions of the contract agreement subject to the following compliance *viz*.
 - installation of 2 computers along with peripherals defined in this Activity Schedule including UPS and Antivirus Software & NMS/Monitoring software as per given specifications, along with availability of the 2 PFC Operators and the Internet Connectivity of *minimum 4 Mbps for Download and Minimum 1 Mbps for Upload* at each PFCs;
 - invoice for the machines etc. is submitted by the SPA to the client in accordance with the Activity Schedule;
 - the PFC Set-up including the machines, connectivity, operators etc. is verified by the UAT committee constituted pursuant to the provisions in this Activity schedule.
 - Insurance for accidental & liquid damage and theft protection of the computers and peripherals have been covered
 - ii) The balance Thirty percent (30%) of the payment for the supply the Machines (computers & peripherals) will be paid by the client over a period of 36 months and shall be linked to the following SLA:
 - The machines (computers & peripherals) shall be maintained by the SPA. The performance shall be checked by the Client regularly and any machines which do not fulfill the requirements shall be replaced by the SPA with the same configuration mentioned in Activity Schedule;
 - There should be no unplanned downtime for more than 30 minutes during 9:30 AM to 5:30 PM of working days; Any schedule maintenance & downtime shall be informed properly to the client;
 - iii) If there are any problems or issues with the machines (computer, printers, etc.), the

issue/problem shall be logged immediately and it shall be fixed or replaced within 2 (two) working days;

- Down time due to force majeure like earthquake, natural calamities, floods, riots etc. will be excluded while calculating the downtime of machines.
- The availability of Machines (computer & peripherals) in a PFC shall be calculated on monthly basis based on the daily availability report captured in the NMS or monitoring software during the working days of the PFCs. The NMS shall capture the availability on 8 instances on daily basis.
- SLA matrix for Machines (Computer & Peripherals):

Availability of Computers & Peripherals at each PFCs for 8 Hours between of 9:30AM to 5:30PM of working days as per report captured in NMS	Score
Average Availability of 98.00% or More of 8 Hours	1.0
Average Availability of 90.00% to 98.00% of 8 Hours	0.9
Average Availability of 80.00% to <90.00% of 8 Hours	0.8
Average Availability of 70.00% to <80.00% of 8 Hours	0.7
Average Availability of 60.00% to <70.00% of 8 Hours	0.6
Average Availability of 50.00% to <60.00% of 8 Hours	0.5
Average Availability of 40.00% to <50.00% of 8 Hours	0.4
Average Availability of 30.00% to <40.00% of 8 Hours	0.3
Average Availability of 20.00% to <30.00% of 8 Hours	0.2
Average Availability of < 20% of 8 Hours	0.0
	(no Payment)

- Payment: (30% of the remaining amount of the quoted price by SPA/ 36 months)x the SLA score given by the NMS/Monitoring Software.
- In case the discrepancy between the data provided in the invoices/bills by the SPA and that of the NMS/Monitoring Software is within 10%, the discrepancy will be ignored. However, if the difference is over 10%, the authority of the District e-Governance Society will do a random/impromptu verification in the PFC for compliance of the concerned SLA in presence of the PFC Operators and the data that would emerge from NMS at that point of time shall be applicable.
- (g) **Time required for submitting RTPS application at the PFC Desk:** The time taken for submitting each application will be recorded in the ARTPS Portal/other application provided by the client. The ARTPS Portal/other application will have a functionality to calculate and record the time consumed for submitting an application by the operators. The calculation will start from the opening of the application form and clicking "submit" button to submit the application. The calculation will include the scanning of the prerequisite documents.

The average time required for submitting application shall be calculated on a basis based on the daily report captured by the ARTPS Portal.	monthly
Total number of minutes consumed for submission of the applications in a day/ Total number of application submitted in a day	Score
30 Minute	1.0
35 Minute	0.8
40 Minute	0.6
> 45 Minute	0.5

Note: Down time of computer/internet connectivity due to force majeure conditions like earthquake, natural calamities, floods, riots etc. will be excluded while calculating the down time.

This SLA will be linked for payment for the remuneration of the PFC Operators

- (h) **Payment for the Remuneration of the Operators of a PFC**: Payment for the remuneration of the Operators of each PFC shall be paid by client or by the authorized agent of the client on monthly basis and it is based on the following SLA:
 - i) The two (2) PFC Operators shall attend the respective PFCs from 9:30AM to 5:30PM on all working days of the Assam Government.
 - ii) For any leave beyond two (2) days by any PFC Operator, the SPA shall have to provide an alternate Operator with same qualification & experience. No concurrent leave shall be granted by the SPA for both the PFC operators of a PFC.
 - iii) Replacement of any PFC Operator (due to leave or attrition) by the SPA shall be

done with specific approval of the client/authority of District e-Governance Society *(DeGS)*.

- iv) The availability of PFC Operator shall be calculated on a monthly basis *(on all working days of the State Government/......)* based on the daily attendance report captured in the Network Management Systems/Monitoring Software through the Biometric devices installed in the computers in the PFCs by the SPA.
- v) The Service Center Operator shall login before 9:30AM and logout after 5:30PM.
- vi) SLA Matrix for payment by Client for PFC Operators:

Availability % the PFC Operator at the PFC out of the 8 working hours from 9:30AM to 5:30PM on the working days of a month	Score
90.00% or more	1.0
80.00% to <90.00%	0.9
70.00% to <80.00%	0.8
60.00% to <70.00%	0.7
50.00% to <60.00%	0.6
40.00% to <50.00%	0.5
<40.00%	0.0
	(No Payment)

vii) Client reserves the right to direct the SPA to replace any PFC Operator, without assigning any reason, if the performance of the Operator is not satisfied as per report submitted by the Authority of District e-Governance Society *(DeGS)*.

viii) In case the discrepancy between the data provided by the SPA and that of the NMS/Monitoring Software is within 10%, the discrepancy will be ignored. However, if the difference is over 10%, the authority of the District e-Governance Society will do a random/impromptu verification in the PFC for compliance of the concerned SLA and the data that would emerge at that point of time shall be applicable.

(i) Payment for the Remuneration of the Team Leader, Sr System Administrator, Sr Network Administrator, System & Network Administrator, Helpdesk Operator and Support Staff: Payment for the remuneration of the Team Leader, System and Network Administrator, Helpdesk Operator and Support Staff shall be paid by the client on Quarterly basis and it is based on the following SLA:

- i) The **Team Leader, System and Network Administrator, Helpdesk Operator and Support Staff** shall attend the respective office/designated work place from 9:30AM to 5:30PM on all working days of the/ State Government.
- ii) For any leave beyond two (2) days by any resources, the SPA shall have to provide an alternate resource with same qualification & experience.
- iii) Replacement of any resources (due to leave or attrition) by the SPA shall be done with specific approval of the client/authority of District e-Governance Society *(DeGS)*.
- iv) The availability of resources shall be calculated on a monthly basis (on all working days of the State Government) based on the daily attendance report captured in the Appropriate Monitoring Software to be provided by the client through the Biometric devices installed in their respective computers.
- v) The resources shall login before 9:30AM and logout after 5:30PM.
- vi) SLA Matrix for payment by Client for resources:

Availability % the resources out of the 8 working hours from 9:30AM to 5:30PM on the working days of a month	Score
90.00% or more	1.0
80.00% to <90.00%	0.9
70.00% to <80.00%	0.8
60.00% to <70.00%	0.7
50.00% to <60.00%	0.6
40.00% to <50.00%	0.5
<40.00%	0.0
	(No Payment)

vii) Client reserves the right to direct the SPA to replace any resource, without assigning any reason, if the performance of the Operator is not satisfied as per

			report submitted by the Authority of District e-Governance Society (DeGS).			
		viii)	In case the discrepancy between the data provided by the SPA and that of the NMS/Monitoring Software is within 10%, the discrepancy will be ignored. However, if the difference is over 10%, the authority of the District e-Governance Society or authorized person/committee by the SPD will do a random/impromptu verification for compliance of the concerned SLA in and the data that would emerge at that point of time shall be applicable.			
	(j) Payment for the cost of Set up, management, maintenance, etc.: Payment for the set up management, maintenance, etc. cost shall be made by the client based on percentage of th sub-total of the cost for Machines plus Internet Connectivity plus Remuneration of th resources quoted by the bidder/SPA.					
	(k)	(k) Payment for the Printing Charges: Payment for the printing of acknowledgement receip shall be made by the client through the DeGS on monthly basis based on total number of application receipts submitted at each PFC.				
	(l)	(comp	ent for Insurance Coverage: Payment for the insurance coverage for Machines uters & peripherals) including power backup equipment for each PFC shall be made client after submission of the original insurance documents to the client by the SP.			
6.5	submitte Howeve receipt o Activity	ed by t r, the fi of the bi Schedul	be made within 30 (thirty) WORKING days after receipt of the bill/ invoice the SPA along with the relevant documents specified in the Activity Schedule. nal payment shall be made by the Client within 60 (sixty) WORKING days after ll/ invoice submitted by the SPA along with the relevant documents specified in the le, provided all other relevant requirements as mentioned in the Activity Schedule blied with.			
			yed payments following interest rates shall apply : 6% per annum for payments s; and LIBOR +2% per annum for payments in other currencies.			
6.6.1	Replace	e 6.6.1 w	vith the following:-			
	Price adjustment shall Not Applicable for the machinery (computer & peripherals) supplied under the contract and the Operational cost of the assignment. Price adjustment shall also Not be Applicable for the cost quoted by the SPA for the Remuneration of the staff (including for management the staff and the PFC Operators) during the first 12(twelve) months of the contract.					
		ent for	e event of the continuation of the contract after the first 12(twelve) months , price the Remuneration part of the assignment in the <i>foreign and local</i> currency shall pollows:			
	with effe	ect for t	paid in foreign currency shall be adjusted every 12 months (and, the first time, he remuneration earned in the 13th calendar month after the date of the Contract) following formula:			
	$R_f = R_f$	$f_{0} \times \frac{I_{f}}{I}$	{or $R_f = R_{fo} \times [0.1 + 0.9 \frac{I_f}{I_{fo}}]$			
	where <i>R</i> forth in for salar suppose	ef is the a the cont ries in the ries hav	I_{fo} adjusted remuneration, R_{fo} is the remuneration payable on the basis of the rates set tract agreement for remuneration payable in foreign currency, I_f is the official index he country of the foreign currency for the first month for which the adjustment is ve effect, and I_{fo} is the official index for salaries in the country of the foreign currency f the date of the Contract.			
	shall be the 13th	adjusteo 1 calend	paid in local currency pursuant to the rates set forth in the contract agreement d every 12 months (and, for the first time, with effect for the remuneration earned in ar month after the date of the Contract) by applying the following formula:			
	$R \iota = R \iota d$	$_{0} \times \frac{I_{l}}{I_{lo}}$	{or $R_{l} = R_{lo} \times [0.1 + 0.9 \frac{I_{l}}{I_{lo}}]$ }			
	where R forth in salaries I_{lo} is the Contract	R _i is the a contrac in the E e officia t.] [Sou t	adjusted remuneration, R_{lo} is the remuneration payable on the basis of the rates set at agreement for remuneration payable in local currency, I_l is the official index for mployer's Country for the first month for which the adjustment is to have effect and, l index for salaries in the Employer's Country for the month of the date of the <i>rce of Index: The average consumer price index for industrial workers for</i> <i>and centre for the quarters under consideration as published by Labour Bureau.</i>			

	Ministry of Labour, Government of India/Reserve Bank of India Bulletin]
	However, the SPA shall have to give a written undertaking to the client to assure that the enhanced Remuneration to the Staff shall be passed on to the staff.
	The staff remuneration rates shall not be less than minimum wage rate fixed by the Government of Assam for skilled workers, which is revised every year by the Government of Assam based on based on the "Consumer Price Index".
7.1	The principle and modalities of inspection by the client for the machinery (computer & peripherals) supplied & installed and the Services provided by the SPA shall be: As per provisions in the Activity Schedule.
	The Defects Liability Period for the machinery (computer & peripherals) supplied and installed shall be for the duration of the contract period of 3 (three) years from the date of signing of the contract.
8.2.3	The Adjudicator is Sri M.C. Boro, Retired Commissioner & Secretary, Public Works Roads Department, Government of Assam, at an hourly fee of INR 2500/-(Indian Rupees Two thousand five hundred only).
8.2.4	The arbitration procedures of Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 (as amended) of India shall be used in case of Indian Bidders. However, in case of Arbitration with Foreign firms, the arbitration procedures should be as per UNCITRAL procedures and the venue for arbitration shall be neutral or as mutually agreed during contract signing.
8.2.5	The designated Appointing Authority for a new Adjudicator is Senior Most Secretary of the Administrative Reforms & Training Department, Government of Assam .

Section-IX: Performance Specifications and Drawings (Performance Specifications shall be as provided in the Activity Schedule). (There are no drawings for this assignment)

Section X. Contract Forms

This Section contains forms which, once completed, will form part of the Contract. The forms for Performance Security and Advance Payment Security, when required, shall only be completed by the successful Bidder after contract award.

Table of Forms

1. Letter of Acceptance	5
2. Contract Agreement	6
3. Performance Security	8
4. Advance Payment Security	9

1. Letter of Acceptance

[letterhead paper of the Purchaser]

To: [name and address of the Supplier]

[date]

Subject: Notification of Award Contract No.

This is to notify you that your Bid dated [date] for execution of the [name of the Contract and identification number, as given in the Special Conditions of Contract] for the Contract Price of the equivalent of [amount in numbers and words] [name of currency], as corrected and modified in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders is hereby accepted by our Agency.

Note: Insert one of the 3 options for the second paragraph. The first option should be used if the Bidder has not objected the name proposed for Adjudicator. The second option if the Bidder has objected the proposed Adjudicator and proposed a mane for a substitute, who was accepted by the Employer. And the third option if the Bidder has objected the proposed Adjudicator and proposed a mane for a substitute, who was not accepted by the Employer.

We confirm that [insert name proposed by Employer in the Bidding Data], or We accept that [name proposed by bidder] be appointed as the Adjudicator or

We do not accept that [name proposed by bidder] be appointed as Adjudicator, and by sending a copy of this letter of acceptance to [insert the name of the Appointing Authority], we are hereby requesting [name], the Appointing Authority, to appoint the Adjudicator in accordance with Clause 37.1 of the Instructions to Bidders

You are requested to furnish the Performance Security within **28 (twenty eight)** days in accordance with the Conditions of Contract, using for that purpose the of the Performance Security Form included in Section-X, Contract Forms, of the Bidding Document.

You are hereby instructed to proceed with the execution of the said contract for the provision of Services in accordance with the Contract documents.

Please return the attached Contract dully signed

Authorized Signature:	
Name and Title of Signatory:	
Name of Agency:	

Attachment: Contract Agreement

2. Contract Agreement

[The successful Bidder shall fill in this form in accordance with the instructions indicated]

SLA based Contract

This CONTRACT (hereinafter called the "Contract") is made the *[day]* day of the month of *[month]*, *[year]*, between, on the one hand, *[name of Employer]* (hereinafter called the "Employer") and, on the other hand, *[name of Service Provider]* (hereinafter called the "Service Provider").

[*Note:* In the text below text in brackets is optional; all notes should be deleted in final text. If the Service Provider consist of more than one entity, the above should be partially amended to read as follows: "...(hereinafter called the "Employer") and, on the other hand, a joint venture consisting of the following entities, each of which will be jointly and severally liable to the Employer for all the Service Provider's obligations under this Contract, namely, [name of Service Provider] and [name of Service Provider] (hereinafter called the "Service Provider").]

WHEREAS

- the Employer has requested the Service Provider to supply & install certain Goods and provide certain Services as defined in the General Conditions of Contract attached to this Contract (hereinafter called the "Services");
- (b) the Service Provider, having represented to the Employer that they have the required professional skills, and personnel and technical resources, have agreed to provide the Services on the terms and conditions set forth in this Contract at a contract price of......;
- (c) the Employer has received a loan from the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development (hereinafter called the "Bank") towards the cost of the Services and intends to apply a portion of the proceeds of this loan to eligible payments under this Contract, it being understood (i) that payments by the Bank will be made only at the request of the Employer and upon approval by the Bank, (ii) that such payments will be subject, in all respects, to the terms and conditions of the agreement providing for the loan, and (iii) that no party other than the Employer shall derive any rights from the agreement providing for the loan or have any claim to the loan proceeds;

NOW THEREFORE the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:

- 1. The following documents shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part of this Agreement, and the priority of the documents shall be as follows:
 - (a) the Letter of Acceptance;
 - (b) the Service Provider's Bid
 - (c) the Special Conditions of Contract;
 - (d) the General Conditions of Contract;
 - (e) the Specifications;
 - (f) the Priced Activity Schedule; and
 - (g) The following Appendices: [*Note:* If any of these Appendices are not used, the words "Not Used" should be inserted below next to the title of the Appendix and on the sheet attached hereto carrying the title of that Appendix.]
 - Appendix A: Description of the Services (Activity Schedule)
 - Appendix B: Schedule of Payments
 - Appendix C: Key Personnel and Subcontractors
 - Appendix D: Breakdown of Contract Price in Foreign Currency
 - Appendix E: Breakdown of Contract Price in Local Currency
 - Appendix F: Services and Facilities Provided by the Employer
- 2. The mutual rights and obligations of the Employer and the Service Provider shall be as set forth in the Contract, in particular:
 - (a) the Service Provider shall carry out the Services in accordance with the provisions of the Contract; and
 - (b) the Employer shall make payments to the Service Provider in accordance with the provisions of the Contract.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Contract to be signed in their respective names as of the day and year first above written.

For and on behalf of [name of Employer]

[Authorized Representative]

For and on behalf of [name of Service Provider]

[Authorized Representative]

[*Note*: If the Service Provider consists of more than one entity, all these entities should appear as signatories, e.g., in the following manner:]

For and on behalf of each of the Members of the Service Provider

[name of member]

[Authorized Representative]

[name of member]

[Authorized Representative]

3. Performance Security

Format of Bank Guarantee

[The bank, as requested by the successful Bidder, shall fill in this form in accordance with the instructions indicated] [Guarantor letterhead or SWIFT identifier code]

Beneficiary: [insert name and Address of Purchaser]

Date: [Insert date of issue]

PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE No.: [Insert guarantee reference number]

Guarantor: [Insert name and address of place of issue, unless indicated in the letterhead]

We have been informed that _ [insert name of Supplier, which in the case of a joint venture shall be the name of the joint venture] (hereinafter called "the Applicant") has entered into Contract No. [insert reference number of the contract] dated [insert date] with the Beneficiary, for the supply of _ [insert name of contract and brief description of Goods and related Services] (hereinafter called "the Contract").

Furthermore, we understand that, according to the conditions of the Contract, a performance guarantee is required.

At the request of the Applicant, we as Guarantor, hereby irrevocably undertake to pay the Beneficiary any sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of [insert amount in *figures*]) *[insert amount in words]*¹ such sum being payable in the types and proportions of currencies in which the Contract Price is payable, upon receipt by us of the Beneficiary's complying demand supported by the Beneficiary's statement, whether in the demand itself or in a separate signed document accompanying or identifying the demand, stating that the Applicant is in breach of its obligation(s) under the Contract, without the Beneficiary needing to prove or to show grounds for your demand or the sum specified therein.

This guarantee shall expire, no later than the Day of, 2...², and any demand for payment under it must be received by us at this office indicated above on or before that date.

This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees (URDG) 2010 Revision, ICC Publication No. 758, except that the supporting statement under Article 15(a) is hereby excluded.

[signature(s)]

Note: All italicized text (including footnotes) is for use in preparing this form and shall be deleted from the final product.

¹ The Guarantor shall insert an amount representing the percentage of the Accepted Contract Amount specified in the Letter of Acceptance, and denominated either in the currency(ies) of the Contract or a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Beneficiary.

² Insert the date twenty-eight days after the expected completion date as described in GC Clause 18.4. The Purchaser should note that in the event of an extension of this date for completion of the Contract, the Purchaser would need to request an extension of this guarantee from the Guarantor. Such request must be in writing and must be made prior to the expiration date established in the guarantee. In preparing this guarantee, the Purchaser might consider adding the following text to the form, at the end of the penultimate paragraph: "The Guarantor agrees to a one-time extension of this guarantee for a period not to exceed [six months][one year], in response to the Beneficiary's written request for such extension, such request to be presented to the Guarantor before the expiry of the guarantee."

4. Advance Payment Security

[Guarantor letterhead or SWIFT identifier code]

Beneficiary: [Insert name and Address of Purchaser]

Date: [Insert date of issue]

ADVANCE PAYMENT GUARANTEE No.: [Insert guarantee reference number]

Guarantor: [Insert name and address of place of issue, unless indicated in the letterhead]

We have been informed that *[insert name of Supplier, which in the case of a joint venture shall be the name of the joint venture]* (hereinafter called "the Applicant") has entered into Contract No. *[insert reference number of the contract]* dated *[insert date]* with the Beneficiary, for the execution of *[insert name of contract and brief description of Goods and related Services]* (hereinafter called "the Contract").

Furthermore, we understand that, according to the conditions of the Contract, an advance payment in the sum *[insert amount in figures]* () *[insert amount in words]* is to be made against an advance payment guarantee.

At the request of the Applicant, we as Guarantor, hereby irrevocably undertake to pay the Beneficiary any sum or sums exceeding total amount of [insert amount figures] not in an in) *[insert amount in words]*¹ upon receipt by us of the Beneficiary's complying demand supported by the Beneficiary's statement, whether in the demand itself or in a separate signed document accompanying or identifying the demand, stating either that the Applicant:

- (a) has used the advance payment for purposes other than toward delivery of Goods; or
- (b) has failed to repay the advance payment in accordance with the Contract conditions, specifying the amount which the Applicant has failed to repay.

A demand under this guarantee may be presented as from the presentation to the Guarantor of a certificate from the Beneficiary's bank stating that the advance payment referred to above has been credited to the Applicant on its account number [insert number] at [insert name and address of Applicant's bank].

The maximum amount of this guarantee shall be progressively reduced by the amount of the advance payment repaid by the Applicant as specified in copies of interim statements or payment certificates which shall be presented to us. This guarantee shall expire, at the latest, upon our receipt of a copy of the interim payment certificate indicating that ninety (90) percent of the Accepted Contract Amount, has been certified for payment, or on the *[insert day]* day of *[insert month]*, 2 *[insert year]*, whichever is earlier. Consequently, any demand for payment under this guarantee must be received by us at this office on or before that date.

This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees (URDG) 2010 Revision, ICC Publication No.758, except that the supporting statement under Article 15(a) is hereby excluded.

[signature(s)]

Note: All italicized text (including footnotes) is for use in preparing this form and shall be deleted from the final product.

¹ The Guarantor shall insert an amount representing the amount of the advance payment and denominated either in the currency(ies) of the advance payment as specified in the Contract, or in a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Purchaser.